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Expanding Horizons 
Enhancing Care

FY25 was a defining year for Sanjivani Paranteral Limited — one where resilience 
met opportunity and our growth engines began converging into a stronger enterprise. 
Building on the momentum of previous years, we entered FY25 with a renewed vision: 
to broaden our horizons, deepen our impact and enhance patient care across global 
markets.

During the year, we strengthened our base business through portfolio expansion, 
product launches and deeper penetration into key geographies, while simultaneously 
laying the groundwork for the next phase of growth through our strategic joint ventures. 
We expanded our presence across Latin America, Central America, the Middle East 
and Francophone Africa, supported by new regulatory approvals and filings. These 
initiatives reinforce our position as a trusted global partner in life-saving medicines while 
staying rooted in our core purpose of delivering high-quality, patient-centric solutions 
that create lasting value.

FY26 is poised to be a pivotal year. For the first time, all three growth engines — the 
base business, the SPL Infusion Pvt. Ltd. for IV infusions, and the Alevia Healthcare 
S.R.O. for nutraceuticals — will contribute simultaneously. This confluence is set to 
drive scale, diversification and resilience. At Sanjivani, expanding horizons is not just 
about growth; it is about creating enduring healthcare impact and sustainable access to 
quality medicines — while consistently delivering value to stakeholders.
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Manufacturing Plants 
Alevia Healthcare S.R.O., Czech Republic

SPL Infusion Private Limited, Pune
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About Us
Sanjivani Paranteral is a WHO GMP certified core pharmaceutical company and a pioneer in 
the manufacturing of injectables, IV fluids and oral solids with an extensive experience span-
ning more than two and a half decades. Our company primarily focuses on life-saving drugs 
and exports to over 25 countries. Your Company is headquartered in Mumbai with WHO GMP 
certified manufacturing facility in Navi Mumbai and Dehradun. Your Company caters to major 
therapeutic areas encompassing central nervous system, cardiovascular system, antibiotics, 
gastroenterological, anti-diabetics, anti-allergic, supported by a robust R&D setup.
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25 Countries
Geographical Reach

25+ years
Experience

84 million
Annual Ampoules Capacity

60 million
IV Fluid Bottles

120 million
Annual B Lactam Tablet Capacity

72 million
Annual Capsule Capacity

~70% 
Exports Revenue

720 million
Annual Tablet Capacity

12 million
Annual Liquid injectables Capacity

48 million
Annual Vial Capacity

180 million
Annual B Lactam Capsule Capacity

4
Manufacturing Facilities
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VALUES
1. Quality
Products that we are proud of
2. Customer Satisfaction
Exceeding Customer expectationsis our success-mantra
3. Growth for all stakeholders
Exceeding Customer expectationsis our success-mantra
4. Professionalism
People you love to work with.A culture of innovative thinking, backed 
by disciplined execution

Vision, Mission & Values
Vision of the Company 

VISION
To be one of India’s best research-based pharmaceutical compa-
nies, through focus on quality and customer satisfaction
To bring forth a new paradigm of products & services which lead to 
unprecedented growth for our stakeholders, customers, strategic 
partners & team members To grow the company on the foundation 
of Passion, Performance & Partnership

MISSION
Creating a world-class organization offering products, services & 
paradigms that open up new worlds of opportunities

4
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Long-Term Growth Drivers

Expand Product Portfolio

Strategic Partnerships & Collaborations

Expand into New Geographies

Therapeutic Diversification
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Key Financial Highlights for the Year (Rs. in Mn)

Revenue from Operations
701

EBITDA Margin
16.5%

PAT Margin New Geographies  
Added during the Year

11.4% 5

Total
Products

Domestic & Export  
(share in revenue)

160 18.5% & 81.5%
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Key Financial Highlights (Rs. in Mn)

EBITDA

No. of Products

251 306 355 544 701

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25

Revenue

PAT

24 60 62 88 116

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25

14 48 45 62 81

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25

35 50 100 145 160

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25
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Revenue Mix
Product Mix

Region Mix

Geographical Mix

CIS Countries CIS Countries

46.10% 34.40%
26.00% 30.10%
26.60% 28.70%

1.30% 6.9%

Latin America Latin America

Middle East & Africa Middle East & Africa

India & Sub-continent India & Sub-continent

Injections

Tablets

Nutraceuticals

58.70% 

37.10%

4.20%

Injections

Tablets

Nutraceuticals

69.30%

29.10%

1.70%

FY25 FY24

FY25

FY25

FY24

FY24

888

18.50%

81.50%

Domestic Exports

24.90%

75.10%

Domestic Exports
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Global Footprint
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Dehradun & 
Navi Mumbai

Pune

Central
America 

Prague

Latin
America 

CIS 
Countries

India

Dehradun, Navi Mumbai, Pune & Prague



10 Annual Report 2024-25

Product Portfolio
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CDMO Clients
Injectables:

Oral & Nutraceuticals:
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Board of Directors

Mr. Ashwani Khemka
Chairman & Managing Director

With over 30 years of experience in the pharmaceutical sector, Mr. Khemka serves 
as the Managing Director, bringing extensive expertise and practices to maintain 
the highest standards of integrity and leadership.  

Mr. Srivardhan Khemka
Executive Director
As the Director, Mr. Khemka drives the company’s mission to efficiently deliver af-
fordable, high-quality medicines. With close to a decade of experience, he excels 
in optimizing processes and expanding market reach.

Mrs. Monika A. Singhani
Independent Director

Ms. Singhania is a registered Independent Director with the MCA and her career 
spans roles as an Investment & Financial Consultant and distributor of FMCG 
products. 

Mrs. Mrunmai Sarvankar
Independent Director

With over 30 years of experience in the pharmaceutical industry,  
Mrs. Sarvankar is a seasoned professional with a strong background in  
laboratory work, regulatory affairs, and Quality Control Analysis (QCA). 

Mr. Abhay Shah
Independent Director

Abhay Shah is a skilled professional with 5 years of experience in corporate 
governance, legal compliance, and company secretarial practices with his  
analytical mindset.
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Chairman’s Communique
Dear Shareholders, 

I am pleased to present the Annual Report of Sanjivani Paranteral Limited for the financial year 
2024-25. This was a pivotal year in our +25 year journey as we not only strengthened our core 
business but also launched two strategic ventures that will shape our future growth: SPL Infusion 
Pvt. Ltd. in Pune for intravenous (IV) fluids and Alevia Healthcare S.R.O. in Prague, Czech Re-
public. for nutraceuticals.

Fiscal year 2024-25 was marked by robust growth as Sanjivani made significant progress to-
ward strategic goals and capability enhancement. With healthcare budgets rising globally and 
geopolitical uncertainties increasing, there is a growing demand for reliable and safe medicines. 
Your company has diversified to mitigate risks related to geography, events, or specific products, 

demonstrating our ability to manage multiple pharma businesses simultaneously.

Despite a challenging global environment of supply chain disruptions, freight cost volatility, and geopolitical tensions, Sanjivani 
showed resilience, agility, and strategic foresight. Our consistent revenue growth, expanding product portfolio, and geographical 
presence across more than 25 countries testify to our strong business model, regulatory credibility, and trust from related parties. 
Our core strength lies in decades of industry experience, which informs a nuanced understanding of business operations and 
long-standing relationships in diverse markets. Sanjivani’s manufacturing excellence across various dosage forms remains a key 
competitive advantage.

The Year in Review: Strong Financial Performance

In terms of financial performance, Sanjivani reported consolidated revenue of INR 701 million, a healthy 28.8% year-on-year 
growth. This growth came from expanding our base business and contributions from new initiatives. Over five years, revenues 
have surged from INR 164 million in FY20 to INR 701 million in FY25, reflecting our strong fundamentals and strategic execution. 
Our facilities passed multiple international regulatory inspections, reaffirming our quality standards.

During the year, we expanded our base business significantly by launching 15 new formulations, bringing our portfolio to approx-
imately 160 products. Our geographic reach also grew with 48 dossier filings in French-speaking African countries, where we 
gained approval from one nation, paving the way for entry into others. Sales momentum continued in the Middle East, Latin Amer-
ica, and Asia, with entry into five new markets, resulting in exports accounting for 81.5% of our revenues during the year. Over the 
last two our revenues nearly doubled, which is a testament to our expanding global footprint and sustained demand.

Our SPL Infusion Pvt. Ltd. venture in Pune for intravenous fluids is a transformative initiative. The facility, built in 12 months has 
an installed capacity of 5 million bottles per month. The Indian IV market demands 7.2 billion bottles annually, while domestic sup-
ply ranges between 2.4 to 2.8 billion, creating a large opportunity. The strategic location near ports and the sterile manufacturing 
capabilities establish strong barriers to entry while positioning us competitively for both domestic and export markets. Importantly, 
the Pune facility embodies sustainability with solar power installations, energy-efficient operations, and comprehensive waste 
management systems—all integral to our long-term growth strategy.

Parallelly, our nutraceuticals manufacturing facility in Prague was commissioned in partnership with Alevia Healthcare S.R.O., 
marking our entry into the burgeoning European nutraceutical market, valued at over EUR 70 billion. The “Made in Europe” label 
commands premium pricing in developed and GCC markets, allowing us to leverage our Indian manufacturing expertise for a cost 
advantage without compromising quality.

Your company declared its first-ever dividend in FY25, announcing Rs.0.50 per share (5%).

Resilience Amidst Challenges

The year saw several challenges. We faced steep increases in international freight costs driven by conflicts in the Middle East, at 
times tripling shipping expenses. Select shipments required air transport, which put pressure on our EBITDA margins. Volatility 
in raw material prices, especially polymer granules linked to crude oil, also impacted costs. Our expansion into new geographies 
demanded competitive pricing, which temporarily diluted gross margins. Additionally, large oral solid tenders further softened 
margins. Despite these external headwinds, disciplined cost optimization, strengthened supply chains, and a balanced product 
mix enabled us to maintain EBITDA margins within a healthy range. We view these obstacles as temporary and expect margin 
improvements as our joint ventures scale effectively.

Note of Gratitude

In closing, these achievements reflect the unwavering dedication of our employees, the trust of our partners, and the ongoing 
support of our shareholders. As we look toward the future, Sanjivani is well-positioned for sustained growth underpinned by a solid 
foundation, strategic agility, and a commitment to innovation. On behalf of the Board and Management, I sincerely thank you for 
your confidence and continued support as we embark on the next exciting chapter of our journey.

Warm wishes,
Ashwani Khemka
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Board’s Report
Financial Results

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the 31st Annual Report and Company’ Audited Financial Statements for the  
financial year ended 31st March, 2025 (‘FY25’).

Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Income from operations 7009.86 5441.05
Other Income 121.35 51.72
Net Profit/(Loss) for the period (Before Exceptional and/or Extraordinary items) 1035.99 757.15
Exceptional Items -- --
Profit / (Loss) before Tax 1035.99 757.15
Less: Provision for current tax 183.80 134.77
Less: Tax adjustment of earlier years 0.73 1.06
Less: Net deferred tax assets 41.28 4.81

(Loss) / Profit after tax 810.18 616.51
Other Comprehensive Income -- --
Basic : 6.89 5.28
Diluted : 6.67 5.28

Company’s performance
The revenue from operations for Current Year was ₹7009.86Lakhs, Higher by 28.83 percent over the previous year’s revenue 
of ₹5441.05 Lakhs. The profit after tax (PAT) attributable to shareholders and non-controlling interests for Current Year and 
Previous Year was ₹810.18 Lakhs and ₹616.51 Lakhs, respectively.

Dividend
During the year under review, the Board of Directors has recommended dividend on the Equity Shares of the Company the 
rate of 5% i.e., Rs. 0.5/- per share for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025. This recommendation is subject to the ap-
proval of the Members at the ensuing 31st Annual General Meeting, if approved shall be paid within the time line as prescribed 
under the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) subject to deduction of tax at source (TDS) as applicable.

Particulars of Loans Granted, Guarantee Provided and Investments Made Pursuant to the Provisions of Section 186 of the Act
The Company has not granted any loans, not provided any Guarantee and not made any Investments which are covered   
under the provision of Section 186 of the Act.

Public Deposits
The Company has not accepted any deposit from the public during the year under review.

Transfer to Reserves
In view of less profit, the Board has decided not to transfer any amount to General Reserves for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2025

Changes in Capital Structure
The conversion of 1,97,394 warrants into 1,97,394 equity shares of face value of ₹10/- each was completed on 25th Novem-
ber, 2024, upon receipt of the balance application money of approximately 75%, out of the 6,00,000 warrants originally allotted 
on 05th February, 2024, on a preferential allotment basis to a single allottee pursuant to the exercise of its right of conversion. 
Accordingly, the Board of Directors allotted 1,97,394 equity shares.
Except for the aforesaid conversion, there were no other changes in the capital structure of the Company during the year 
under review. Further, as on the date of signing of this Report, 4,02,606 warrants out of the total 6,00,000 warrants have also 
been converted into equity shares.

(Rs. in Lakhs)
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Subsidiaries/ Joint Ventures/ Associates

During the year, the Company had only one subsidiary, SPL Infusion Private Limited, in which it holds 60.87% shareholding. 
The Company has also a partnership with Alevia Healthcare s.r.o., a reputed organization based in Prague, Czech Republic, 
to launch a new project catering to the pharmaceutical markets of the European Union. Except for the above, the Company 
did not have any other Subsidiary, Joint Venture, or Associate Company during the year.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

The Company has Five Directors with an optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors including Two wom-
en director. The Board comprises of Three Non-Executive Independent Directors.

During the year and as on date of this report, following were the changes in Director/ Key Managerial Personnel:

1. Ms. Pooja Vijay Gohil resigned from the post of Company Secretary Cum Complaince officer of the company with effect 
from Ravikumar Venkatramuloo Bogam was appointed as the Company Secretary Cum Compliance officer of the Company 
with effect from 16th August, 2024;
2. Resignation of Mr. Hitesh Rajnikant Khona Chief Financial Officer of the Company with effect from 08th April, 2024;
3. Resignation of Mr. Shrenik Kumar Parasmalji Solanki, Independent Director of the Company with effect from 08th April, 
2024; 
4. Change in the designation of Mr. Srivardhan Ashwani Khemka (DIN: 08942106) from Non-Executive Director to Executive 
Director, effective from 08 April 2024, as subsequently approved by the shareholders through postal ballot on 20th June, 2024;
5. Appointment of Mr. Pritesh Jain as a Chief Financial Officer on the Board of the Company for a term of 5 (five) years com-
mencing from 08th April, 2024, subject to approval of Members on 20th June, 2024;
6. Appointment of Mr. Abhay Shah as an Independent Director on the Board of the Company for a term of 5 (five) years com-
mencing from 08th April, 2024 subsequently regularized by the shareholders through postal ballot on 20th June, 2024;

Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company, between the end of the financial 
year and the date of this report:

During the year ended 31st March, 2025, There were no material changes and commitments which affects the financial po-
sition of the Company.

Declaration by Independent Directors

The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors confirming that they meet with the criteria of 
independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Act and the Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations. In the 
opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfil the conditions specified under the Act and the Listing Regulations and 
are independent of the management. 

Familiarisation Programme for the Independent Directors
In compliance with the requirements of Regulation 25(7) of the Listing Regulations, the Company has put in place a Familiar-
ization Programme for the Independent Directors to familiarize them with the Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities in 
the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business model etc. The details of the Familiarisation 
Programme conducted are available on the website of the company www.sanjivani.co.in

Evaluation of performance of the Board, its Committees and Individual Directors
The Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the Directors individually and of its 
Committees pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations. The Board evaluation was conducted 
through a structured questionnaire designed, based on the criteria for evaluation laid down by the Nomination, Remuneration 
and Compensation Committee. A meeting of Independent Directors was held to review the performance of the Chairman, 
Non-Independent Director(s) of the Company and the performance of the Board as a whole as mandated by Schedule IV of 
the Act and relevant provision of SEBI Listing Regulations. The Independent Directors also discussed the quality, quantity 
and timeliness of flow of information between the Company management and the Board, which is necessary for the Board to 
effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

The action areas identified out of evaluation process have been discussed and are being implemented Remuneration Com-
mittee, which is in.
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Remuneration policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Other Employees and Criteria for appointment of 
Directors
The Company has in place a process for selection of any Director, wherein the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
identifies persons of integrity who possess relevant expertise, experience and leadership qualities required for the position 
and the Committee also ensures that the incumbent fulfils such criteria with regard to qualifications, positive attributes, inde-
pendence, age and other criteria as laid down under the Act, Listing Regulations or other applicable laws and the diversity 
attributes as per the Board Diversity Policy of the Company.

Further, the Company has a Policy on remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees. 
The Remuneration Policy as approved by the Board is available on the website of the Company and can be accessed through 
the web link: www.sanjivani.co.in

Management Discussion and Analysis
The Management Discussion and Analysis as prescribed under Part B of Schedule V read with Regulation 34(3) of the Listing 
Regulations is provided in a separate section and forms part of this Report as Annexure – I which includes the state of affairs 
of the Company.

Particulars of Employees:
The disclosures required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuner-
ation of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are attached as Annexure – II and form an integral part of this report. 
Further, a statement showing the names and other particulars of employees drawing remuneration in excess of the limits as 
set out in the Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the aforesaid rules, is maintained and forms part of this report. However, in terms of first 
proviso to Section 136(1) of the Act, the Annual Report and Accounts are being sent to the members and others entitled there-
to, excluding the aforesaid information. The aforesaid information is available for inspection by the members. Any member 
interested in obtaining a copy thereof, may write to the Company Secretary at corporate@sanjivani.co.in 

Corporate Governance Report
As per Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations), a separate report on Corporate Governance is enclosed as a part of 
this Annual Report. A Certificate from Auditors of your Company regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance 
as stipulated in Regulation 17(7) read with Part A of Schedule II of the Listing Regulations is also enclosed along with the 
Corporate Governance Report.

Board Meetings
The Board met 7 (Seven) times during the year under review. The details of Board Meetings and the attendance of the Direc-
tors are provided in the Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this Annual Report.

Committees of the Board

Audit Committee 
During the year under review, the Audit Committee of the Company comprised of 3 members (2 Independent Directors and 
1 Executive Director) viz. Mr.Abhay Shah as Chairman, Mrs Monika Singhania and Mr.Srivardhan Khemka There are no 
instances where the Board did not accept the recommendations of the Audit Committee. The terms of reference, powers 
and roles of the Committee are disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of this Annual Report. The 
Company Secretary act as a Secretary of Audit Committee.  

Other Committees
Details of other Committees of the Board along with their terms   of reference, composition and meeting(s) held during the year 
are provided in the Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this Annual Report.
Related Party Transactions
All transactions entered with Related Parties for the year under review were on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course 
of business and that the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder are not at-
tracted. Thus, disclosure in form AOC-2 in terms of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not required. Further, there are 
no material related party transactions entered during the year under review with the Promoters, Directors or Key Managerial 
Personnel. All Related Party Transactions, if any, are   placed before the Audit Committee.

Internal Controls and Internal Financial Controls
The management believes that internal controls are the prerequisite of governance and that action emanating from agreed 
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business plans should be exercised within a framework of checks and balances. The management is committed to ensuring 
adequate internal controls environment commensurate with the size and complexity of the business, which assures compli-
ance with internal policies, applicable laws and regulations, ensures reliability and accuracy of records, promotes operational 
efficiency, protects resources and assets, helps to prevent and detect fraud, errors and irregularities and overall minimizes 
the risks. 
The Company has a well-established internal controls framework comprising a set of policies, procedures and systems, 
instrumental in enhancing the efficiency and effectiveness of business operations, reducing risks and costs, and improving 
decision-making and accountability. 
Internal financial controls framework, sub-set of internal controls framework assures the reliability and accuracy of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes following generally accepted accounting principles 

Whistle-Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism
As a Company of repute and global standing, Sanjivani Parenteral Limited is committed to conducting its business by adopting 
the highest standards of professional integrity and ethical behaviour. The organization has a detailed Global Code of Conduct 
(‘Code’) that directs the Employees to uphold the Company values and urges them to conduct business with integrity and the 
highest ethical standards. Management intends to prevent the occurrence of any practice not in compliance with this Code 
through the Global Whistle Blower Policy. This mechanism aims to provide a secure environment to Employees for responsi-
ble reporting of Code violations by Employees. 

Risk Management Policy
The Board has been vested with specific responsibilities in assessing of risk management policy, process and system. The 
Board has evaluated the risks which may arise from the external factors such as economic conditions, regulatory framework, 
competition etc. The Executive management has embedded risk management and critical support functions and the neces-
sary steps are taken to reduce the impact of risks. The Independent Directors expressed their satisfaction that the systems of 
risk management are defensible.

Auditors
Statutory Auditors
R.B .Gohil & Co. Chartered Accountants, were appointed for a period of 5 years from the financial period year 01-04-2022 till 
31-03-2027. Independent Auditor’s Report on Quarterly and Year to Date Financial results of Sanjivani Parenteral ltd. pursuant 
to the regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Auditor’s Report 
for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025, has been issued with an unmodified opinion, by the Statutory Auditors. Further, 
the Statutory Auditors of the Company have not reported any fraud as specified under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 
2013.

Secretarial Auditor
The Board had appointed M/s. HD and Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the 
Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025. The Secretarial Audit Report in the Form No. MR - 3 for the year is 
provided as ‘Annexure – III’ to this Report. The Secretarial Audit Report for the year does not contain any qualification, reser-
vation or adverse remark except a comment, as follows, which, in the opinion of the Board is self-explanatory.

Maintenance of Cost Records
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) 
Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors hereby state that the Company is required to maintain cost records as prescribed by the 
Central Government and such accounts and records are being duly maintained.

Reporting of Frauds
During the year under review, the Auditors have not reported any instances of frauds committed in the Company by its Officers 
or Employees to the Audit Committee under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Policies & Disclosure Requirements
Details of programme for familiarisation of Independent Directors with the Company is available on the website of the Compa-
ny at the following link https://www.sanjivani.co.in/investorzone.
Policy on dealing with related party transactions is available on the website of the Company at the following link https://www.
sanjivani.co.in/investorzone.
Policy for determining Materiality of Events of the Company is available on the website of the Company at the following link 
https://www.sanjivani.co.in/investorzone.
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The code of conduct for Directors and senior management of the Company is available on website of the Company at the 
following link  https://www.sanjivani.co.in/investorzone.

The Company has formulated and disseminated a Whistle Blower Policy to provide vigil mechanism for employees and Di-
rectors of the Company to report genuine concerns that could have serious impact on the operations and performance of the 
business of the Company. This Policy is in compliance with the provisions of Section 177(9) of the Act and Regulation 4(2)(d)
(iv) of the Listing Regulations. Policy on Whistle Blower is available on website of the Company at the following link https://
www.sanjivani.co.in/investorzone.

Corporate Social Responsibility
Sanjivani’s CSR initiatives and activities are aligned to the requirements of Section 135 of the Act. A brief outline of the CSR 
policy of the Company and the initiatives undertaken by the Company on CSR activities during the year are set out in Annex-
ure V of this report in the format prescribed in the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. This Policy 
is available on the Company’s website at HYPERLINK “https://www.sanjivani.co.in/investorzone.”

Business Responsibility & Sustainability Report 
Pursuant to Regulation 34 of the Listing Regulations, 2015, Business Responsibility Report is not applicable to our Company.

Conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo 
The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo as stipulated 
under Section 134(3)(m) of the Act read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is provided as ‘Annexure – IV’ 
to this Report. 

Change in Name of Registrar and Share Transfer Agent
The name of Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company is changed to MUFG Intime India Private Limited (RTA) from Link 
Intime India Private Limited, with effect from December 31, 2024. This is pursuant to acquisition of Link Group by Mitsubishi 
UFJ Trust & Banking Corporation, by way of scheme of arrangement.

Maternity Benefits
Your Company is committed to upholding the rights and welfare of its women employees. During the year under review, the 
Company continued to comply with the provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, as amended from time to time.
The Company provides maternity benefits to eligible female employees, including paid maternity leave, nursing breaks, and 
other necessary facilities, in accordance with the law. The Company also supports a conducive and inclusive workplace envi-
ronment to ensure the health, safety, and dignity of women employees during and after maternity

Human Resources
In any organization communication with employee is a key determinant factor of success your Company believes that employ-
ees are the most valued assets for success and growth of the Company. Your Company had implemented internet network 
for communication between management and employees for enhanced accessibility and transparency. Company has also 
initiated many morale building programs to strengthen their self-belief which further benefits the Company.

Disclosure under the sexual harassment of women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 
Your Company strongly believes in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for each and every individual working for 
the Company through various interventions and practices. It is the continuous endeavour of the Management of the Company 
to create and provide an environment to all its employees that is free from discrimination and harassment including sexual 
harassment. The Company has adopted a policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace 
in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013 and the Rules made thereunder. 

Your Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
During the financial year, the Company obtained listing and trading approval under SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2015 for the 
issuance of 1,97,394 equity shares upon conversion of 1,97,394 warrants allotted to the promoter on a preferential basis. 
Except for the aforesaid approval, there were no significant or material orders passed by regulators, courts, or tribunals which 
could impact the going concern status of the Company.
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Annual Return
The Annual Return as required under sub-section (3) of Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in form MGT-7 is 
made available on the website of the Company and can be accessed at https://www.sanjivani.co.in
 
Secretarial Standards
During the year under review, the Company has complied with Secretarial Standards on meetings of the Board (“SS-1”) and 
on General Meetings (“SS-2”) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India in terms of Section 118(10) of the Act.

Other Disclosures 
There are no proceedings initiated/ pending against your Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 and 
there is no instance of one-time settlement with any Bank or Financial Institution. 

Directors’ Responsibility Statement
Pursuant to the requirements under Section 134(5) read with Section 134(3)(c) of the Act, with respect to Directors’ Respon-
sibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed that: 

(a) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended   31st March, 2025, the applicable accounting stan-
dards have been followed and there are no material departures from the same; 
(b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgements and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2025 
and of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date; 
(c) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities;
(d) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;
(e) The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal financial 
controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and
(f)   The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such 
systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

Penalities / Punishment / Compounding Of Offences 
There were no instances of non-compliance by the Company on any matters related to the capital markets or penalties, 
strictures imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority on any matter related to capital 
markets, during the last three years.
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For And on Behalf of the Board of Directors
Sanjivani Paranteral Limited

SD/-
Srivardhan Ashwani Khemka		
Director

SD/-
Ashwani Anamisharan Khemka	
Director

Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE I TO DIRECTOR REPORT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Global Economy
The global economy is exhibiting signs of gradual stabilization and resilience, despite facing ongoing challenges. The In-
ternational Monetary Fund (IMF) forecasts global growth at approximately 3.0% in 2025, followed by a modest rebound 
in 2026, below the 2000- 2019 historical average of 3.7%. However, this growth is tempered by persistent headwinds and 
structural distortions impacting economic activity. Although global growth has remained steady, the makeup of this activity 
reveals certain distortions. Strong contributions from international trade and investment stand in contrast to subdued private 
consumption across several major jurisdictions. These disparities highlight the effects of heightened tariffs and trade barriers, 
which obscure the underlying robustness of the global economy. Growth in advanced economies is projected to slow slightly, 
moderating from 1.8% in 2023 and 2024 to 1.5% in 2025 and 1.6% in 2026. In contrast, Emerging Market and Developing 
Economies (EMDEs) are expected to see a gradual deceleration, with growth easing from 4.7% in 2023 and 4.3% in 2024 to 
4.1% in 2025 and 4.0% in 2026.

Inflation is expected to gradually ease from the elevated levels seen during the pandemic, with headline inflation forecasted 
to decline to 4.2% in 2025 and further to 3.6% in 2026. Advanced economies are projected to achieve their inflation targets 
sooner than emerging market and developing economies, supported by significant interest rate hikes by central banks aimed 
at restoring price stability. However, lingering risks of renewed inflationary pressures may complicate the path to monetary 
easing and pose challenges to fiscal sustainability and financial stability globally.

Indian Economy
India’s economic momentum continues to build, with real GDP growth of 6.5% in FY25, driven by resilient domestic demand, 
including a rebound in rural consumption, steady investment, and improved net exports. Nominal GDP expanded by 9.8%, 
reaching INR 330 lakh crore in FY25 from INR 301 lakh crore in FY24, while real GDP at constant prices rose to INR 187 
lakh crore from INR 176 lakh crore. Growth is expected to remain strong, supported by robust consumption, investment, and 
government initiatives enhancing infrastructure and digital connectivity. Inflation pressures are easing, and India’s position as 
a global manufacturing and export hub is strengthening, with exports hitting record levels.

India’s Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) inflows continued their upward trend, reaching a provisional USD 81.04 billion in FY 
2024-25, a 14% increase from USD 71.28 billion in FY 2023-24, reflecting strong global confidence in the Indian economy. 
Equity inflows grew 13% year-on-year to USD 50 billion in FY 2024-25, contributing to the highest total FDI in three years.
Looking ahead, the International Monetary Fund (IMF) projects India’s growth at 6.4% for both 2025 and 2026, with slight 
upward revisions reflecting a relatively more favorable external environment than anticipated in earlier forecasts. Overall, 
the outlook for India remains positive, underscored by strong domestic demand, easing inflationary pressures, a resilient 
external sector, and a stable employment scenario. However, ongoing global headwinds—such as persistent trade frictions, 
policy uncertainty, and geopolitical conflicts—pose risks that require careful monitoring, as they could influence India’s growth 
trajectory.

Global Pharmaceutical Industry
The global pharmaceutical market is robust and expanding, with revenues projected to grow at a CAGR of approximately 
5-6%, reaching an estimated USD 2.3 to 3 trillion by 2028-2030. The market’s growth is driven by rising demand for innovative 
therapies, especially in areas like oncology, immunology, and metabolic diseases such as diabetes and obesity.
Emerging markets, notably China, India, Southeast Asia, and Latin America, are key growth regions fueled by expanding 
healthcare infrastructure, rising middle-class populations, and broader access to medicines. Mature markets like North Amer-
ica, Western Europe, and Japan are expected to see slower growth due to already high baseline consumption. Specialty 
medicines, including biologics and personalized therapies, are commanding an increasing share of spending, with oncology 
leading as one of the fastest-growing therapy areas. The Indian pharmaceutical sector continues to strengthen its global foot-
print, leveraging its manufacturing capabilities and export reach, contributing significantly to the global supply chain.

Global Bulk Drugs Market
According to IQVIA, majority of global bulk drug consumption can be accounted to three segments - Branded Prescription 
drugs, Over-the-Counter (OTC) drugs and Generic Prescription drugs. The global bulk drug market size was valued at around 
USD 210 billion in 2024. It is projected to grow at a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of approximately 6-7% through 
2030.
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Indian Pharmaceutical Market
India’s pharmaceutical industry continues to cement its status as a global powerhouse, leading in generic medicines and ac-
tive pharmaceutical ingredient (API) production. The country uniquely offers end-to-end support—spanning capacity, capabili-
ty, and cost advantages—that attracts a vast global client base.   As the fifth-largest contributor to manufacturing GVA, it drives 
approximately 4% of India’s foreign direct investment (FDI) inflows, sustains a USD 19 billion trade surplus, and supports 2.7 
million livelihoods, either directly or indirectly.

In FY 2024-25, India demonstrated robust growth, driven by a blend of cost-effective manufacturing, expansive R&D capa-
bilities, and supportive government initiatives. India’s pharmaceutical market for FY 2024-25 is valued at USD 57.2 billion 
with domestic consumption valued at USD 26.7 billion and export valued at USD 30.5 billion. The highly cost-sensitive Indian 
market favors high-volume, low-cost products, with generics dominating the therapeutic landscape. Furthermore, ongoing in-
vestments in domestic manufacturing, broader healthcare outreach, and expanded insurance coverage are poised to support 
growth across multiple therapy areas. India supplies around 40% of the US generic market and approximately 25% of UK 
prescriptions, underscoring its role as a key global manufacturing hub.

According to the Department of Pharmaceuticals (DoP), the Indian Pharmaceutical Market reached approximately INR 
4,17,345 crore (over USD 50 billion) in FY 2023-24, growing at over 10% per annum over the past five years. The domestic 
market is forecast to more than double by 2030, reaching USD 130 billion, elevating India’s share of the global pharmaceutical 
market from the current 3% to nearly 5%, with long-term growth projections hitting around USD 450 billion by 2047.

Indian Bulk Drug Market
India has over 500 active pharmaceutical ingredient (API) manufacturers,  and is the third-largest producer globally, holding 
an 8% share of the API industry by value. The Indian API Industry has grown at a CAGR of 8.4% between 2017 and 2023 and 
is expected to grow at the same rate of 8.3% CAGR by 2029, driven by the nation-wide push for self-reliance.

Nutraceutical Market      
The global nutraceutical market is poised for strong growth in the coming years. Valued at approximately USD 580-630 billion 
in 2025, it is expected to expand at a CAGR of around 7-11% through the late 2020s, surpassing USD 900 billion by 2028 and 
reaching nearly USD 1 trillion by 2030-32. Key growth drivers include rising consumer health awareness, increasing demand 
for functional foods and dietary supplements, and expanding access in emerging markets such as India, China, and South-
east Asia. Specialty segments like botanical actives, sports nutrition, and immune support are expected to see accelerated 
adoption. The market’s expansion is supported by demographic shifts including aging populations and rising chronic disease 
prevalence.

ABOUT THE COMPANY
Sanjivani Paranteral Limited was incorporated on 05th October, 1994 in the state of Maharashtra. Main Object Clause of the 
company is -To manufacture, produce, formulate, prepare, buy, markets, distribute, sell, or otherwise dispose off refine. blend, 
process, import, export, trade and to deal in pharmaceutical formulations, bulk drugs, biological, genetics, vaccines, serums, 
medical products, health care products, veterinary feeds, feeds, feed supplements, feed. Additives, preparations, substances 
or products and all derivatives, by-products, residual products or Ingredients required for the manufacture, preparations, pro-
cessing or use of any of the foregoing and to establish, maintain and equip Research and Quality Control Centres. Chemical 
Plant to produce basic chemicals, bulk drugs, antibiotics, pharmaceuticals and veterinary Products.

FORWARD – LOOKING STATEMENTS:
This Report contains forward –Looking Statements. Any, statement that address expectations or projections about the future,
including but not limited to statements about the Company’s strategy and growth, product development, market position,
expenditures and financial results, are forward looking statements. Forward looking statements are based on certain assump-
tions and expectations of future growth.

OPPORTUNITIES, THREATS AND OUTLOOK
Sanjivani Paranteral Limited will be able to place itself in a strong position by expanding strategically, increasing its manu-
facturing capacities and enhancing capacities across the organization. The Company is looking at different opportunities in 
untapped markets and also across a value chain. It plans for alliances with business associates in the global market, giving a 
huge boost to the selective products that it already deals in. We are fully conscious of our responsibility toward our customers. 
Our efforts are directed toward the fulfillment of customer satisfaction through the quality of products. As the consolidation of 
this industry gains momentum, the need to develop a dedicated team of skilled manpower assumes urgency and importance.
We will continue to focus on training and motivation of manpower so as to develop teams of qualified and skilled personnel 
to effectively discharge their responsibilities in a number of projects and activities. It is, in this context, which we have been 
working towards promoting the skills and professionalism of our employees to cope with and focus on the challenges of 
change and growth.
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OVERVIEW:

Management Discussion

FY25 was a defining year for Sanjivani Paranteral Ltd. (SPL), marked by strong financial performance, execution of strategic 
initiatives, and progress across multiple growth platforms. The Company strengthened its position as a trusted manufacturer 
and marketer of sterile injectables, oral solids, and nutraceuticals, while broadening its geographic reach and deepening its 
product pipeline.

Strong Growth and Diversified Revenue Streams

The Company delivered robust growth during the year, supported by a healthy balance of new product introductions, volume 
expansion in established categories, and higher contributions from international markets. Over the last five years, revenues 
have expanded from INR 17 crores in FY20 to INR 70 crores in FY25, reflecting the strength of our execution and the sus-
tainability of our strategy. Injectables and oral solids maintained their leadership in the portfolio, benefiting from established 
therapeutic demand, high quality standards, and enduring customer relationships.

Expanding Global Footprint

Exports were the cornerstone of growth, accounting for a significant share of overall revenues. Our facility successfully cleared 
multiple regulatory audits, underscoring SPL’s adherence to global quality benchmarks. A notable milestone was the site ap-
proval received from a regulator in a Francophone African nation, which not only validates our compliance standards but also 
unlocks opportunities in multiple new markets across French-speaking Africa. During the year, we filed 48 new products in the 
region, further building our growth pipeline.

The Company also made steady expansion into Central and Latin America by broadening both its portfolio and market cover-
age. With a strong base now established, these geographies are expected to contribute meaningfully to future growth.

In Eastern Europe, our investment in Alevia Healthcare for a minority stake — a strategic joint venture based in Prague—
achieved operational milestones during the year. Initial nutraceutical orders were successfully executed, and additional con-
tracts are under negotiation. Alevia Healthcare provides a strong foothold in the European Union and is expected to anchor 
SPL’s long-term expansion in the region.

IV Entry through a Joint Venture

SPL created a wholly owned subsidiary - SPL Infusion Private Ltd for its IV Fluids joint venture vertical where it holds major-
ity stake. The entity will focus on manufacture and supply of IV Fluids bottles to address the growing needs of the market. 
This entity provides a sharper operational focus, supports product diversification, and positions the Company to benefit from 
emerging opportunities in Indian and Global IV Fluids landscape.

Innovation and Compliance

Innovation remained central to our growth strategy. The Company advanced its R&D programs with a focus on differentiated 
sterile injectables and value-added nutraceuticals. A steady pipeline of product dossiers was filed across multiple markets, 
ensuring long-term growth visibility. Equally, compliance remained uncompromising, with all facilities operating under strict 
WHO-GMP standards, ensuring consistency, quality, and patient safety.

Outlook

The progress made in FY25 has created a strong platform for sustained growth in the years ahead. With diversified revenue 
streams, strong export momentum, strategic subsidiaries in both India and Europe, and a proven record of regulatory success, 
Sanjivani Paranteral Ltd. is well-positioned to scale its business further, deepen global partnerships, and enhance long-term 
value creation for all stakeholders.

MEDIUM TERM STRATEGY:

Our Company has completed 25 years of start up of production All the manufacturing departments, marketing departments 
etc. are sufficiently matured to take up new challenges in the medium term. We propose to start 11 (Eleven) new products in 
the medium term and long term and apply for regulatory approvals like EDQM, USFDA etc. For this purpose our R & D depart-
ment is absolutely ready and they already have a few products queued up to take up for validation batches and commercial 
batches

LONG TERM STRATEGY:
We also need to improve the manufacturing processes to reduce the solvent load and formation of other by-products. This will 
also help us in reducing the pollution load and ultimately reducing the final product cost.

RISK AND CONCERNS:
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Due to stiff competitions in the pharma field where the company’s activities are cantered in, the overall margins are always 
under pressure, but maintainable, with the constant effort and good & services rendered by the company.
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY:
An Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company has been constituted as per provisions of Section 177 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and corporate governance requirements specified by Listing Agreements with the Stock Exchanges. 
The Internal Audit Function is looked after internally by the finance and accounts department, and reviewed by the Audit Com-
mittee and the management at the regular intervals. The Internal Auditors Reports dealing with Internal Control Systems are 
considered by the Audit Committee and appropriate actions are taken, whichever necessary.
ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITIONS AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS:
The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Act, Indian Generally Accepted 
Principles (Indian GAAP) and the Accounting Standards as prescribed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The 
Management believes that it has been objective and prudent in making estimates and judgments relating to the Financial 
Statements and confirms that these Financial Statements are a true and fair representation of the Company’s Operations for 
the period under review.

DEVELOPMENT ON HUMAN RESOURCE FRONT:
At Sanjivani Paranteral Limited our human resource is critical to our success and carrying forward our Mission. With their sus-
tained, determined and able work efforts we were able to cruise smoothly through the hard time of the economic volatility and 
rapidly changing market conditions. The requirement of the markets given the economic scenario has made this even more 
challenging. Attracting newer talent with the drive, training and upgrading existing skill sets and getting all to move in a unified 
direction will definitely be task in the Company. By creating conducive environment for career growth, Company is trying to 
achieve the maximum utilization of employee’s
skills in the most possible way. There is need and the company is focused on retaining and bringing in talent keeping in mind
the ambitious plans despite the market and industry scenario. The Company also believes in recognizing and rewarding em-
ployees to boost their morale and enable to achieve their maximum potential. The need to have a change in the management
style of the Company is one of the key focus areas this year.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:
Industrial Relations throughout the year continued to remain very cordial and satisfactory.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:
Statements in this Management Discussion and Analysis describing the company’s objectives, projections, estimates and 
expectations may be “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results may 
differ materially from those either expressed or implied. Important factors that could make difference to the Company’s opera-
tions include change in government regulations, tax regimes, and economic developments within and outside India.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM:
In last five years, the company has concentrated on reduction of fixed expenses and has also reduced direct variables cost. 
It has concentrated on value added products and optimize on available cash flow. The management is ensuring an effective 
internal control system to safeguard the assets of the company. Efforts for continued improvement of internal control system 
are being consistently made in this regard.

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS FRONT INCLUDING NUMBER OF 
PEOPLE EMPLOYED:
Your company believes in a work environment that is congenial to on job learning and encourages team work. It has, therefore, 
continued to focus on developing the competence of its staff and employees. Cordial and harmonious relation with employees 
continued to prevail throughout the year under review.

For And on Behalf of the Board of Directors
Sanjivani Paranteral Limited

SD/-
Srivardhan Ashwani Khemka		
Director

SD/-
Ashwani Anamisharan Khemka	
Director

Place: Mumbai
Date: 12th August, 2025
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ANNEXURE II TO DIRECTOR REPORT
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEE
I. Ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the Employees of the Sanjivani Paranteral Limited 
for the Financial year 2024-25 and the percentage increase in remuneration of each Director and KMPs of the Company for 
the financial Year 2024-25:

Name Of Director/ KMP Remuneration/
Sitting

fees of Director/
KMP

for financial year
2024-25
(in Lakh)

% increase in
remuneration in

the Financial Year
2024-25

Ratio of remuneration
of each Director to
MRE for Financial

Year 2024-25

Mr. Ashwani Anamisharan Khemka (Execu-
tive Director-Chairperson-MD) 150 316.67% 88.23

Mr. Srivardhan Ashwani Khemka (Executive 
Director) 48 NA 28.24

Mrs. Mrunmai Mahendra Sarvankar 
(Non-Executive - Independent Director) -- NA NA

Mrs. Monika Amit Singhania (Non-Executive 
-Independent Director) -- NA NA

Mr. Abhay Milan Shah (Independent Direc-
tor) -- NA NA

Mr. Pritesh Jain (Chief Financial Officer) 35.53 NA NA
Mr.Ravikumar Bogham (Company Secretary 
& Compliance Officer) 2.10 NA NA

II. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of Employees of Sanjivani Paranteral Limited in the financial year 
2024-25:  44.88% (Increase)

III. Permanent employees on the rolls of Sanjivani Paranteral Limited as on 31st March, 2025: 40

IV. Average percentage Increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in financial year i.e. 
2024-25 as 9.21%. As regards, comparison of managerial remuneration of 2024-25 over 2023-24, details of the same are 
given in the above table at sr. no. I.
	
V. It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid during the year is as per the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the 
Company.

For and on behalf of board of directors
Sanjivani paranteral limited

SD/-
Ashwani Anamisharan 
Khemka
Managing director
Din: 00337118

SD/-
Srivardhan Ashwani Khemka	
Director
Din: 08942106

Place: Mumbai
Date: 12th August, 2025
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ANNEXURE III TO DIRECTOR REPORT 
MR- 3 SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
Sanjivani Paranteral Limited
205 P-N Kothari Indl Estatel,
B S Marg Bhandup (W), 
Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400078.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good cor-
porate practices by Sanjivani Paranteral Limited formerly known as (hereinafter called “The Company”). Secretarial Audit 
was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances 
and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during 
the conduct of Secretarial Audit by using appropriate Information technology tools like virtual data sharing by way of data room 
and remote desktop access tools, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period ended on 
31st March, 2025, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-pro-
cesses and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter. The 
physical Inspection or Verification of documents and records were taken to the extent possible.

We have examined the books, papers and minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Com-
pany for the financial year ended on 31st March 2025, to the extent applicable provisions of:

i) The Companies Act, 2013 (“The Act”) and the Rules made thereunder;

ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”) and the Rules made thereunder;

iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 
(“SEBI Act”) to the extent applicable to the Company: -

• The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
• The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
•The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and 
amendments from time to time;  
• The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021; 
(Not applicable to the Company during the audit period); 
• The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; 
(Not Applicable to the Company during the audit period)
•The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021; (Not 
Applicable to the Company during the audit period)
• The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period).
• The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not Applicable to the 
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Company during the audit period)
• The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; (Not Applicable to the Com-
pany during the audit period)
• The Company has complied with the requirements under the Equity Listing Agreement entered into with BSE Limited.

vi) The Management has identified and confirmed the applicable Acts, Laws and Regulations specifically applicable to the 
Company being in Pharmaceutical Sector as given below:

• The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972;
• The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013;
• The Profession Tax Act, 1975;
• Income Tax Act, 1961.

We have also examined compliances with the applicable clauses of the following:

I.Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
II.The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company BSE Limited read with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines and 
Standards as mentioned above, subject to the following observation(s):

1. The Company was non-compliant/late compliant with Regulation 6(1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, relating to the appointment of a qualified Company Secretary as the Compliance Of-
ficer, during the quarter ended March 2024. For this non-compliance, the Company paid a penalty of ₹35,000 along with 
applicable GST of ₹6,300 (aggregating to ₹41,300) to BSE Limited. The Company has assured that due care will be taken 
to ensure timely compliance in future.

2. The Company was non-compliant/late compliant with Regulation 23(9) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, which mandates disclosure of related party transactions on a consolidated basis. For 
the half-year ended September 2024, the said disclosure was submitted beyond the prescribed timeline. Consequently, 
the Company has paid a penalty of ₹5,000 along with GST of ₹900 (aggregating to ₹5,900) to BSE.

3. The Company is non-compliant with the provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regu-
lations, 2015 (“LODR Regulations”) relating to the composition of the Board of Directors and the constitution of the Nomi-
nation and Remuneration Committee (NRC) and Stakeholders Relationship Committee (SRC). The term of Ms. Mrunmai 
Sarvankar, Non-Executive Independent Director, expired on 30th March, 2025, and no Independent Director has been 
appointed in her place as on the date of this report.

We further report that:
The Board of Directors of the Company was duly constituted with an appropriate balance of Executive, Non-Executive, and 
Independent Directors up to 30th March, 2025, coinciding with the completion of the term of appointment of Ms. Mrunmai 
Sarvankar, Non-Executive Independent Director. Post completion of her tenure, the composition of the Board requires recon-
stitution in order to align with the provisions of the Act, and as informed by the management, the Company is taking necessary 
steps to fill the vacancy and ensure compliance. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place 
during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent 
at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the 
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

Majority decisions is carried through while the dissenting members views are recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations 
of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 
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We further report that during the audit period:

I.The Company obtained shareholders’ approval through postal ballot on June 21, 2024, for the following matter:

a. Appointment of Mr. Pritesh Jain as Chief Financial Officer of the Company;
b. Regularize the Appointment of Mr. Abhay Shah as an Independent Director;
c. Change in Designation of Mr. Srivardhan Ashwani Khemka (DIN: 08942106), as an Executive Director;
d. To Increase the Borrowing Powers Under Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 up to Rs. 200 Crores;
e. Approval of Loans, Investments, Guarantee or Security Under Section 185 of Companies Act, 2013 up to an Aggre-
gate Sum of Rs. 10 Crores;
f. To Make Loan / Investment and Give Guarantee / Provide Security Under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 
up to Maximum Amount of Rs.  250 Crores;
g. To Approve Increase in Remuneration of Mr. Ashwani Anamisharan Khemka, Managing Director of the Company.

II. The Company has obtained Shareholder’s approval in the 30th Annual General Meeting for: 

a. Consideration and adoption of Audited Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Statement as on 31st March, 2024 and the 
statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on that date; together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports thereon;
b. Appointment of Mr. Ashwani A. Khemka (DIN:00337118), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself 
for re-appointment;

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms as integral part of this 
report.

For HD and Associates
Company Secretaries

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 12th August, 2025
UDIN: A047700G000982260
Peer review no: 2208/2022

Hardik Darji
Practicing company secretary

Proprietor
ACS NO. 47700 C.P.NO.: 21073

FRN: S2018MH634200
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For HD and Associates
Company Secretaries

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 12th August, 2025
UDIN: A047700G000982260
Peer review no: 2208/2022

Hardik Darji
Practicing company secretary

Proprietor
ACS NO. 47700 C.P.NO.: 21073

FRN: S2018MH634200

ANNEXURE A TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT
To,
The Members,
Sanjivani Paranteral Limited
205 P-N Kothari Indl Estatel,
B S Marg Bhandup (W), 
Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400078

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

Management’s Responsibility 
1. It is the responsibility of the Management of the Company to maintain secretarial records, devise proper systems to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and regulations and to ensure that the systems are adequate and operate 
effectively.

Auditor’s Responsibility 
2. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and procedures followed by the Company 
with respect to secretarial compliances. 
3. We have conducted the Audit as per the applicable Auditing Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of 
India. 
4. We believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company’s Management is adequate and appropriate for 
us to provide a basis for our opinion. 
5. Wherever required, we have obtained reasonable assurance about whether the statements prepared, documents or Re-
cords, in relation to Secretarial Audit, maintained by the Auditee, are free from misstatement.
6. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management’s representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regula-
tions and happening of events, etc
 
Disclaimer 
7. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effec-
tiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
8. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.
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ANNEXURE IV TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 
AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
Particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo required 
under the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

(A) Conservation of Energy

Power and Fuel Consumption 2024-25 2023-24 
  1. Gas and Electricity
        a) (1) Gas --  --
            (2) Electricity   
                  Unit 792159 707953
                  Total Amt. (Rs.) 9056816 7753389
                   Average Rate / Unit 11.433 10.950
         b) (1) Own Generation -- --
  2. Coal -- --
  3. Furnace Oil, LSHS & L.D.O.
             Quantity (Ltrs) 52627 39437
              Total Amt. (Rs.) 4306395 3297509
              Average Rate / Unit 81.83 83.61
  4. Other /Internal Generation -- --

Additional information as required in terms of the provisions of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Compa-
nies (Accounts) Rules,2014 in respect to above matters is given below:

(B) Research and Development
The Company has no specific Research and Development Department. However, the Company is outsourcing the R&D work 
for the development of new monocular and also has a in house Quality Control Department to check the quality of different 
products manufactured.

(C) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
Total Foreign exchange used and Earned

(In Rs.)

Year ended March 31, 2025 Year ended March 31, 2024
Used 19,93,00,101 2,01,87,345
Earned 52,53,09,334 40,06,07,832

For and on behalf of board of directors
Sanjivani Paranteral Limited

SD/-
Ashwani Anamisharan Khemka
Managing director
Din: 00337118

SD/-
Srivardhan Ashwani Khemka	
Director
Din: 08942106

Place: Mumbai
Date: 12th August, 2025
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ANNEXURE V TO DIRECTOR REPORT
ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-25
[PURSUANT TO SECTION 135 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013  
(‘THE ACT’) & RULES MADE THEREUNDER]
1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

Over the years, we have been focusing on sustainable business practices encompassing economic, environmental and social 
imperatives that not only cover business, but also the communities around us. Our Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) 
encompasses holistic community development and institution building, while shaping and sharing solutions that serve the 
development of businesses and communities.
 
2. Composition of CSR Committee: Not Applicable
 
3. The web-link of CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the Board is disclosed on the website of the company: https://
www.sanjivani.co.in/investorzone 
 
4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies 
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable: NA
 
5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social respon-
sibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any

Sr. 
No.

Financial Year Amount available for set-off from 
preceding financial years (in Rs)

Amount required to be set-off for 
the financial year, if any (in Rs)

1 F.Y. 1(31.03.2025) -- --
2 F.Y. 2 (31.03.2024) -- --
3 F.Y. 3(31.03.2023) -- --

Total -- --

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 508.99 Lakh
 
7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 10.18 Lakh
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: NA
(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: NA
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): Rs. 10.18 Lakh

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total Amount 
Spent for the 
Financial Year. (in 
Rs.)

Total Amount transferred to Unspent 
CSR Account as per section 135(6).

Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule 
VII as per second proviso to section 135(5).

Amount. Date of transfer. Name of the Fund Amount Date of transfer.
NIL

 
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:
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(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11)

Sl. No.
Name 
of the 

Project.

Item 
from the 

list of 
activi-
ties in 

Sched-
ule VII 
to the 
Act.

Local 
area 
(Yes/
No).

Location of the 
project.

Project 
dura-
tion.

Amount 
allo-

cated 
for the 
project 
(in Rs.).

Amount 
spent 
in the 

current 
financial 
Year (in 

Rs.).

Amount 
trans-

ferred to 
Unspent 

CSR 
Account 
for the 
project 
as per 

Section 
135(6) 

(in Rs.).

Mode of 
Imple-
men-
tation 

- Direct 
(Yes/
No).

Mode of Im-
plementation - 
Through Imple-
menting Agency

State. District. Name

CSR 
Regis-
tration 

number.

NIL

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

Sl. No. Name of 
the Project

Item from 
the list of 

activities in 
schedule 
VII to the 

Act.

Local area 
(Yes/ No).

Location of the project. Amount 
spent for 

the project 
(in Rs.).

Mode of im-
plementa-

tion - Direct 
(Yes/No).

Mode of implementation 
- Through implementing 

agency.

State District. Name.
CSR 

registration 
number.

01 NA Donation 
for Cow, 
Medical 
Activities 
and Envi-
ronment 

Protection 
Activities 
and other 

social 
Activities

Yes Maharash-
tra

Mumbai INR. 18.16 
Lakhs

Yes NA NA

 
(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NA
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NA
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): INR. 18.16 Lakhs
(g) Excess amount for set off, if any

Sl. No. Name of the Project Amount (in Rs.)

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as 
per section 135(5) 10.18 Lakhs

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 18.16 Lakhs
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 7.98 Lakhs

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes 
or activities of the previous financial years, if any --

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial 
years [(iii)-(iv)] 7.98 Lakhs
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Sl. No. Preceding Fi-
nancial Year.

Amount 
transferred to 
Unspent CSR 
Account under 
section 135 (6) 

(in Rs.)

Amount spent 
in the reporting 
Financial Year 

(in Rs.).

Amount transferred to any fund specified under 
Schedule VII as per section 135(6), if any.

Amount 
remaining to 
be spent in 
succeeding 

financial years. 
(in Rs.)

Name of the 
Fund

Amount (in 
Rs).

Date of trans-
fer.

NIL

 
(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)

Sl. No. Project ID. Name of the 
Project.

Financial 
Year in 

which the 
project was 

commenced.

Project 
duration.

Total amount 
allocated for 
the project 

(in Rs.).

Amount 
spent on the 
project in the 
reporting Fi-
nancial Year 

(in Rs).

Cumulative 
amount 
spent at 

the end of 
reporting Fi-
nancial Year. 

(in Rs.)

Status of 
the project - 
Completed /

Ongoing.

NIL

 
10.	 In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired 
through CSR spent in the financial year: NA
    
11.	 Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5).: 
NA

Sd/-
Srivardhan Khemka
Executive Director

Sd/-
Ashwani Khemka
Chairman & Managing Director
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,
The Members,
Sanjivani Paranteral Limited,
205 P-N Kothari Indl Estatel 
B S Marg Bhandup (W), Mumbai, 
Maharashtra, India, 400078.

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Sanjivani Par-
anteral Limited having CIN: L24300MH1994PLC081752 and having registered office 205 P-N Kothari Indl Estatel B S Marg 
Bhandup (W), Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400078 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me by the 
Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub 
clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number 
(DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company and its 
officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending 
on 31st March, 2025 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.

 Sr. No Name of the Director DIN Date of appointment in Company
1. Srivardhan Ashwani Khemka 08942106 24/03/2022
2. Ashwani Anamisharan Khemka 00337118 05/10/1994
3. Mrunmai Mahendra Sarvankar 07173011 31/03/2015
4. Monika Amit Singhania 07950196 24/03/2022
5. Abhay Milan Shah 10562812 08/04/2024

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the Management 
of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an 
assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has 
conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 12th August, 2025
UDIN: A047700G000982249
Peer Review No: 2208/2022

For HD and Associates
Company Secretaries

SD/-
    _______________________

Hardik Darji
Practicing company secretary

Proprietor
ACS NO. 47700 C.P.NO.: 21073

FRN: S2018MH634200
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The Board of Directors (‘the Board’) of the Company lays great emphasis on the broad principles of Corporate Governance. 
Thus, Directors present the Company’s Report on Corporate Governance for the year ended March 31, 2025, in terms of 
Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Re-
quirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’). Your Company ensures compliance with the regulations 17 to 27 read 
with Chapter V and clause (b) to (i) of Regulation 46 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 and also the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 including amendments thereto (the “Act”).

1.COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE ON GOVERNANCE
Company’s policy on Corporate Governance is based on the principles of accountability, integrity and transparency. The Com-
pany reiterates its commitment to adhere to the highest standards of Corporate Governance. 
The Company recognizes that good Corporate Governance is a continuing exercise and is committed to pursue the highest 
standard of governance in the overall interest of the stakeholders.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The composition of the Board is in conformity with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and Regulation 17 
of Listing Regulations. The strength of the Board as on March 31, 2025 is 5 (Five) Directors comprising of 2 (two) Executive 
Directors, 3 (Three) Non-Executive Independent Directors.

Name of Director & 
Category

Name of other Listed entities 
where he/ she is   a director 
& (category of directorship)

No. of 
Directorships#

No. of Memberships/ Chairman-
ships of Committees in  other 

public companies

Public Private/
Non-profit Memberships Chairmanship

Mr. Ashwani  Khemka
(Promoter & Executive 
Director)

None 0 2 - -

Mr. Srivardhan  Khemka
(Executive Director) None 0 0 -  -

Mrs. Mrunmai Sarvankar
(Non-Executive Inde-
pendent Director)

None 0  1  -  -

Mrs. Monika Singhania
(Non-Executive Inde-
pendent Director)

Dolat Algotech Limited 1  1  3  2

Mr. Abhay Shah
(Non-Executive Inde-
pendent Director)

None 0  2 - -

#    No. of directorships held by the Directors does not include directorships in foreign companies
## In accordance with Regulation 26 of Listing Regulations, Memberships/Chairmanships of only Audit Committee and Stake-
holders’ Relationship Committee in all other public limited companies have been considered.

Board Meetings
During the financial year 2024-2025 7 (Seven) Board Meetings were held i.e. on 08th April, 2024, 13th May, 2024, 06th Au-
gust, 2024, 09th September,2024, 28th October, 2024 ,25th November, 2024 and 10th February, 2025. The time gap between 
two meetings did not exceed maximum period mentioned under the Section 173 of the Act and the Regulation 17(2) of the 
Listing Regulations. All the information required to be furnished to the Board was made available to them along with detailed 
Agenda notes.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT



36 Annual Report 2024-25

Name of Directors No. of Board meetings 
attended

Attendance at last Annual 
General Meeting No. of shares held

Mr. Ashwani Khemka 7 Present 32,23,045
Mr. Srivardhan Khemka 7 Present Nil
Mrs. Mrunmai Sarvankar 7 Present Nil
Mrs. Monika Singhania 7 Present Nil
Mr. Abhay Shah 7 Present Nil

Independent Directors confirmation by the Board
All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under Section 
149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations. In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors, ful-
fil the conditions of independence specified under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations. 
During the year under review, no Independent Director ceased to be Director of the Company. The Board is of the opinion 
that all of the Independent Directors are free from any relationship or circumstances that could affect, or appear to affect, their 
independent judgement and they continued to demonstrate these characteristics during 2024-25 

Chart/matrix setting out the skills/expertise/competence
The Board comprises qualified members who bring in the required skills, competence and expertise such as working in cohe-
sion, management and strategy, financial knowledge and leadership, these allow them to make effective contributions to the 
Board and its     committees.

However, the Board has identified the following skill set with reference to its Business and Industry which are available with 
the Board:

Name of the Director Skills/Expertise/Competencies in specific functional area

Mr. Ashwani Khemka
With 30 years Plus of experience in the pharmaceutical sector, Mr. Ashwani Khemka serves 
as the Managing Director, bringing extensive expertise and practices to maintain the highest 
standards of integrity and leadership.

Mr. Srivardhan Khemka
He drives the company’s mission to efficiently deliver affordable, high-quality medicines. 
With close to a decade of experience, Mr. Srivardhan Khemka excels in optimizing process-
es and expanding market reach.

Mrs. Mrunmai Sarvankar
With over 30 years of experience in the pharmaceutical industry, Mrs. Mrunmai Sarvankar is 
a seasoned professional with a strong background in laboratory work, regulatory affairs, and 
Quality Control Analysis (QCA).

Mrs. Monika Singhania She is a registered Independent Director with the MCA and her career spans roles as an 
Investment & Financial Consultant and distributor of FMCG products.

Mr. Abhay Shah Her is a skilled professional with 5 years of experience in corporate governance,  legal com-
pliance, and company secretarial practices with his analytical mindset.

Further, a certificate from a Company Secretary in Whole time Practice certifying that none of the Directors on the Board of 
the Company has been debarred or disqualified by the SEBI/ MCA or any such statutory authority from being appointed or 
continuing as a Director of the Company is annexed herewith.

Code of conduct for Directors and Senior Management
The Code of conduct as applicable to the Directors and the members of the Senior Management had been approved by the 
Board and it is being abided by all of them. The Annual report contains declaration to this effect from the Chairman & Managing 
Director. It is also available on the website of the Company at the following link www.sanjivani.co.in 

Familiarisation Programme for Directors
The details of programme for familiarisation of Independent Directors with the Company are available on the website of the 
Company at the following link www.sanjivani.co.in

Inter-se relationships among Directors
Except Mr. Srivardhan Ashwani Khemka and Ashwani Anamisharan Khemka who are relatives, no other Directors of the 
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Company are inter-se related.

3.AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Company has an Audit Committee at the Board level with powers and role that are in accordance with the provisions of 
the Section 177 of the Act and Regulation 18 of Listing Regulations. The Committee acts as a link between the management, 
the statutory auditors and the Board and oversees the financial reporting process.

The Audit Committee presently comprises of 2(Two) Independent Directors and 1 (One) Executive Director. The members of 
the Committee are well versed in finance matters, accounts, Company law and general business practices.
The functions of the Audit Committee are as per the Act and the Listing Regulations. These include the review of accounting 
and financial policies and procedures, review of financial reporting system, internal control system and procedures and ensur-
ing compliance of statutory requirements.

The Audit Committee reviews the financial statements with the Statutory Auditors and the Management with reference to the 
accounting policies and practices before commending the same to the Board for its approval.

The Committee met 4 (Four) times during the financial year 2024-25, i.e. on 13th May, 2024, 06th August, 2024, 28th October, 
2024 and10th February, 2025.

Composition of Audit Committee and details of the meetings attended:

Sr. 
No. Name of the Directors Director Category Designation in                                                      

the Committee
 No. of Meetings 
attended

1. Mr. Abhay Shah Independent & Non-Executive Chairman 4
2. Mr. Monika Singhania Independent & Non-Executive Member 4
3. Mr. Srivardhan Khemka Executive Director Member 4

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee includes:

• The recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the Company;
• Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance and effectiveness of the audit process;
• Examination of financial statement and the auditor’s report thereon;
• Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties;
• Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans & investments;
• Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, whenever it is necessary;
• Reviewing with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control sys-
tems;
• Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management system;
• Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters;
• Reviewing the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism;
• Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by them;
• Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, staffing 
and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;
• Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;
• Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud 
or
irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board;
• Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit
discussion to ascertain any area of concern;
• Approval of appointment of CFO after assessing the qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate.

4.NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (‘NRC’)
The NRC presently comprises of 3 (Three) Independent Directors. The Company’s remuneration policy is based on 3 factors, 
pay for responsibility, pay for performance and potential and pay for growth. The Company’s NRC is vested with all necessary 
powers and authority to ensure appropriate disclosure on the remuneration of Whole-Time Directors and to deal with all the 
elements of remuneration package of all such Directors.
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As for non-whole-time directors their appointment is for utilizing their professional expertise in achieving the goals of the Com-
pany. Accordingly, the service contract, notice period and severance fees, if any, are not applicable to such non-whole-time 
directors.
During the year under review, the Committee met 2 (Two) time on 08th April, 2024 and 6th August, 2024.

Composition of NRC and details of the meetings attended:

Sr. 
No. Name of the Directors Director Category Designation in                                                      

the Committee
 No. of Meetings 
attended

1. Mr. Mrunmai Mahendra 
Sarvankar

Non-Executive - Independent 
Director Chairperson 2

2. Ms. Monika Amit Singhania Non-Executive - Independent 
Director Member 2

3. Mr. Abhay Milan Shah Non-Executive - Independent 
Director Member 2

 The terms of reference of the NRC includes:
• Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend 
to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees;
• Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and the Board;
• Devising a policy on diversity of the Board;
• Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance 
with the criteria laid down and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal;
• Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the Independent Director(s) on the basis of the report of perfor-
mance evaluation of Independent Director(s);
• Recommendation by NRC to the Board for all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management.

Remuneration Policy
The Company believes that human resource is the key for the continuous growth and development of the Company. The 
Company’s remuneration policy is designed to attract, retain and motivate employees by offering appropriate remuneration 
packages and retirement benefits. The remuneration policy is in consonance with the existing industry practice.
The Company pays remuneration by way of salary, benefits, perquisites and allowances (fixed   component) to its Executive 
Director(s) and CEO, as approved by the Board and the Members of the Company. In determining the remuneration package 
of the Executive Director(s), the NRC evaluates the remuneration paid by the comparable organisation and thereafter makes 
its recommendation to the Board. Annual increments are decided by the NRC within the scale of remuneration approved by 
the Members of the Company. NRC also reviews and decides on revision of remuneration payable to the Senior Management 
as per terms of appointment and based on the performance of the individual as well as the Company.
Non-Executive Directors are paid sitting fees NIL for attending any Meeting of the Board and INR NIL for Audit Committee, 
Meeting of Independent Directors meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Commit-
tee and no sitting fees is paid for attending meeting of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. The Board shall from time 
to time decide sitting fees payable to any new committees, if constituted or revision of sitting fees, if any	 .

Performance Evaluation
The Company has devised a process for performance evaluation of Independent Directors, the Board, Committees and other 
individual Directors. The Independent Directors are evaluated on the criteria such as engagement, leadership, analytical, 
quality of decision-making, interaction, governance, etc.

5. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has no pecuniary relationship or transaction with its Non-Executive Directors other than payment of sitting fees 
to them, if any, for attending the Board and Committee Meetings.

The Company does not have an incentive plan, which is linked to performance and achievement of the Company’s objectives. 
The Company has no stock option and pension scheme.

The details of remuneration paid to the Executive Directors of the Company during the year ended March 31, 2025 are given 
as under:
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Name of Director Salary p.a. 
(`in Lakh)

Fixed Com-
ponent
– Contribu-
tion to Provi-
dent Fund 
(` in Lakh)

Bonus, 
Benefits & 
Other
Allowances

Service Con-
tract (Years)

Notice Peri-
od (Months)

Severance 
Fees (`)

Mr. Ashwani Khemka 150 - Nil 5 years 3 Nil
Mr. Srivardhan Khemka 48 - Nil NA 3 Nil

The details of sitting fees paid to the Non-Executive Directors of the Company during the year ended March 31, 2025 are 
given as under:

Name of the Director Mr. Abhay Milan 
Shah

Mrs. Monika Amit Singha-
nia

Mrs. Mrunmai Mahendra Sarvan-
kar

Sitting fees 
(Rs. in Lakh) Nil Nil Nil

6. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE (‘SRC’)

The SRC comprises of 3 (three) Directors including 2 (two) Independent Directors and 1 (One) Executive Directors. The 
SRC meets at frequent intervals to consider, inter alia, shareholders complaints like non-receipt of share certificate or delay 
in transfer of shares, non- receipt of balance sheet, non-receipt of declared dividend etc. and provide satisfactory solution to 
the complainant’s except for disputed cases and sub-judice matters which would be solved on final disposal by the Courts.

During the year under review, the SRC met 1 (One) times i.e. on 10th February, 2025.

Composition of SRC and details of the meetings attended:

Sr. 
No. Name of the Directors Director Category Designation in                  

the Committee
No. of Meet-
ings attended

1. Mr. Mrunmai Sarvankar Non-Executive - Independent Director  Chairperson 1
2. Ms. Monika Singhania Non-Executive - Independent Director Member 1
3. Mr. Srivardhan Khemka Executive Director Member 1

The terms of reference of the SRC includes:

(1) Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including complaints related to transfer/transmission of 
shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings 
etc.
(2) Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.
(3) Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various services being rendered by 
the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.
(4) Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends 
and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the company.

Compliance officer

During the year 2024-25, Mr. Ravikumar Bogam, Company Secretary acted as the compliance officer of the Company.
During the financial year 2024-25, there were no complaints received by the Company. There was no complaint pending as 
on March 31, 2025.

7. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (‘CSR’) COMMITTEE

During the year, the provisions relating to the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee were not applicable to the 
Company.
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Accordingly, the composition of the CSR Committee and details of meetings held/attended are not applicable.

8.PARTICULARS OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Sr No Name of Senior Management and Functional Head Designation
01 Mr. Ravikumar Bogam Company Secretary
02 Mr. Pritesh Jain CFO

During the financial year 2024-25, Mr. Pritesh Jain was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company with 
effect from April 8, 2024, consequent to the resignation of Mr. Hitesh Khona from the said position on the same date. Further-
more, Mr. Ravikumar Bogam was appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company with effect from August 16, 2024, in 
place of Ms. Pooja Vijay Gohil.

9. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

The details of the Annual General Meeting held during the last 3 (three) financial years are as under:

Financial Year Date Time Venue No. of Special Reso-
lution(s) passed

2023-24 24th Septem-
ber, 2024 11:00 A.M Video Conferencing (‘VC’) / Other Audio-Visu-

al Means (‘OAVM’) -

2022-23 27th Septem-
ber, 2023 11.00 AM Video Conferencing (‘VC’) / Other Audio-Visu-

al Means (‘OAVM’) -

2021-22 27th Septem-
ber, 2022 10:00 AM Video Conferencing and other Audio-Visual 

Means -

Postal ballot- During the year, One Extra- Ordinary General Meeting held through Postal Ballot and the results of the same 
were declared on 21st June, 2024.

10. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION
Annual Report notice of the meetings and other communications to the Shareholders are generally sent through e-mail, post 
or courier.

the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) has vide its circular no 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and Securities and Exchange 
Board of India Circular dated May 12, 2020, No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021 and No. 10/2021 dated, June 23, 2021 
(‘SEBI Circular’) directed the Companies to send the Annual Report only by e-mail to all the Members of the Company whose 
e-mail address is registered with the Company/Registrar and Share Transfer Agent/Depository Participants. Therefore, the 
Annual Report for FY 2024-25 and Notice of 31st AGM of the Company is being sent to the Members at their registered e-mail 
addresses in accordance with MCA and SEBI Circulars.

The results of the Company are furnished to the BSE Limited on a periodic basis (quarterly, half yearly and annually) after 
the approval of the Board. The results are normally published in “The Financial Express” - English Newspaper and “Pratkal” 
- Marathi Newspaper within 48 hours after the approval of the Board. These were not sent individually to the shareholders. 
However, the Company furnishes the same on receipt of a request from the shareholder.

A separate dedicated section under “Investor” on the Company’s website www.sanjivani.co.in gives information on sharehold-
ing pattern, quarterly/half yearly results and other relevant information of interest to the investors/public.

Presentations, if any, are first discussed to the stock exchange before they are communicated to the institutional investor & 
analysis.
They are also hosted on the website of the company.

11. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION
a) Annual General Meeting

Day, Date and Time:  Friday, 26th September, 2025 at 11:00 a.m. through Video Conferencing / Other Audio-Visual Means
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b) Financial Year
The financial year covers the period from April 01 of every year to March 31 of the next year.

c) Listing on Stock Exchange
The Company’s shares are listed on BSE Limited (‘BSE’), P. J. Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400001.

d) Listing Fees
Listing fees for the year 2024-25 has been paid to BSE where shares of the Company are listed.

e) Stock Code & ISIN
Stock Code at BSE is 531569. ISIN is INE860D01013.

f) Market Price Data
i.The monthly high and low quotations of shares of the Company traded on BSE for the financial year ended March 31, 2025
was as follows:

Month
(Amount in Rs) Volume

(Amount in Rs)
High Low

April, 2024 204.95 138.00 944860
May, 2024 194.80 171.80 262910
June, 2024 209.80 167.25 449110
July, 2024 251.85 190.00 679020
August, 2024 315.50 224.45 933530
September, 2024 360.60 272.50 388290
October, 2024 323.60 259.00 216410
November, 2024 325.00 278.55 117250
December, 2024 396.95 284.00 381880
January, 2025 390.00 305.50 182510
February, 2025 349.75 243.40 441880
March, 2025 289.00 238.60 155130

Performance of the stock in comparison to BSE Sensex
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g) Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

The Company has appointed MUFG Intime India Private Limited for processing and approving the transfer of shares. Their 
contact details are as follows:

MUFG Intime India Pvt. Ltd.
C-101, Embassy 247, L. B. S. Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai – 400083. 
Tel No.: (022) 49186270
Fax No.: (022) 49186060
Email: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

h) Share Transfer System
Shares held in the dematerialised form are electronically traded by Depository Participants and the Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agents of the Company periodically receive from the Depository Participants the beneficiary holdings which enables 
them to update their records and to send all corporate communications, dividend warrants etc.

i) Distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2025

No. of Shares No. of Shareholders % of Shareholders No. of Shares % of Shareholding
Upto 500 5434 82.86 569360 4.79

501 – 1000 442 6.74 354920 2.99
1001 – 5000 499 7.61 1116365 9.39

5001 – 10000 85 1.30 582292 4.90
10001 and above 98 1.49 9258757 77.93

Total 6558 100.00 11881694 100

Categories of Shareholders as on March 31, 2025 

Category Number of shares % of Shareholding
Promoters 34,30,455 28.87%
Banks/MFs/FIs/NBFCs/Central Govt./State Govt./ Institution/IEPF 7,30,802 6.15%
Private Bodies Corporate 9,75,603 8.21%
Indian Public 6,230,106 55.43%
NRIs/OCBs 70,199 0.63%
Any Other 4,44,529 3.74%
Total 1,18,81,694.00        100 %

j) Dematerialisation of shares
About 99.51% of the shares have been dematerialised as on March 31, 2025. The equity shares of the Company are traded 
at BSE.
The equity shares of the Company are permitted to be traded in dematerialised form only.

k) Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity
There is no outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments.

l) Credit ratings
During the year under review, the Company had not obtained the rating from any agencies as the borrowing of the Company 
was less then INR 50 Crore.

m) Plant Locations
The Company’s plants are located at:

Rabale Unit: Plot no. R-40, TTC Industrial Area, Rabale, Navi Mumbai - 400701
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Dehradun Unit: Plot No 323/1, Central Hope Town, Camp Road, Selaqui, Dehradun - 248197

n) Address for investor correspondence
For any assistance regarding dematerialisation of shares, share transfers, transmissions, change of address, payment of div-
idend on shares and any other query relating to shares of the Company, Registrar & Share Transfer Agent may be contacted 
at the following address:

Registered Office

205, P N Kothari Industrial Estate L B S Marg Bhandup W,
 Mumbai, Maharashtra, 400078

Email: corporate@sanjivani.co.in
Website : www.sanjivani.co.in

MUFG Intime India Pvt. Ltd.
Unit: Sanjivani Paranteral Limited 
C-101, Embassy 247, L. B. S. Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai – 400083. Tel No.: (022) 49186270
Fax No.: (022) 49186060
Email: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

Shareholders holding shares in electronic mode should address all their correspondence to their respective Depository Par-
ticipants (DPs).

12. CEO/CFO Certification
As per requirement of Part B of Schedule II of Regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations, the Managing Director and CFO of
the Company have certified to the Board regarding Financial Statements for the year ended March 31st, 2025.

13. DISCLOSURES
a) There were no other related party transactions of material nature with the Promoters, Directors, the management or
relatives during the year that may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.
b) There were no instances of non-compliance on any matter related to the capital market during the past three years and 
that no penalties or strictures were imposed on the Company by Stock Exchange or SEBI.
c) The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy and Vigil Mechanism in place. The policy also provides a direct access to the 
Chairperson of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases. The Board affirms that no personnel have been denied access 
to the Audit Committee during the year in terms of the Whistle Blower Policy.
d) The Company has complied with mandatory provisions of corporate governance and is in the process of adopting the 
non- mandatory provisions of corporate governance. A certificate has been obtained from the Statutory Auditors of the 
Company regarding compliance of corporate governance and is attached to this report.
e) The policy on dealing with material subsidiaries is not applicable to the Company as there are no material subsidiaries.
f) The web link of policy on dealing with related party transactions is available on the website of the Company at the fol-
lowing link www.sanjivani.co.in 
g) There were no equity shares lying in the demat suspense account/ unclaimed suspense account as on March 31st, 
2025.
h) Commodity price risks & Commodity hedging activities
The Company has adequate risk assessment and minimisation system in place including for commodities. The Company 
does not have material exposure of any commodity and accordingly, no hedging activities for the same are carried out.
i) Details of utilisation of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement as specified under
Regulation 32 (7A) of the Listing Regulations: Not Applicable
j) A certificate has been received from M/s. HD and Associates, Company Secretaries, that none of the Directors on the 
Board of the Company has been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by 
the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority.
k) During the year under review, there were no instances where the Board had not accepted any recommendations of any 
of the Committees of the Board.
l) Total fees paid to the statutory auditor for all services:
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Sr. No. Particulars of Service Amount (` in Lakhs)
1. Statutory Audit 1,12,500
2. Tax Audit -
3. Limited Review -
4. Company Law Matters 12,500
5. Others Certification 35,000

Total 160,000

m) Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013: During the year under review, there were no complaints filed/received in terms of sexual harassment.

No. of complaints filed
during 2024-25

No. of complaints disposed 
of during 2024-25

No. of complaints pending
 as at March 31, 2025

Nil N.A. Nil

14. DISCRETIONARY REQUIREMENTS

a) The Board: The Company has an Executive Chairman and hence the requirement pertaining to reimbursement of ex-
penses to a Non-Executive Chairman does not arise.
b) Shareholders’ Right: As the financial results of the Company are published every quarter in English and Marathi news-
papers having a wide circulation, the same need not be sent to shareholders individually. However, the Company furnishes 
the quarterly and half yearly results on receipt of a request from the shareholders.
c) Audit Qualifications: There are no audit qualifications or observations on the Financial Statements for the year 2024-25.
d) Separate posts of Chairman and CEO: The position of Chairman and Managing Director are not separately held.
e) Reporting of Internal Auditor: The Internal auditors are invited to Audit Committee Meetings to make their presentation 
directly to the Audit Committee.

15. COMPLIANCE
A certificate from the Statutory Auditors of the Company regarding compliance of corporate governance and a declaration 
signed by the Chief Executive Officer stating that the members of the Board and senior management personnel have affirmed 
compliance to the Company’s code of conduct for the board of directors and senior management has been obtained and is 
attached to this report.

DECLARATION ON COMPLIANCE OF CODE OF CONDUCT
The Directors and Senior Managerial Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct applica-
ble to them as laid down by the Company in terms of regulation 17(5) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 during the year ended March 31, 2025.

Registered Office:                                                              
205, P N Kothari Industrial Estate 
L B S Marg Bhandup W, 
Mumbai, Maharashtra, 400078

By order of the Board of Directors
For Sanjivani Paranteral Limited

Date: 12th August, 2025
Place: Mumbai

Sd/-
Ravikumar Bogham
Company Secretary Cum Compliance Officer
ACS 36684



Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements

45Annual Report 2024-25

CERTIFICATE REGARDING COMPLIANCE WITH THE  
CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REQUIREMENTS 
UNDER SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE  
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

TO THE MEMBERS OF SANJIVANI PARANTERAL LIMITED 
1. We HD and Associates, the Secretarial Auditor of Sanjivani Paranteral Limited (“the Company”) have examined the compliance of 
conditions of Corporate Governance by the Company, for the year ended on 31st March, 2025, as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 
and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and Para C, D and E of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Require-
ments) Regulations, 2015 as amended (“SEBI Listing Regulations”).

Managements’ Responsibility
2. he compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. The responsibility includes the de-
sign, implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures to ensure the compliance with the conditions of the Corporate 
Governance stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Auditor’s Responsibility 

3. Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring compli-
ance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of 
the Company. 

4. We have examined the books of account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Company for the purposes of 
providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by the Company. 

5. We have carried out an examination of the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the Guidance Note on Certification of 
Corporate Governance issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (the “ICSI”). 
6. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms 
that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

Opinion 

7. Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanations provided to us and the repre-
sentation provided by the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as 
stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and Para C, D and E of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regu-
lations during the year ended 31st March, 2025. 

8. We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effective-
ness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Restriction on Use

9. The certificate is addressed and provided to the members of the Company solely for the purpose to enable the Company to comply 
with the requirement of the Listing Regulations, and it should not be used by any other person or for any other purpose. Accordingly, we 
do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this certificate is shown 
or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing. We have no responsibility to update this certificate for any event 
or circumstances occurring after the date of this certificate.

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 12th August, 2025
UDIN: A047700G000982251
Peer Review No: 2208/2022

For HD and Associates
Company Secretaries

SD/-
    _______________________

Hardik Darji
Practicing company secretary

Proprietor
ACS NO. 47700 C.P.NO.: 21073

FRN: S2018MH634200
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To
The Members of
SANJIVANI PARANTERAL LIMITED.

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of SANJIVANI PARANTERAL LIMITED. (“the Compa-
ny”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Compre-
hensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended on that date, 
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Standalone 
Financial Statements”).
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Standalone Fi-
nancial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a 
true and fair view in conformity with the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Compa-
nies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025 and its profit, total comprehensive income, the changes 
in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion
We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statement in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) specified 
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Respon-
sibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the 
Rules framed thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and 
the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial 
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a 
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined 
that there are no key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information in-
cluded in the Report on Corporate Governance, Shareholder information and Report of the Board of Directors & Management 
Discussion and Analysis, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we con-
clude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to 
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the prepa-
ration of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance 
including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and 
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other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the ac-
curacy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of account-
ing unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to 
do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
	
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reason-
able assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism through-
out the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and ap-
propriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion 
on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by the management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes 
it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be in-
fluenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluat-
ing the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
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regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most signif-
icance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, 
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in 
terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act 2013, we give in the Annexure “A”, a statement on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our 
examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Chang-
es in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone IND AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2025 taken on record by the 
Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms 
of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion 
on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone 
financial statements.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of section 
197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 
197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.
ii. The Company did not have any outstanding long-term contracts including derivative contracts as at 31st March 2024 
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.
iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by 
the Company.
iv. a. The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced 
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understand-
ing, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other  
persons  or  entities  identified  in  any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) 
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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b. The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by 
the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide 
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

c. Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing 
has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of rule 11(e), 
as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement; and

v. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

vi.Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software for maintaining its 
books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and 
the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course 
of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

For M/s R.B. Gohil & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No: 119360W

Place: Mumbai                                                                                                                                           
Dated: 27th May 2025  

RAGHUBHA B GOHIL
Partner

Membership No.: 104997
UDIN: 25104997BMGESQ5039
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ANNEXURE- A TO THE AUDIT REPORT
The Annexure referred to the Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of the Company on the standalone financial state-
ments for the year ended 31st March, 2025, we report that:

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation of 
Property, plant and equipment.
(a) (B) The Company does not own any intangible assets and hence this clause is not applicable.
(b) As explained to us, these Property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management at reasonable 
intervals. No material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.
(c) Based on test check examination of the records and sale deeds/ transfer deeds/ lease deeds/ conveyance deeds/ property 
tax receipts and such other documents provided to us, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the 
company as at the balance sheet date.
(d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including Right-of-use assets) or Intangible assets or 
both during the year ended March 31, 2025.
(e) There are no proceedings initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2025 for holding 
any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(ii) (a) As explained to us, inventories have been physically verified by the management at regular intervals during the year and 
there were no material discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to the book records.
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, at any point of time of the year, the Company has not been 
sanctioned any working capital facility from banks or financial institutions and hence reporting under clause (ii)(b) of the Order 
is not applicable.

(iii) As informed to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability part-
nership firm or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, 
clause iii (a), iii (b), iii (c), iii (d), iii (e) and iii (f) are not applicable.

(iv) There are no transactions undertaken by the company which attracts provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and hence this clause is not applicable.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable. We are informed by the management that No order has been passed by the 
Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other tribunal in this 
regard.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts relating to materials, labour and other items of cost maintained by the 
company pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) 
of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and we are of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed accounts and records 
have been made and maintained.
 
(vii) In respect of statutory dues :

(a) According to the records of the company, undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employee’s State Insur-
ance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, Cess and other statutory dues 
have been generally regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities.
 		
(b) There were no disputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, cess and other material statutory
dues in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(viii) During the year, there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or disclosed 
as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(ix) (a) The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any 
lender during the year.
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(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government 
authority.

(c) In our opinion and According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has utilised the money obtained 
by way of term loans during the year for the purposes for which they were obtained.

(d) There are no fresh short-term loans obtained by the company during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report that the Company 
has not raised  loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 
2013. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

(x)(a) The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Hence this clause is not applicable.

(b) The company has made preferential allotment of equity shares during the year under review. Based on our audit proce-
dures and according to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that the company has complied 
with all the requirements of section 42 of the Companies Act. 2013 and the amount raised have been used for the purpose for 
which the funds were raised.
 
(xi)(a) Based on our audit procedures and the information and explanation made available to us, no fraud by the company or 
no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.
(b)During the year and up to the date of this report, no report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed by the auditors in 
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during 
the year and upto the date of this report.
(c)There were no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year.

(xii)The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under this clause is not applicable.

(xiii)All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applica-
ble and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)(a) In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.
(b) We have considered the internal audit reports issued to the company for the period under audit.

(xv)The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.

(xvi)(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, 
reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable.
	
(d) The Group does not have any CIC as part of the group and accordingly reporting under clause (xvi)(d) of the Order is not 
applicable.

(xvii)The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year or in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii)There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial 
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Manage-
ment plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, 
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is 
not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year 
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We 
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor 
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the 
Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent amount under sub-sec-
tion (5) of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to any project. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the 
Order are not applicable.
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For M/s R.B. Gohil & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No: 119360W

Place: Mumbai                                                                                                                                           
Dated: 27th May 2025  

RAGHUBHA B GOHIL
Partner

Membership No.: 104997
UDIN: 25104997BMGESQ5039
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Sanjivani Paranteral Ltd (the Company) as of 31st 
March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that 
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Char-
tered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, includ-
ing adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an 
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and 
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls sys-
tem over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting 
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstate-
ment of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regard-
ing the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those poli-
cies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and 
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and 
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or 
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk 
that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that 
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to 
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements were operating 
effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control with reference to Standalone Financial Statements criteria 
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established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note  on Audit  
of  Internal  Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India (“ICAI”).

For M/s R.B. Gohil & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No: 119360W

Place: Mumbai                                                                                                                                           
Dated: 27th May 2025  

RAGHUBHA B GOHIL
Partner

Membership No.: 104997
UDIN: 25104997BMGESQ5039
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Standalone Balance Sheet 
As At 31st March, 2025
(All amounts in Rs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes As at 31st March 
2025

As at 31st March 
2024

1.  Assets :   
 A )  Non-Current Assets 	
 Property, plant and equipment & Intangible Assets 2  205,636,139  99,420,546 
 Property, Plant & Equipment 
  Financial assets 
 Investments 3  30,000,000  -   
      Deferred Tax Assets(Net)  -    -   
 Trade Receivables 6  6,263,247  2,867,693 
 Loans 4  14,918,323  36,171,767 
 Other Non-Current Assets 
  Other Non Current Assets 4  12,110,715  9,203,124 

 B )  Current Assets 
 Current Investments 
 Inventories 5  104,166,831  97,330,785 
 Financial assets  -   
 Trade Receivables 6  166,792,230  46,974,495 
 Cash & Cash Equivalents 7  6,333,972  5,407,932 
 Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents 8  9,269,037  90,233,247 
 Loans 4  86,808,766  37,558,038 
  Other Non-Current Assets  -    -   
 Other current assets 4  7,659,820  8,885,553 

 Total Assets  649,959,081  434,053,180 

 2.  Equity And Liabilities : 
 A )  Equity 
 Equity Share Capital 9  118,816,940  116,843,000 
 Other equity 10  261,189,005  162,144,516 

B )  Non-Current Liabilities 

 Financial liabilities 
 Borrowings 11  52,886,265  9,691,314 
 Provisions 16  4,785,356  4,036,911 
 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 12  7,663,250  3,534,830 

      C )  Current Liabilities 
 Financial liabilities 
 Borrowings 13  3,360,573  -   
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 Trade Payables 
Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises & Small 
Enterprises

14  8,309,383  7,152,450 

Total outstanding dues of Creditors other than Micro 
Enterprises & Small Enterprises

14  144,231,257  50,257,839 

 Other financial liabilities 15  700,000 
 Other current Liabilities 15  33,328,375  69,527,022 
 Provisions 16  15,388,678  10,165,298 

Total Equity and Liabilities  649,959,081  434,053,180 
 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 		 1.2

As per our Report of even date 			 
			 
 For M/s R.B. Gohil & Co. 	 For & On Behalf Of Board Of Directors		
 Chartered Accountants              			 
 FRN :- 119360W 			 
		
			 
( Raghubha B Gohil) 		  Ashwani Khemka 	 Srivardhan Khemka	 Pritesh Jain
 Partner 			   Chairman & 		  Director			  Chief Financial Officer
 Membership No.104997 		 Managing Director 			 
 UDIN : 25104997BMGEST3635 	  						    
 Place  :  Mumbai 		  DIN : 00337118 		  DIN : 08942106	
 Dated  : 27th May 2025 	
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Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss
The Year Ended 31st March, 2025

Particulars Notes For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

1.  Income :   
 Revenue From Operations 17  700,986,125  544,105,743 
 Other Income 18  12,134,978  5,172,062 

 Total Income  713,121,103  549,277,805 
 

 2.  Expenditure :   
Cost Of Material Consumed 19  335,629,688  343,735,202 
 Purchases Of Stock-In-Trade  -    -   

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-
progress & stock-in-trade 

20  69,207,096  (58,892,943)

Employee Benefits Expenses 21  64,931,784  40,971,210 
Finance Cost 22  5,927,351  2,535,272 
Depreciation And Amortization Expenses 2  6,209,073  9,331,402 
Other Expenses 23  127,616,795  135,881,802 

 609,521,787  473,561,945 

Profit Before Tax  103,599,316  75,715,860 
Less :  Provision For Tax - Current Year 24  18,380,000  13,477,000 
                                       - Previous Years 24  72,467  106,390 
                                       - Deferred Tax 24  4,128,420  480,994 
Profit For The Year  81,018,429  61,651,476 

Earning Per Share  ( Equity Shares , Par value Rs. 10/- 
each) 
-- Basic  6.89  5.28 
-- Diluted  6.67  5.28 

No. of shares for Computing Earning Per Share -- Basic  11,752,990  11,684,300 
                                                            -- Diluted  12,155,596  11,684,300 

 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies            1.2

As per our Report of even date 			 
			 
 For M/s R.B. Gohil & Co. 		  For & On Behalf Of Board Of Directors		
 Chartered Accountants              			 
 FRN :- 119360W 	 		
					   

			 
( Raghubha B Gohil) 			   Ashwani Khemka 	 Srivardhan Khemka	 Pritesh Jain
 Partner 			    	 Chairman & 		  Director			  Chief Financial Officer
 Membership No.104997 			  Managing Director 			 
 UDIN : 25104997BMGEST3635 					   
 Place  :  Mumbai 			    DIN : 00337118 		  DIN : 08942106	
 Dated  : 27th May 2025 	 					   

(All amounts in Rs, unless otherwise stated)
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(All amounts in Rs, unless otherwise stated)

Standalone Statement of Cash Flow
The Year Ended 31st March 2024

Particulars As at 31st March 
2025

As at 31st 
March 2024

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before tax  103,599,316  75,715,860 
Adjustments for reconcile profit (loss)

Adjustments for finance costs  5,171,809  1,239,879 
Adjustments for depreciation and amortisation expense  6,209,073  9,331,402 
Adjustment for Dividend Income  (60,000)  -   
Adjustment for Interest Income  (3,328,637)  (607,943)
Impairment on trade receivables  (711,223)  (2,256,962)
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of Property, plant and equipment - -

Operating profit before changes in operating assets and 
liabilities

 110,880,338  83,422,236 

Change in operating assets and liabilities :
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables, non current  (3,576,332)  1,525,750 
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables, current  (118,925,735)  (27,979,029)
Decrease (Increase) in other current assets  1,225,733  (5,450,209)
Decrease (Increase) in other non-current assets  (2,907,591)  3,187,749 
Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories  (6,836,047)  (43,860,974)
Adjustments for other financial assets, current  (49,250,728)  (34,718,615)
Adjustments for other financial assets, non-current  21,253,444  1,388,367 
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade payables, current  95,130,351  (79,821,869)
Adjustments for other financial liabilities, current  (700,000)  (89,466)
Increase (Decrease) in other current liabilities  (36,198,647)  6,071,177 
Adjustments for provisions, non-current  748,445  425,627 
Cash generated from operating Activity  10,843,231  (95,899,255)

Taxes paid  (13,229,088)  (11,134,407)
Cash flow before Extraordinary items  (2,385,856)  (107,033,662)

Extra ordinary items - -
NET CASH FLOWS FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITY  (2,385,856)  (107,033,662)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITY
Payments for acquisition of Property, plant and equipment  (112,424,666)  (33,022,076)
Proceeds from sale of investments  -    500,000 
Investments in Equity Capital - Subsidiaries  (30,000,000) -
Proceeds from / (Investment in) Fixed deposits (net)  80,964,210  (90,233,247)
Interest Received  3,328,637  607,943 
Dividend Received  60,000  -   

NET CASH FLOWS FROM (USED IN ) INVESTING ACTIVITIES  (58,071,819)  (122,147,380)
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Particulars As at 31st March 
2025

As at 31st 
March 2024

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY
Proceeds/(Repayments) from borrowings  46,555,525  (15,243,705)
Proceeds from issuing shares  20,000,000  248,047,100 
Interest Paid  (5,171,809)  (1,239,879)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES  61,383,716  231,563,516 

NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  926,040  2,382,475 

Cash and cash equivalents cash flow statement at beginning of the year  5,407,932  3,025,458 

Cash and cash equivalents cash flow statement at end of the year  6,333,972  5,407,932 

 Cash and Cash equivalents comprise of - 

 Cash on hand  109,696  225,298 
 Bank Balance  6,224,277  5,182,634 
 Total  6,333,972  5,407,932 

Notes:		
1.	 The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under indirect method in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard - 7 noti-

fied under section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. 			
2.	 Figures in brackets represents outflow.				  
		
As Per Our Report Of Even Date              For and on behalf of the board of Directors		
For M/s R.B. Gohil & Co.		
Chartered Accountants		
FRN :- 119360W				  
	
( Raghubha B Gohil)                                 Ashwani Khemka	                Srivardhan Khemka	 Pritesh Jain
Partner                                                       Chairman & Managing 		 Director	Director 		 Chief Financial Officer
Membership No. 104997                                 		
UDIN : 25104997BMGEST3635		
Place  :  Mumbai                                        DIN : 00337118 		  DIN : 08942106	
Dated  : 27th May 2025	 	
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Note No. : 1

1.Corporate Information 
Sanjivani Paranteral Limited is a public company domiciled in India and is incorporated on 5th October 1994 under the provi-
sions of the Companies Act applicable in India. Its shares are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange in India. The registered 
office of the company is located at 205, P.N Kothari Ind. Estate, L B S Marg, Bhandup (W), Mumbai – 400 078.
Sanjivani Paranteral Limited is a research based, international pharmaceutical company that provides a wide range of 
high-quality product and services, at affordable prices. The core product range of the company’s products includes oral solids, 
small volume parenteral and sterile powder formulations.

2. Significant Accounting Policy 

2.1 Basis of preparation 
The standalone financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under 
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), and relevant rules issued thereunder and the relevant provisions of the 
Act. In accordance with proviso to the Rule 4A of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the terms used in these financial 
statements are in accordance with the definitions and other requirements specified in the applicable Accounting Standards.
The financial statement have been prepared on a historical cost basis. The financial statement are presented in INR.

Current versus non-current classification
The Company segregates assets and liabilities into current and non-current categories for presentation in the balance sheet 
after considering its normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Ind AS 1, “Presentation of Financial Statements”. For 
this purpose, current assets and liabilities include the current portion of non-current assets and liabilities respectively. Deferred 
tax assets and liabilities are always classified as non-current.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equiv-
alents. The Company has identified period up to twelve months as its operating cycle.

Use of judgements, estimates & assumptions
While preparing financial statements in conformity with Ind AS, the management makes certain estimates and assumptions 
that require subjective and complex judgments. These judgments affect the application of accounting policies and the reported 
amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, disclosure of contingent liabilities at the statement of financial position 
date and the reported amount of income and expenses for the reporting period. Financial reporting results rely on our estimate 
of the effect of certain matters that are inherently uncertain. Future events rarely develop exactly as forecast and the best 
estimates require adjustments, as actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. 
The management continually evaluates these estimates and assumptions based on the most recently available information.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods 
affected. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying account-
ing policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are as below:
The Company has equity stake in its subsidiary – SPL Infusion Private Limited for strategic reasons concerning its operation. 
The relationship with this entity have been determined based on principles laid down in Ind AS 110 – Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 

2.2 Summary of Significant accounting policies
a. Current versus non-current classification
The company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification. An asset is 
treated as current when it is:

• Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
• Held primarily for the purpose of trading
• Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settled a liability for at least twelve months 
after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
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• It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current 
assets and liabilities. The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in 
cash and cash equivalents. The company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b. Foreign currencies
The company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the company’s functional currency. 

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the company at functional currency spot rates at the date the 
transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the company uses an average rate if the average 
approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of ex-
change at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in 
profit or loss 
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates 
at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using 
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items 
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item.

c. Revenue Recognition 
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue 
can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the con-
sideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties 
collected on behalf of the government. 

Revenue from contracts
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of Ownership of the goods have passed 
to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consider-
ation received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. 

Interest income
Interest income is recognized based on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the interest 
rate applicable. Interest income is included in other Income in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividends
Revenue is recognised when the company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when shareholders 
approve the dividend.

d. Taxes
Current income tax

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the 
tax authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax laws prevailing in the respective tax ju-
risdictions where the Company operates. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted 
or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. 
Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other com-
prehensive income or directly in equity). Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect 
to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities 
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all 
taxable temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised 
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that 
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future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is 
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the 
reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against 
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

e. Property, plant and equipment

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when 
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (cal-
culated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement 
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company derecognises 
the replaced part, and recognises the new part with its own associated useful life and depreciation, only if it increases the 
future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other repair and mainte-
nance costs are recognised in the statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates arrived at based on the useful lives estimated by the man-
agement. The Company has used the following rates to provide depreciation on its fixed assets:

Building 15 to 20 years
Plant and equipment 5 to 15 years

Depreciation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part 
of an item of property, plant and equipment, since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future 
economic benefits.
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial 
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

f. Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substan-
tial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing 
costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs 
in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an 
adjustment to the borrowing costs.

g. Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:
Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and 
condition. Cost is determined on First in First out (FIFO) basis.

h. Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying 
amount may not be recoverable. Such circumstances include, though not limited to, significant or sustained decline in reve-
nues or earnings and material adverse changes in the economic environment.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recover-
able amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs 
to sell and its value in use. To calculate the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value 
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market rates and the risks specific to the asset. 

Fair value less costs to sell is the best estimate of the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length trans-
action between knowledgeable, willing parties, less cost of disposal. In determining fair value less costs to sell, recent market 
transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is 
used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, or other available fair value indicators. Impairment losses, if 
any, are recognised in the statement of profit or loss as component of depreciation and amortisation expense.
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The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecasts which are prepared separately for each of 
the Company’s CGU to which assets are allocated. These budget and forecast calculations are generally covering a period 
of five years. 

i. Provisions

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event and it 
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be 
made of the amount of the obligation.  Where the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reim-
bursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a 
provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss, net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, 
the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of the time is 
recognised as a finance cost.

j. Retirement and other employee benefits

The gratuity liability is defined benefit obligation and is provided on actual basis.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. 
The company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the 
unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

k. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument 
of another entity.

Financial assets
a) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value 
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales 
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the mar-
ket place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase 
or sell the asset.

b) Subsequent measurement
The Company determines the classification of its financial assets and liabilities at initial recognition. Financial assets 
are classified in four categories:
• Debt instruments at amortised cost;
• Equity instruments measured at fair value through OCI

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and inter-
est (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently mea-
sured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any 
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included 
in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category 
generally applies to trade and other receivables. For more information on receivables, refer to Note 6 and 29.

Equity investments
All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are 
classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other 
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument by-instru-
ment basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.
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c) Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual right to receive the cash flows from the asset ex-
pires or it has transferred the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through ar-
rangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. 

d) Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition 
of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:
• Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., trade receivables;
• Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are 
within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18 

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables or contract 
revenue receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises 
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade 
receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receiv-
ables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated 
and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed. On that basis, the Company estimates the following provision 
matrix at the reporting date:

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the statement 
of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. 

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and borrowings, payables as appropriate.
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly 
attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings.
Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

This is the most relevant category to the Company. After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subse-
quently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement 
of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate method (EIR) amortisation 
process.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an ex-
isting financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing 
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and 
the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss.

l. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original 
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined 
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the company’s cash management.
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m. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by 
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a frac-
tion of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during 
the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events 
such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have 
changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders 
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential 
equity shares.

n. Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence 
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is 
not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. The Company 
does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

o. Segment Reporting - Identification of Segments:

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues 
and incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the company’s management to make decisions for 
which discrete financial information is available.

Based on the management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the management evaluates the Company’s performance and 
allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments and geographic segments.

The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing pharmaceutical products. All other activities of the Company re-
volve around the main business. As such there are no separate primary reportable business segments as defined by AS 108 
(Segmental Reporting).

p. Investments in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures

A Subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by another entity. An investor controls an investee if and only if the investor has the 
following; (i) Power over the investee, (ii) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and (iii) 
the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.

An Associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in 
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A Joint Venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the 
net assets of the Joint Venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only 
when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
The Company’s investments in its Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures are accounted at cost.
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Note 2

For year ended March 31, 2025
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 Notes No. 3 :- Investments 

 Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
Investments in Equity Instruments (fully paid up) - Unquoted

 Investment in Subsidiaries - measured at cost 
 - SPL Infusion Private Limited ( 84,000 equity shares of face value Rs 
100 each)   30,000,000  -   

 30,000,000  -   

 Aggregate book value of quoted investments  -    -   

 Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  30,000,000 

 Aggregate value of investments measured at cost  30,000,000  -   

Notes No. 4 :- Loans

 Particulars 
  

 Long Term   Short Term

 31.03.2025  31.03.2024  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 

 Considered good - unsecured 

 Financial assets 

 Loan to subsidiaries  -    -    75,748,072  -   

 Loan to others  6,003,910  22,673,411  285,000  114,000 

 Advance To Suppliers   -    -    10,775,694  37,444,038 

 Advance for capital assets  6,118,470  11,106,370  -    -   

 Security Deposits   2,795,943  2,391,986  -    -   

  14,918,323  36,171,767  86,808,766  37,558,038 

Other assets

 EMD  914,105  1,979,102  -    -   

 Prepaid Expenses   -    -    377,862  148,917 

 Export Incentives Receivable  -    -    481,895  183,513 
 Fixed Deposit Having Maturity Period More Than 
One Year  5,645,896  101,000  -    -   

 Balances with Statutory Authorities  5,550,714  7,123,021  6,800,063  8,553,123 

 Other assets  12,110,715  9,203,124  7,659,820  8,885,553 

 27,029,038  45,374,890  94,468,586  46,443,592 
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Notes No. 5 :- Inventories

 Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 

 Raw Materials  85,809,112  10,571,892 

 Packing Material  8,532,840  7,726,917 

 Finished Goods  9,824,879  79,031,976 

 104,166,831  97,330,785 

Notes No. 6 :- Trade Receivables

Notes No. 7 :- Cash & Bank Equivalents

Notes No. 8 :- Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents

 Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 

 Balances With Banks  6,224,277  5,182,634 

 Cash On Hand  109,696  225,298 

 6,333,972  5,407,932 

 Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 

Term Deposit with maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 
Months 		   9,269,037  90,233,247 

 9,269,037  90,233,247 

 Particulars  Non-Current portion Current portion

   31.03.2025  31.03.2024  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 

Considered good - unsecured  6,263,247  2,867,693  166,792,230  46,974,495 

Considered credit impaired  698,523  517,745  544,249  1,436,249 

 Less: Allowance for expected credit loss  (698,523)  (517,745)  (544,249)  (1,436,249)

 6,263,247  2,867,693  166,792,230  46,974,495 
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Note No. 9:- Share Capital

 Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
Authorised :  1,50,00,000 Equity Shares Of Rs. 10/- Each ( P.Y 
1,00,00,000 Equity Shares Of Rs. 10/- Each )  150,000,000  100,000,000 

Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up Capital: 1,18,81,694 Shares Of Rs. 
10/- Each ( P.Y - 1,16,84,300 Shares Of Rs. 10/- Each ) 	  118,816,940  116,843,000 

 118,816,940  116,843,000 

 Particulars No. of shares % of total Shares % change during the year

Ashwani Khemka  3,223,045 27.13% 0.17%

Naina Khemka  207,410 1.75% 0.00%

 Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 

No. of shares % Holdings No. of shares % Holdings

Ashwani Khemka  3,223,045 27.13%  3,025,651 25.90%

Kanta Suresh Jain  747,868 6.29%  837,656 7.17%

Suresh Pukhraj Jain  787,249 6.63%  837,428 7.17%

India Equity Fund 1  600,000 5.05%  600,000 5.14%

 Reconciliation of No. of Equity Shares  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 

 No. of Shares Outstanding at the  beginning of the year  11,684,300  9,998,300 

 Add: No. of Shares issued during the year  197,394  1,686,000 

 No. of Shares outstanding at the end of the year  11,881,694  11,684,300 

Reconciliation of shares outstanding as at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period :

Rights, preference and restrictions attached to Equity shares

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% in the company

Details of shares held by promoters/promoter group as at March 31, 2025

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote 
per equity share. The shareholders are entitled to dividend declared on proportionate basis. On liquidation of the Company, 
the equity shareholders are eligible to receive remaining assets of the Company in proportion to their shareholding after 
distribution of all preferential amounts.					   
				  

 Particulars No. of shares % of total Shares % change during the year

Ashwani Khemka  3,025,651 25.90% 0.25%

Naina Khemka  207,410 1.78% 0.00%

Details of shares held by promoters/promoter group as at March 31, 2024
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Notes No. 10 :- Other Equity

Description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity is as follows:

Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
Capital Reserve 

 As Per Last Balance Sheet  387,572,849  387,572,849 
Share Premium  

 As Per Last Balance Sheet  263,168,600  52,250,000 
 Add: Premium on equity shares issued  24,693,989  210,918,600 

 287,862,589  263,168,600 
Retained Earnings

 As Per Last Balance Sheet  (508,865,433)  (570,516,909)
 Add :- Profit For Year  81,018,428  61,651,476 

 (427,847,004)  (508,865,433)
Money received against share warrants

 As Per Last Balance Sheet  20,268,500  -   

Add: Amount received during the year  20,000,000  20,268,500 

Less: Transferred to Equity Share Capital during the year  26,667,929  -   

 13,600,571  20,268,500 

a.	 Capital Reserve					   

Capital Reserve was recognised on giving effect of Waiver of Loan settlement undertaken with Asset Reconstruction Company.
										        

b.	 Share Premium

Share Premium is recognised as difference between price of issue of equity shares and face value of equity shares.		
							     

c.	 Retained Earnings	 				  

Retained earnings are the net profits / losses that the Company has earned till date and is net of amount transferred to other 
reserves such as general reserves, amount distributed as dividend and adjustments, if any, in terms of Ind AS 101.

During the financial year 2023–24, the Company issued 6,00,000 share warrants to the Promoter, Mr. Ashwin Khemka, on a prefer-
ential basis at Rs 135.10 per warrant, each convertible into one equity share of face value Rs 10. In accordance with SEBI (ICDR) 
Regulations, 25% of the issue price, i.e., Rs 33.78 per warrant, aggregating to Rs 2,02,68,000 was received during FY 2023–24. 
 
In FY 2024–25, 1,97,394 warrants were exercised and converted into equity shares upon receipt of the balance 75% of the issue 
price (Rs 101.325 per share). The balance 4,02,606 warrants remain outstanding and are valid for conversion until 5th August, 2025. 
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 Notes No. 11 :- Borrowings 
 Particulars  Non-Current portion  Current portion 

 31.03.2025  31.03.2024  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
 Term  Loans from Banks  48,113,694  -    1,315,678  -   
 Vehicle Loans from Banks  4,138,709  -    544,895  -   
 Loan From Director & Relatives  633,862  9,691,314  -    -   
   52,886,265  9,691,314  1,860,573  -   
 The Above Includes  
 Secured Loans  52,252,403  -    1,860,573  -   
 Unsecured Loans  633,862  9,691,314  -    -   

 52,886,265  9,691,314  1,860,573  -   
 Less Current Portion Disclosed Under 
"Current Borrowings"  -    -    1,860,573  -   

 52,886,265  9,691,314  -    -   

Notes 12 :- Deferred Tax Liabilities (net)

Notes 14 :- Trade Payables

Notes 13 :- Borrowings

 Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
 Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets) 
 Net Book Value Of Fixed Assets As Per Books And Tax Laws  7,971,513  5,318,404 
 Disallowances under Income Tax Act  -    -   
 Value Of Closing Stock Between Books And Income Tax Act.  (308,263)  (1,783,575)

 7,663,250  3,534,830 

 Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
 i. Due to Micro, Small And Medium Enterprises  85,50,549  71,52,450 
 ii. Due to Others 14,39,90,091  50,2,57,839 

 15,25,40,640  5,74,10,289 

 Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
 Secured Loans 
 Current maturities of non-current borrowings  1,860,573  -   
 Unsecured Loans 
 Current maturities of non-current borrowings  -    -   
 Inter-Corporate Deposits  1,500,000 
   3,360,573  -   
 The Above Includes  
 Secured Loans  1,860,573  -   
 Unsecured Loans  1,500,000  -   

 3,360,573  -   

Details of Securities & Other Terms				  

1. Term Loan from Banks - Secured by mortgage against immovable property of its Rabale plant and repayable in 180 equal 
monthly installments.		
2. Term Loan from Vehicles - Secured by charge on vehicle purchased and repayable in 84 equal monthly installments.	
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Notes No. 15 :- Current Liabilities

 Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
 Other Financial liabilities 

 Security Deposits  -    700,000 
 -    700,000 

 Other current liabilities 
 Advance From Customers  3,933,126  50,211,996 
 Sundry Creditors for Expenses  26,605,797  14,600,877 
 Duties & Taxes Payable  2,789,452  4,714,149 

 33,328,375  69,527,022 

Notes No. 16 :- Provisions
  
Particulars  Non - Current  Current 
   31.03.2025  31.03.2024  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
 Provision For Tax  -    -    15,388,678  10,165,299 
 Provision for Gratuity  4,785,356  4,036,911  -    -   

 4,785,356  4,036,911  15,388,678  10,165,299 

Notes No. 17 :- Revenue From Operations 		
		
 Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
 Sale of Products - Domestic  110,285,031  76,807,833 
 Sale of Products - Exports  525,309,334  400,607,832 
 Domestic Services - Contract Manufacturing  59,775,411  57,963,772 
 Domestic Services - Others  251,500  1,491,946 
 Export Incentives  5,364,849  7,234,360 

 700,986,125  544,105,743 
		
Reconciliation of gross revenue with the revenue from Contracts with Customers :		
 
Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
Gross Revenue  711,909,213  545,302,105 
Less: Discounts and incentives  10,923,088  1,196,362 
Net Revenue recognised from Contracts with Customers  700,986,125  544,105,743 

		
Notes No. 18 :- Other Income 		
  		
 Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
 Interest Received  3,328,637  324,248 
 Miscellaneous Income   1,031,528  263,835 
 Dividend From Shares  60,000  -   
 Discount  (3,839)  124,312 
 Exchange Rate Fluctuation  7,718,652  4,175,973 
 Sundry Balances Written Back  -    283,696 

 12,134,978  5,172,062 
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Notes No. 19 :- Cost Of Material Consumed 
	 	
Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
Opening Stock   18,298,809  33,330,779 
Add : Purchase  (Net)  411,672,831  328,703,233 

 429,971,640  362,034,011 
Less : Closing Stock  94,341,952  18,298,809 

 335,629,688  343,735,202 

Notes No. 20 :- Increase/Decrease In Stock Of Finished Goods 	

 Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
 Closing Stock 

 Finished Goods  9,824,879  79,031,976 
 Semi Finished Goods  -    -   

 9,824,879  79,031,976 
 Less : Opening Stock 

 Finished Goods  79,031,976  20,139,032 
 Semi Finished Goods  -    -   

 79,031,976  20,139,032 
 (69,207,096)  58,892,943 

 
Notes No. 21 :- Employee Benefits Expenses 		
 Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
 Salaries, wages and bonus  45,727,174  34,647,447 
 Contribution to Provident and Other Funds  686,659  607,169 
 Retirement benefit expenses  1,330,157  425,627 
 Staff welfare expenses  2,187,794  1,690,967 
 Directors Remuneration  15,000,000  3,600,000 

 64,931,784  40,971,210 

Notes No. 22 :- Finance Cost 		
 Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
 Interest Expense - Bank Borrowings  4,112,344  -   
 Interest Expense - Others  2,973  1,239,879 
 Bank Charges  755,542  1,295,393 
 Other Borrowing Costs  1,056,492  -   

 5,927,351  2,535,272 
		
Notes No. 23 :- Other Expenses  		
 Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
 Manufacturing Expenses  
 Consumption of stores and spare parts  143,058  621,567 
 Power and Fuel  4,306,395  3,297,509 
 Water Charges  347,309  328,251 
 Import Expenses  1,523,624  1,190,853 
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 Production Expenses  6,757,764  9,711,691 
 Electricity Expenses  9,056,816  7,753,389 
 Analytical Charges  2,080,592  1,831,556 
 Processing Charges  6,497,941  15,909,261 
 Repairs & Maintenance 
     - Building  491,740  114,629 
     - Machinery  7,330,402  2,016,321 
 Security Charges  605,696  376,413 

 39,141,338  43,151,439 

Selling & Administrative Expenses
 Advertisement & Publicity Expenses  1,572,663  981,391 
 Printing & Stationery   1,022,075  933,383 
 Rent, Rates & Taxes   4,301,362  5,210,184 
 Conveyance   1,352,871  720,556 
 Product Designing  &  Art Work Charges  5,000  831,250 
 Freight  2,608,557  3,839,322 
 Export Freight & Other Charges  15,783,267  19,587,772 
 Repairs & Maintenance - Others  1,264,324  634,522 
 Product Registration Expenses  154,730  2,322,035 
 Vehicle Expenses  803,512  558,098 
 Legal & Professional Fees  2,179,855  7,594,068 
 Legal Fees  363,828  1,063,908 
 Company Secretarial charges  882,628  147,750 
 Customs Agency Charges  1,139,496  4,041,235 
 Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses  1,816,280  -   
 Postage & Courier Charges  401,300  490,052 
 Impairment Provision/(Reversal) on trade receivables  (711,223)  (2,256,962)
 Bad debts written off  734,422  1,473,397 
 Communication Expenses  295,038  360,296 
 Commission on sales  25,986,923  19,366,834 
 Research and Development Expenses  5,735,499  646,248 
 Selling & Business Promotion Expenses  6,536,378  5,826,546 
 Insurance  586,697  774,170 
 Payment To Auditors 
       For Audit Fees   125,000  100,000 
 Travelling Expenses  9,819,426  14,198,843 
 Donation  646,362  883,000 
 Office & Miscellaneous Expenses  2,063,324  1,107,066 
 Indirect Tax expenses  160,300  1,295,399 
 Seminar and Conference Expenses  845,565  -   

 88,475,457  92,730,363 
 127,616,795  135,881,802 
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Notes No. 24 :- Tax Expenses 		

 Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
 Income tax expenses 
 a) Current Tax 
 In respect of the current year  18,380,000  13,477,000 
 In respect of the earlier year  72,467  106,390 
 b) Deferred Tax  4,128,420  480,994 

 22,580,888  14,064,384 
		
(c) A reconciliation between the Statutory income tax rate applicable to the Company and the effective income tax rate is as 
follows		
		
 Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
Net profit before tax  103,599,316  75,715,860 
Effective tax rate applicable to the Company 27.82% 27.82%
Tax amount at the enacted income tax rate  28,821,330  21,064,152 
Add: Expenses not deductible in determining taxable profits  11,267,100  21,047,715 
Less: Allowances/Deductibles  (17,004,560)  (8,800,469)
Add: Tax related to earlier years  72,467  106,390 
Less: brought forward losses / MAT provisions  (4,703,869)  (19,834,398)
Incremental Deferred Tax liability/(Asset) on account of other tem-
porary differences

 4,128,420  480,994 

Tax expense as per the Statement of Profit and Loss  22,580,888  14,064,384 
 

Note No. 24:-  Contingent liabilities (To the Extent not provided for)

 Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts - -
Guarantees given by the Company’s bankers and counter guaran-
teed by the Company

- -

- -

Note No 25:-  Related Party Disclosures
	 			 
A) Relationships							     
							     
i) Key Management Personnel		  Ashwani Khemka			  Managing Director			 
					     Srivardhan Ashwani Khemka	 Director				  
					     Mrunmai Mahendra Sarvankar	 Independent Director			 
					     Monika Amit Singhania		  Independent Director			 
					     Shrenik Solanki			   Independent Director			 
	
							     
ii) Companies in which Directors and/or Genesen Labs Limited	
their relatives have significant influence				  
							     
iii) Subsidiary                                           SPL Infusion Private Limited
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B) Details Of Related Parties With Whom Transactions Have Taken Place During The Year				  
	
i) Ashwani Khemka			   -	 Managing Director			 
ii) Naina Khemka				    -	 Relative of Managing Director			 
							     
C) Details Of Transactions With The Related Parties During The Year		  				  
			 
Name Of The Parties Nature Of 

Transaction
 31.03.2024  31.03.2023 

1) Ashwani Khemka Remuneration  15,000,000  3,600,000 
2) Naina A. Khemka Remuneration  1,200,000  -   
3) Naina A. Khemka Rent for premises  600,000  600,000 
4) SPL Infusion Private Limited Investment in equity 

shares
 30,000,000  -   

5) SPL Infusion Private Limited Loan given  75,748,072  -   
							     

Note No. 26:-  Auditors Remuneration (exclusive of tax) 						    

Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
Statutory Audit Fees  125,000  100,000 

Note No. 27:-  Earnings per share 	

Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
Profit/(loss) after tax used in calculating basic and diluted earnings per share	
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of:		

 81,018,428  61,651,476 

 - Basic earnings per share  11,752,990  11,684,300 
 - Diluted earnings per share  12,155,596  11,684,300 
Nominal value per equity share (in Rs) 10 10
Earnings per share attributable to Equity Shareholders (in Rs)
- Basic earnings per share	  6.89  5.28 
- Diluted earnings per share  6.67  5.28 

Note 28: Corporate Social responsibility (CSR)						    
a) 						    
Particulars FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24
i) Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year as per section 
135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule VII

 1,022,378  -   

ii) Amount spent during the year  1,816,280  -   
iii) Excess spent amount  793,902  -   

b) Details of amount spent by the Company are as follows :						    
Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 

In cash Yet to be 
paid in cash Total In cash cash Total

Construction/acquisition of any asset - - - - - -
On purposes other than above  1,816,280 -  1,816,280 - - -
Total  1,816,280 -  1,816,280 - - -
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c) Nature of CSR activities :							     
Nature of CSR activities : Health and hygiene and Promotion of education.						    
	
d) There is no CSR expenditure transaction with related party.							     
e) There is no provision made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual obligation.			 
				  
Note No. 29. Capital Management							    

Capital includes equity shares and other reserves attributable to the equity shareholders. The primary objective of the Com-
pany’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and max-
imise shareholder value. The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic 
conditions or its business requirements.							     

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the year ended March 31, 2025. 
The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. Net debt is 
calculated as loans and borrowings, trade payables, interest accrued on borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.		
											         
Note No 30. Financial risk management objectives and policies						    

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings and trade and other payables. The main pur-
pose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets has loan 
and other receivables, trade and other receivables, and cash and short-term deposits that arrive directly from its operations.  
 
The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the 
management of these risks. The Company’s senior management is responsible to ensure that Company’s financial risk ac-
tivities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed 
in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The Company’s senior management oversees the appro-
priate financial risk governance framework for the Company. It is the Company’s policy that no trading in derivatives for 
speculative purposes may be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these 
risks, which are summarised below.							    

a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market prices. Market risk comprises of interest rate risk and currency risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk 
include: loans and borrowings and deposits, trade receivables and trade payables. 
						    
-Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of chang-
es in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the 
Company’s long-term debt and lease obligations with fixed interest rates.”						    
	
b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contact, 
leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily for trade receivables) 
and its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions and other financial instruments. Manage-
ment has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.  The Company uses a 
practical expedient in computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on ageing of the days the 
receivables are due.”

Ageing of the gross receivables	

31.03.2025 31.03.2024
0-180 days  16,66,68,657         3,93,71,177
181-365 days   15,58,820            90,39,567
>365 days   60,70,772            33,85,438
Total  17,42,98,249         5,17,96,182
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Movement in expected credit allowance
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Opening balance  1,953,995  4,210,957 
Movement in expected credit loss allowance  (711,223)  (2,256,962)
Balance as at the end of the year  1,242,772   1,953,995  

							     
c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations 
without incurring unacceptable losses. The Company’s objective is to at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet 
its cash and collateral requirements. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash manage-
ment system.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted 
payments.
		
March 31, 2025	 				  

Particulars 0-1 year 1 year - 3 years > 3 years Total
Trade payables  151,442,144  724,347  374,149  152,540,640 
Loans  7,019,137  15,788,547  33,439,154  56,246,838 

March 31, 2024	

Particulars 0-1 year 1 year - 3 years > 3 years Total
Trade payables  48,413,747  160,333  8,836,209  57,410,289 
Loans  -    9,691,314  -    9,691,314 

						    
								      
Note No 31. a) Trade Receivables Ageing schedule as at March 31, 2025 :						    
	
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Not Due Less than 6 
months

6 months 
- 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 

3 years Total

(i) Undisputed - 
Considered Good  2,274,519 164,369,798  960,972  4,472,884  4,378  972,926 173,055,477 

(ii) Undisputed - Significant 
increase in Credit Risk - - - - - - -

(iii) Undisputed - Credit 
Impaired -    544,249  77,941  605,090  1,877  13,615  1,242,772 

(iv) Disputed - Considered 
Good - - - - - - -

(v) Disputed - Significant 
increase in Credit Risk - - - - - - -

(vi) Disputed - Credit 
Impaired - - - - - - -

Total  2,274,519 164,914,047  1,038,913  5,077,974  6,255  986,541 174,298,249 

Less : Provision for 
Impairment  1,242,772 

Total 173,055,477  
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Note No 31. b) Trade Receivables Ageing schedule as at March 31, 2024 :	

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Not Due Less than 6 
months

6 months 
- 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 

3 years Total

(i) Undisputed - 
Considered Good 3195855  35,191,051  8,587,589  1,298,198  1,569,495  -    49,842,188 

(ii) Undisputed - Significant 
increase in Credit Risk  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(iii) Undisputed - Credit 
Impaired  -    984,271  451,978  252,347  255,672  9,726  1,953,994 

(iv) Disputed - Considered 
Good  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(v) Disputed - Significant 
increase in Credit Risk  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(vi) Disputed - Credit 
Impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total  3,195,855  36,175,322  9,039,567  1,550,545  1,825,167  9,726  51,796,182 

Less : Provision for 
Impairment  1,953,994 

Total  49,842,188 
								      
Note No 32. a) Trade Payables Ageing schedule as at March 31, 2025 :						    
	

Outstanding for following periods from due date of 
payment

Particulars Not Due Less than 1 
year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 

years Total

Micro Enterprises & Small 
Enterprises

 6,843,052  5,454,847  -    12,297,899 

Others  53,202,159  85,942,086  -    724,347  374,149  140,242,741 
Disputed Dues - Micro 
Enterprises & Small Enterprises

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

Disputed Dues - Others  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Total  60,045,211  91,396,933  -    724,347  374,149  152,540,640 

Note No 32. b) Trade Payables Ageing schedule as at March 31, 2024 :

Outstanding for following periods from due date of 
payment

Particulars Not Due Less than 1 
year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 

years Total

Micro Enterprises & Small 
Enterprises

 4,705,679  2,446,771  -    -    -    7,152,450 

Others  33,503,391  7,757,906  -    160,333  8,836,209  50,257,839 
Disputed Dues - Micro 
Enterprises & Small Enterprises

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

Disputed Dues - Others  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Total  38,209,070  10,204,677  -    160,333  8,836,209  57,410,289 
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Note No 33. Ratios	 						    
								      

Particulars Numerator Denominator March 31, 
2025

March 31, 
2024 % Variance Reason for variance

Current Ratios Current Assets

Current 
Liabilities 
excl. current 
borrowings

 1.89  2.08 -8.90% NA

Debt Equity 
Ratio Total Debt Equity  0.15  0.03 326.10%

Increase in long term 
borrowings during the 
year

Debt Service 
Coverage Ratio

Net profit 
after tax + 
Depreciation 
and 
amortisations + 
Interest +  loss 
on sale of fixed 
assets

Interest + Lease 
payments 
+  Principal 
repayment of 
long term loans

 11.04  5.23 110.88%

The profitability is higher 
in FY 24-25 as compared 
to previous year along 
with repayment of 
borrowings.

Return on 
Equity Ratio (%)

Net profit after 
tax

Average 
Shareholder's 
Equity

68.76% 56.87% 20.91%
Increase in profit per 
share as compared to 
previous year.

Inventory 
Turnover Ratio

Sales of 
products and 
services

Average 
inventory  6.36  6.43 -1.02% NA

Trade 
Receivables 
Turnover Ratio

Sales of 
products and 
services 

Average Trade 
receivables  6.29  15.33 -58.98%

Increase in trade 
receivables as on year 
end and due in next year.

Trade Payables 
Turnover Ratio

Purchase of 
Raw Materials, 
Stores & Spares 
and Traded 
goods

Average 
adjusted Trade 
payables

 3.92  3.51 11.84%

Better trade payable 
management have 
resulted in higher trade 
payable turnover ratio 
compared to previous 
year.

Net Capital 
Turnover Ratio Net Sales Working Capital  4.31  230.98 -98.13%

increase in working 
capital in the current year 
as compared to previous 
year.

Net Profit Ratio 
(%)

Net Profit after 
Tax

Sales of 
Products and 
services

11.56% 11.33% 2.00% NA

Return on 
Capital 
Employed (%)

Earnings before 
Interest & Tax

Capital 
Employed 23.93% 26.66% -10.22% NA

Return on Investment (%)	 Not Applicable
	

Note No 34. According to the information available with the management, on the basis of intimation received from its 
suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, the Company has 
amounts due to micro and small enterprises under the said Act as at March 31, 2025 as follows :				  
		
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Principal amount due  8,309,383  7,152,450 
Interest due on above - -
Amount of interest paid in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

- -
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Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay - -
Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at year end - -
Amount of further remaining due and payable in the succeeding year - -

Note No 35. Additional Regulatory Requirement required under Schedule III						   
						    
a) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or any Intangible Assets.				  
						    
b) The Company has not given Loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related 
parties, that are repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.				  
			 
c) The Company does not have any Capital Work in Progress (WIP), hence disclosure as required under Schedule III is not 
applicable.							     
								      
d) The company does not have intangible assets under development, hence disclosure as required under Schedule III is not 
applicable.							     
								      
e) The company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or other lender.	
						    
f) The Company has no relationship and transactions with struck off companies.						    
	
g) There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies.				 
			 
h) The Company does not have any subsidiaries and thus compliance with the number of layers prescribed under clause 
(87) of Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the companies (Restriction on number of layer) Rules, 2017 is not 
applicable.							     
								      
i) The Company has not entered in any scheme of arrangement under section 230  to 237 of Companies Act 2013.		
										        
j) The management represents  and confirms that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the 
notes to the accounts, No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium 
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities  
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.		
					   
k) The management represents  and confirms that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the 
notes to the accounts, No funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign en-
tities  (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly 
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding 
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.		
					   
Note No 36. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 
 
The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assump-
tions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and 
the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that 
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods 
 
Estimates and assumptions:
 
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have 
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial 
year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the stand-
alone financial statements were prepared. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.”			
				  

a) Allowance for uncollectible trade receivables 
Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for 



Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements

85Annual Report 2024-25

estimated irrecoverable amounts. A large number of minor receivables is grouped into homogeneous groups and assessed 
for impairment collectively.  Individual trade receivables are written off when management deems them not to be collectible. 
 
b) Contingent liability
 
The contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occur-
rence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company. The Company evalu-
ates the obligation through Probable, Possible or Remote model (‘PPR’). In making the evaluation for PPR, the Company 
take into consideration the Industry perspective, legal and technical view, availability of documentation/agreements, inter-
pretation of the matter, independent opinion from professionals (specific matters) etc. which can vary based on subsequent 
events. The Company provides the liability in the books for probable cases, while possible cases are shown as contingent 
liability. The remotes cases are disclosed in the financial statement, if material in nature.”					   
		
37. Figures for the previous year have been regrouped / reclassified / reinstated, wherever considered necessary.	
	 					   

As Per Our Report Of Even Date            	 For & On Behalf Of Board Of Directors 				  
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To
The Members of
SANJIVANI PARANTERAL LIMITED.

Report on audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of SANJIVANI PARANTERAL LIMITED. (hereinafter 
referred to as the Holding Company), its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as the 
Group) comprising of the consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, 
including other comprehensive income, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the consolidated Statement of Changes in 
Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of material accounting 
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the consolidated financial statements).
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration 
of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial information of the subsidiaries, the 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (the Act) 
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2025, their consolidated profit including other comprehensive 
income, their consolidated cash flows and the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Group 
in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical re-
quirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consol-
idated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We 
have determined that there are no key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the in-
formation included in the Annual Report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report. 
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identi-
fied above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with 
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial 
statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consol-
idated financial performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of 
changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian 
Accounting  Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for main-
tenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of their 
respective companies and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
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accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and complete-
ness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that 
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for 
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group 
are responsible for assessing the ability of their respective companies to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applica-
ble, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the financial 
reporting process of their respective companies.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reason-
able assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism through-
out the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and ap-
propriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control.
• Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion 
on whether the Company and its subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in India, has adequate internal 
financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls.
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by the management.
• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclo-
sures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of 
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. 
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclo-
sures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner 
that achieves fair presentation.
• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities within the Group to express 
an opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, 
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial state-
ments may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit 
work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the consol-
idated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Company and such other entities included in the Consolidated 
Financial Statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal financial controls that we identify 
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
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regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most signifi-
cance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, 
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Or-
der”/ “CARO”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor’s report, 
according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the Auditor’s Reports on the financial statements of 
Company and its subsidiaries as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025, included in the Consolidated Financial Statements 
of the Group, we report in respect of those companies where audits have been completed under section 143 of the Act, we 
have not reported any qualifications or adverse remarks.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements.

b)In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial 
Statements have been kept by the Group, including relevant records so far as it appears from our examination of those 
books.

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive In-
come, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified 
under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company as on March 31, 2025 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors of the Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, none 
of the directors of the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed 
as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

f) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated in para-
graph (i)(vi) below on reporting on Rule 11(g).

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the holding company and its 
subsidiaries and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure A”. Our report ex-
presses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls 
with reference to consolidated financial statements.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of section 
197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 
197 of the Act.

i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us:

i. The Group does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

ii. The Group did not have any outstanding long-term contracts including derivative contracts as at 31st March 2025 for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 
Company.

iv. a. The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiaries has represented that, to the best of its knowl-
edge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium 
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or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company or its subsidiaries to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), 
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other  persons  or  entities  identified  in  any manner whatso-
ever by or on behalf of the Company or its subsidiaries (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or 
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiaries has represented, that, to the best of its knowl-
edge and belief, no funds have been received by the Company or its subsidiaries from any person(s) or entity(ies), 
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 
the Company or its subsidiaries shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security 
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

c. Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing 
has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of rule 11(e), 
as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement; and

v. The Company and its subsidiaries has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company and its subsidiaries has used accounting soft-
ware for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording 
audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the 
software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being 
tampered with.

FOR M/S R.B. GOHIL & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No: 119360W

Dated: 27th May 2025                                                                                                                                             
Place: Mumbai

RAGHUBHA B GOHIL
Partner

Membership No.: 104997
UDIN: 25104997BMGESR5076
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ANNEXURE - A TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Sanjivani Parenteral Limited (hereinafter referred to 
as the Holding Company) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with 
reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its 
subsidiaries together referred to as the Group) as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group, which are companies incorporated in India, are 
responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
(ICAI) ( the Guidance Note). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate inter-
nal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, 
as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company’s internal financial controls with reference to consolidated 
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on 
Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both, is-
sued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated 
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls with 
reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with 
reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference 
to consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their 
reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 
on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control with reference 
to consolidated financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) 
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made 
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could 
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may 
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated 
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financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated 
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Group has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to the con-
solidated financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements 
criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note  on Audit  of  Internal  Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (“ICAI”).

For M/s R.B. Gohil & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No: 119360W

Dated: 27th May 2025                                                                                                                                             
Place: Mumbai

RAGHUBHA B GOHIL
Partner

Membership No.: 104997
UDIN: 25104997BMGESR5076
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Consolidated Balance Sheet 
As At 31st March, 2025
(All amounts in Rs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes As at 31st March 
2025

As at 31st March 
2024

1.  Assets :   
 A )  Non-Current Assets 	
 Property, plant and equipment & Intangible Assets 
 Property, Plant & Equipment 2  205,636,139  99,420,546 
 Capital Work-In-Progress  191,060,344 -
 Goodwill 3  782,400  -   

 Financial assets 
 Trade Receivables 6  6,263,247  2,867,693 
 Loans 4  24,322,090  36,171,767 

  Other Non-Current Assets 
  Other Non Current Assets 4  12,110,715  9,203,124 

 B )  Current Assets 
 Inventories 5  105,104,831  97,330,785 
 Financial assets 

 Trade Receivables 6  166,792,230  46,974,495 
 Cash & Cash Equivalents 7  14,853,576  5,407,932 
 Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents 8  9,269,037  90,233,247 
 Loans 4  11,562,904  37,558,038 

 Other current assets 4  34,212,300  8,885,553 
 Total Assets  781,969,814  434,053,180 

 2.  Equity And Liabilities : 
 A )  Equity 
 Equity Share Capital 9  118,816,940  116,843,000 
 Other equity 10  261,143,352  162,144,517 
 Equity attributable to owners of Holding Company  379,960,292  278,987,517 

 Non-controlling interests  18,753,053 
 Total Equity  398,713,344  278,987,517 

B )  Non-Current Liabilities 

Financial liabilities 
 Borrowings 11  52,886,265  9,691,314 
 Provisions 16  4,785,356  4,036,911 
 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 12  7,663,250  3,534,830 

 C )  Current Liabilities 
 Financial liabilities 
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 Borrowings 13  28,531,964
 Trade Payables 

Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises & Small 
Enterprises

14  8,550,549  7,152,450 

Total outstanding dues of Creditors other than Micro 
Enterprises & Small Enterprises

14  143,990,091  50,257,839 

 Other financial liabilities 15  (0)  700,000 
 Other current Liabilities 15  121,460,318  69,527,022 
 Provisions 16  15,388,678  10,165,298 

 781,969,814  434,053,180 
 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 		 1.2

As per our Report of even date 			 
			 
For M/s R.B. Gohil & Co.   	 For & On Behalf Of Board Of Directors		
Chartered Accountants              			 
FRN :- 119360W 			
		
			 
( Raghubha B Gohil) 		  Ashwani Khemka 	 Srivardhan Khemka	 Pritesh Jain
 Partner 			   Chairman & 		  Director			  Chief Financial Officer
 Membership No.104997 		 Managing Director 			 
 UDIN : 25104997BMGESS5661 	  						    
 Place  :  Mumbai 		  DIN : 00337118 		  DIN : 08942106	
 Dated  : 27th May 2025 	
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
The Year Ended 31st March, 2025

Particulars Notes For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

1.  Income :   
 Revenue From Operations 17  700,986,125  544,105,743 
 Other Income 18  12,149,978  5,172,062 

 Total Income  713,136,103  549,277,805 
 

 2.  Expenditure :   
Cost Of Material Consumed 19  335,629,688  343,735,202 
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-
progress & stock-in-trade 

20  69,207,096  (58,892,943)

Employee Benefits Expenses 21  64,931,784  40,971,210 
Finance Cost 22  5,927,351  2,535,272 
Depreciation And Amortization Expenses 2  6,209,073  9,331,402 
Other Expenses 23  127,706,795  135,881,802 

 609,611,787  473,561,945 

Profit Before Tax  103,524,316  75,715,860 
Less :  Provision For Tax - Current Year 24  18,380,000  13,477,000 
                                       - Previous Years 24  72,467  106,390 
                                       - Deferred Tax 24  4,128,420  480,994 
Profit For The Year  80,943,429  61,651,476 
Other Comprehensive Income   -    -   
Total Comprehensive Income for the year  80,943,429  61,651,476 

 Profit / (Loss) for the year attributable to : 
 Owners of the Parent  80,972,776  61,651,476 
 Non-controlling interests  (29,347)  -   

 80,943,428  61,651,476 

Other Comprehensive Income for the year attributable 
to : 
Owners of the Parent  -    -   
Non-controlling interests  -    -   

Total Comprehensive Income for the year attributable 
to : 
Owners of the Parent  80,972,776  61,651,476 
Non-controlling interests  (29,347)  -   

 80,943,428  61,651,476 

Earning Per Share  ( Equity Shares , Par value Rs. 10/- 
each) 

(All amounts in Rs, unless otherwise stated)
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-- Basic  6.89  5.28 
-- Diluted  6.66  5.28 

No. of shares for Computing Earning Per Share -- Basic  11,752,990  11,684,300 
                                                            -- Diluted  12,155,596  11,684,300 

 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies            1.2

As per our Report of even date 			 
			 
 For M/s R.B. Gohil & Co. 		  For & On Behalf Of Board Of Directors		
 Chartered Accountants              			 
 FRN :- 119360W 	 		
					   

			 
( Raghubha B Gohil) 			   Ashwani Khemka 	 Srivardhan Khemka	 Pritesh Jain
 Partner 			    	 Chairman & 		  Director			  Chief Financial Officer
 Membership No.104997 			  Managing Director 			 
 UDIN : 25104997BMGESS5661 						    
 Place  :  Mumbai 			    DIN : 00337118 		  DIN : 08942106	
 Dated  : 27th May 2025 	 					   
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow
The Year Ended 31St March 2024

Particulars As At 31st March 
2025

As At 31st 
March 2024

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before tax  103,524,316  75,715,860 
Adjustments for reconcile profit (loss)

Adjustments for finance costs  5,171,809  1,239,879 
Adjustments for depreciation and amortisation expense  6,209,073  9,331,402 
Adjustment for Dividend Income  (60,000)  -   
Adjustment for Interest Income  (3,328,637)  (607,943)
Impairment on trade receivables  (711,223)  (2,256,962)
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of Property, plant and equipment

Operating profit before changes in operating assets and 
liabilities

 110,805,338  83,422,236 

Change in operating assets and liabilities :
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables, non current  (3,576,332)  1,525,750 
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables, current  (118,925,735)  (27,979,029)
Decrease (Increase) in other current assets  (25,326,747)  (5,450,209)
Decrease (Increase) in other non-current assets  (2,907,591)  3,187,749 
Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories  (7,774,047)  (43,860,974)
Adjustments for other financial assets, current  25,995,134  (34,718,615)
Adjustments for other financial assets, non-current  11,849,677  1,388,367 
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade payables, current  95,130,351  (79,821,869)
Adjustments for other financial liabilities, current  (700,000)  (89,466)
Increase (Decrease) in other current liabilities  51,933,296  6,071,177 
Adjustments for provisions, non-current  748,445  425,627 

Cash generated from operating Activity  137,251,789  (95,899,255)

Taxes paid  (13,229,088)  (11,134,407)
Cash flow before Extraordinary items  124,022,702  (107,033,662)

Extra ordinary items  -    -   
NET CASH FLOWS FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITY  124,022,702  (107,033,662)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITY
Payments for acquisition of Property, plant and equipment incl. Capital 
Work in progress

 (303,485,010)  (33,022,076)

Proceeds from sale of investments  -    500,000 
Proceeds from / (Investment in) Fixed deposits (net)  80,964,210  (90,233,247)
Interest Received  3,328,637  607,943 
Dividend Received  60,000  -   

NET CASH FLOWS FROM (USED IN ) INVESTING ACTIVITY  (219,132,163)  (122,147,380)

(All amounts in Rs, unless otherwise stated)
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Particulars As At 31st March 
2025

As At 31st 
March 2024

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY
Proceeds/(Repayments) from borrowings  71,726,915  (15,243,705)
Proceeds from issuing shares  20,000,000  248,047,100 
Proceeds from issue of share capital to Non-controlling interest  18,000,000  -   
Interest Paid  (5,171,809)  (1,239,879)

NET CASH FLOWS FROM (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES  104,555,106  231,563,516 

NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  9,445,644  2,382,475 

Cash and cash equivalents cash flow statement at beginning of the year  5,407,932  3,025,458 

Cash and cash equivalents cash flow statement at end of the year  14,853,576  5,407,932 

 Cash and Cash equivalents comprise of - 

 Cash on hand  109,695  225,298 
 Bank Balance  14,743,882  5,182,634 
 Total  14,853,576  5,407,932 

Notes:		
1.	 The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under indirect method in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard - 7 noti-

fied under section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. 		
2.	 Figures in brackets represents outflow.				  
		
As Per Our Report Of Even Date              For and on behalf of the board of Directors		
For M/s R.B. Gohil & Co.		
Chartered Accountants		
FRN :- 119360W				  
	
( Raghubha B Gohil)                                 Ashwani Khemka	                Srivardhan Khemka	 Pritesh Jain
Partner                                                       Chairman & Managing 		 Director	Director 		 Chief Financial Officer
Membership No. 104997                                 		
UDIN : 25104997BMGESS5661		
Place  :  Mumbai                                        DIN : 00337118 		  DIN : 08942106	
Dated  : 27th May 2025	 	
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Consolidated Statement of changes in equity for the year 
ended 31 Mar 2025
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Note No. : 1

1.Corporate Information 

Sanjivani Paranteral Limited is a public Company domiciled in India and is incorporated on 5th October 1994 under the provi-
sions of the Companies Act applicable in India. Its shares are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange in India. The registered 
office of the Company is located at 205, P.N Kothari Ind. Estate, L B S Marg, Bhandup (W), Mumbai – 400 078.
Sanjivani Paranteral Limited is a research based, international pharmaceutical Group that provides a wide range of high-qual-
ity product and services, at affordable prices. The core product range of the Group’s products includes oral solids, small vol-
ume parenteral and sterile powder formulations.

2.Significant Accounting Policy 

2.1 Basis of preparation 

The consolidated financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified 
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), and relevant rules issued thereunder and the relevant provisions of 
the Act. In accordance with proviso to the Rule 4A of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the terms used in these financial 
statements are in accordance with the definitions and other requirements specified in the applicable Accounting Standards.
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. The financial statements are presented in INR.

Current versus non-current classification

The Group segregates assets and liabilities into current and non-current categories for presentation in the balance sheet after 
considering its normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Ind AS 1, “Presentation of Financial Statements”. For this 
purpose, current assets and liabilities include the current portion of non-current assets and liabilities respectively. Deferred tax 
assets and liabilities are always classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equiv-
alents. The Group has identified period up to twelve months as its operating cycle.

Use of judgements, estimates & assumptions
While preparing financial statements in conformity with Ind AS, the management makes certain estimates and assumptions 
that require subjective and complex judgments. These judgments affect the application of accounting policies and the reported 
amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, disclosure of contingent liabilities at the statement of financial position 
date and the reported amount of income and expenses for the reporting period. Financial reporting results rely on our estimate 
of the effect of certain matters that are inherently uncertain. Future events rarely develop exactly as forecast and the best 
estimates require adjustments, as actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. 
The management continually evaluates these estimates and assumptions based on the most recently available information.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods 
affected. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying account-
ing policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are as below:

The Group has equity stake in its subsidiary – SPL Infusion Private Limited for strategic reasons concerning its operation. 
The relationship with this entity have been determined based on principles laid down in Ind AS 110 – Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 

2.2 Summary of Significant accounting policies

a. Current versus non-current classification
The group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification. An asset is treated 
as current when it is:

• Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
• Held primarily for the purpose of trading
• Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
•Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settled a liability for at least twelve months 
after the reporting period
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All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
• It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
•There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets 
and liabilities. The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and 
cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b. Foreign currencies

The Group’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Group’s functional currency. 

Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group at functional currency spot rates at the date the transac-
tion first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Group uses an average rate if the average approximates 
the actual rate at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of ex-
change at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in 
profit or loss 
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates 
at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using 
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items 
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item.

c. Revenue Recognition 
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be 
reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on 
behalf of the government. 

Revenue from contracts
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of Ownership of the goods have passed 
to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consider-
ation received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. 
Interest income
Interest income is recognized based on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the interest 
rate applicable. Interest income is included in other Income in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividends
Revenue is recognised when the Group’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when shareholders 
approve the dividend.

d. Taxes

Current income tax
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the 
tax authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax laws prevailing in the respective tax ju-
risdictions where the Group operates. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or 
substantively enacted, at the reporting date. 

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other com-
prehensive income or directly in equity). Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect 
to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.
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Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities 
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all 
taxable temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised 
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that 
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is 
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the 
reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against 
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

e. Property, plant and equipment

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when 
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (cal-
culated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement 
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group derecognises the 
replaced part, and recognises the new part with its own associated useful life and depreciation, only if it increases the future 
benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other repair and maintenance 
costs are recognised in the statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates arrived at based on the useful lives estimated by the man-
agement. The Group has used the following rates to provide depreciation on its fixed assets:

Building 15 to 20 years
Plant and equipment 5 to 15 years

Depreciation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part 
of an item of property, plant and equipment, since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future 
economic benefits.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial 
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

f. Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substan-
tial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing 
costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs 
in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an 
adjustment to the borrowing costs.

g. Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:
Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and 
condition. Cost is determined on First in First out (FIFO) basis.

h. Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying 
amount may not be recoverable. Such circumstances include, though not limited to, significant or sustained decline in reve-
nues or earnings and material adverse changes in the economic environment.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recover-
able amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs 
to sell and its value in use. To calculate the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value 
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market rates and the risks specific to the asset. Fair value less costs to sell 
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is the best estimate of the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between knowledge-
able, willing parties, less cost of disposal. In determining fair value less costs to sell, recent market transactions are taken into 
account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are 
corroborated by valuation multiples, or other available fair value indicators. Impairment losses, if any, are recognised in the 
statement of profit or loss as component of depreciation and amortisation expense.
The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecasts which are prepared separately for each of the 
Group’s CGU to which assets are allocated. These budget and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five 
years. 

i. Provisions
A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event and it 
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can 
be made of the amount of the obligation.  Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reim-
bursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a 
provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss, net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, 
the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of the time is 
recognised as a finance cost.

j. Retirement and other employee benefits

The gratuity liability is defined benefit obligation and is provided on actual basis.
Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. The 
Group measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused 
entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

k. Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument 
of another entity.

Financial assets

a) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value 
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of 
financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market 
place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the 
asset.

b) Subsequent measurement
The Group determines the classification of its financial assets and liabilities at initial recognition. Financial assets are 
classified in four categories:

• Debt instruments at amortised cost;
• Equity instruments measured at fair value through OCI

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and inter-
est (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.
This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently mea-
sured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account 
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is 
included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This 
category generally applies to trade and other receivables. For more information on receivables, refer to Note 6 and 29.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are 
classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Group may make an irrevocable election to present in other 
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Group makes such election on an instrument by-instru-
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ment basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.
Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

c) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual right to receive the cash flows from the asset expires 
or it has transferred the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrange-
ment, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. 

d) Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of 
impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:
• Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., trade receivables;

• Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are 
within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18 
The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables or contract 
revenue receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises 
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

As a practical expedient, the Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its 
trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade 
receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates 
are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed. On that basis, the Group estimates the following 
provision matrix at the reporting date:

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the state-
ment of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. 

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and borrowings, payables as appropriate.
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of 
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

This is the most relevant category to the Group. After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are sub-
sequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in the 
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate method (EIR) 
amortisation process.
Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an 
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an 
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the 
statement of profit or loss.

l. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original 
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined 
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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m. Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by 
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a frac-
tion of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during 
the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events 
such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have 
changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders 
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential 
equity shares.

n. Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence 
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a present obligation that is not 
recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. The Group does not 
recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

o. Segment Reporting - Identification of Segments:

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and 
incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Group’s management to make decisions for which 
discrete financial information is available.

Based on the management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the management evaluates the Group’s performance and 
allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments and geographic segments.

The Group is engaged in the business of manufacturing pharmaceutical products. All other activities of the Group revolve 
around the main business. As such there are no separate primary reportable business segments as defined by AS 108 (Seg-
mental Reporting).

p. Investments in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures

A Subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by another entity. An investor controls an investee if and only if the investor has the 
following; (i) Power over the investee, (ii) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and (iii) 
the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.

An Associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the 
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A Joint Venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the 
net assets of the Joint Venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only 
when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
The Group’s investments in its Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures are accounted at cost.

q. Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed 
to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through 
its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is 
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group combines the financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding together like items of 
assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. Intergroup transactions, balances and unrealized gains on transactions 
between Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence 
of an impairment of the transferred asset.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated Statement of 
Profit and Loss, consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Balance Sheet respectively.

b) Associates
Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control or joint control. This is generally 
the case where the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in Associates are accounted for 
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using the equity method of accounting (see (d) below), after initially being recognised at cost.

c) Joint Ventures

Under Ind AS 111 Joint Arrangements, investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or Joint 
Ventures. The classification depends on the contractual rights and obligations of each investor, rather than the legal struc-
ture of the joint arrangement. The Group has only Joint Ventures.

Interests in Joint Ventures are accounted for using the equity method (see (d) below), after initially being recognised at 
cost in the consolidated Balance Sheet.

d) Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recog-
nise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit and loss, and the Group’s share 
of Other Comprehensive Income of the investee in Other Comprehensive Income. Dividends received or receivable from 
Associates and Joint Ventures are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including 
any other unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations 
or made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its Associates and Joint Ventures are eliminated to the extent of 
the Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an 
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have been changed where neces-
sary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group. The carrying amount of equity accounted investments 
are tested for impairment in accordance with the policy described in note 1.8 below.

e) Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control, as transactions with 
equity owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest results in an adjustment between the carrying amounts of 
the controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the 
amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and any consideration paid or received is recognised within equity.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account for an investment because of a loss of control, joint control or 
significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value with the change in carrying amount 
recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for the purpose of subsequent accounting 
for the retained interest as an Associate, Joint Venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised 
in Other Comprehensive Income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the 
related assets or liabilities.

The amounts previously recognised in Other Comprehensive Income are reclassified to profit or loss. 

If the ownership interest in a Joint Venture or an Associate is reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained, 
only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in Other Comprehensive Income are reclassified to profit 
or loss where appropriate.
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Note No. : 2

For year ended March 31, 2025
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Sr. 
No.

Particu-
lars Gross Block Depreciation Net Block

As On
1.04.24

Additions
Transfer

Deduc-
tion

Transfer

As On
31.03.25

As On
1.04.24

 For The 
  Year 

Adj. For
Sale/ de-
duction

 Up To 
31.03.25

As On
31.03.25

As On
31.03.24

1 Goodwill  -    782,400  -    782,400  -    -    -    -    782,400  -   

TOTAL 
AMOUNT  -    782,400  -    782,400  -    -    -    -    782,400  -   

Sr. 
No.

Particu-
lars Gross Block Depreciation Net Block

As On
1.04.23

Additions
Transfer

Deduc-
tion

Transfer

As On
31.03.24

As On
1.04.23

 For The 
  Year 

Adj. For
Sale/ de-
duction

 Up To 
31.03.24

As On
31.03.24

As On
01.04.23

1 Goodwill  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

TOTAL 
AMOUNT  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Notes No. 3:-Goodwill 
For year ended March 31, 2025

For year ended March 31, 2024

Notes No. 4 :- Loans

 Particulars 
  

 Long Term   Short Term

 31.03.2025  31.03.2024  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 

 Considered good - unsecured 

 Financial assets 

 Loan to others  6,003,910  22,673,411  787,210  114,000 

 Advance To Suppliers   -    -    10,775,694  37,444,038 

 Advance for capital assets  14,787,237  11,106,370  -    -   

 Security Deposits   3,530,943  2,391,986  -    -   

 24,322,090  36,171,767  11,562,904  37,558,038 

 Other assets 

 EMD  914,105  1,979,102  -    -   

 Prepaid Expenses   -    -    377,862  148,917 

 Export Incentives Receivable  -    -    481,895  183,513 
Fixed Deposit Having Maturing Period More Than 
One Year  5,645,896  101,000  -    -   

 Balances with Statutory Authorities  5,550,714  7,123,021  33,352,543  8,553,123 

 Other assets  12,110,715  9,203,124  34,212,300  8,885,553 

 36,432,805  45,374,890  45,775,204  46,443,592 
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Notes No. 5 :- Inventories

 Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 

 Raw Materials  86,747,112  10,571,892 

 Packing Material  8,532,840  7,726,917 
 Finished Goods  9,824,879  79,031,976 

 105,104,831  97,330,785 

Notes No. 6 :- Trade Receivables

 Particulars  Non-Current portion Current portion
   31.03.2025  31.03.2024  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
Considered good - unsecured  6,263,247  2,867,693  166,792,230  46,974,495 
Considered credit impaired  698,523  517,745  544,249  1,436,249 
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss  (698,523)  (517,745)  (544,249)  (1,436,249)

 6,263,247  2,867,693  166,792,230  46,974,495 

Notes No. 7 :- Cash & Bank Equivalents

Notes No. 8 :- Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents

Note No. 9:- Share Capital

 Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
 Balances With Banks  14,743,882  5,182,634 
 Cash On Hand  109,695  225,298 

 14,853,576  5,407,932 

 Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
Term Deposit with maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 
Months  9,269,037  90,233,247 

 9,269,037  90,233,247 

 Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
 Authorised : 
1,50,00,000 Equity Shares Of Rs. 10/- Each ( P.Y 1,00,00,000 Equi-
ty Shares Of Rs. 10/- Each )

 150,000,000  100,000,000 

Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up Capital 
1,18,81,694 Shares Of Rs. 10/- Each ( P.Y - 1,16,84,300 Shares Of 
Rs. 10/- Each )

 118,816,940  116,843,000 

 118,816,940  116,843,000 

 Reconciliation of No. of Equity Shares  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 

 No. of Shares Outstanding at the  beginning of the year  11,684,300  9,998,300 

 Add: No. of Shares issued during the year  197,394  1,686,000 

 No. of Shares outstanding at the end of the year  11,881,694  11,684,300 

Reconciliation of shares outstanding as at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period :
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 Particulars No. of shares % of total Shares % change during the year

Ashwani Khemka  3,223,045 27.13% 0.17%
Naina Khemka  207,410 1.75% 0.00%

 Particulars No. of shares % of total Shares % change during the year
Ashwani Khemka  3,025,651 25.90% 0.25%
Naina Khemka  207,410 1.78% 0.00%

 Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 

No. of shares % Holdings No. of shares % Holdings

Ashwani Khemka  3,223,045 27.13%  3,025,651 25.90%

Kanta Suresh Jain  747,868 6.29%  837,656 7.17%

Suresh Pukhraj Jain  787,249 6.63%  837,428 7.17%

India Equity Fund 1  600,000 5.05%  600,000 5.14%

Rights, preference and restrictions attached to Equity shares

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% in the company

Details of shares held by promoters/promoter group as at March 31, 2025

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote 
per equity share. The shareholders are entitled to dividend declared on proportionate basis. On liquidation of the Company, 
the equity shareholders are eligible to receive remaining assets of the Company in proportion to their shareholding after 
distribution of all preferential amounts.

Notes No. 10 :- Other Equity

Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
Capital Reserve 

 As Per Last Balance Sheet  387,572,849  387,572,849 
Share Premium  

 As Per Last Balance Sheet  263,168,600  52,250,000 
 Add: Premium on equity shares issued  24,693,989  210,918,600 

 287,862,589  263,168,600 
Retained Earnings

 As Per Last Balance Sheet  (508,865,433)  (570,516,909)
 Add :- Profit For Year  80,972,776  61,651,476 

 (427,892,657)  (508,865,433)
Money received against share warrants

 As Per Last Balance Sheet  20,268,500  -   

Add: Amount received during the year  20,000,000  20,268,500 

Less: Transferred to Equity Share Capital during the year  26,667,929  -   

 13,600,571  20,268,500 
 261,143,352  162,144,517 
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Description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity is as follows:
a.	 Capital Reserve					   

Capital Reserve was recognised on giving effect of Waiver of Loan settlement undertaken with Asset Reconstruction Company.	
									       

b.	 Share Premium

Share Premium is recognised as difference between price of issue of equity shares and face value of equity shares.		
							     

c.	 Retained Earnings	 				  

Retained earnings are the net profits / losses that the Company has earned till date and is net of amount transferred to other 
reserves such as general reserves, amount distributed as dividend and adjustments, if any, in terms of Ind AS 101.

During the financial year 2023–24, the Company issued 6,00,000 share warrants to the Promoter, Mr. Ashwin Khemka, on a prefer-
ential basis at Rs 135.10 per warrant, each convertible into one equity share of face value Rs 10. In accordance with SEBI (ICDR) 
Regulations, 25% of the issue price, i.e., Rs 33.78 per warrant, aggregating to Rs 2,02,68,000 was received during FY 2023–24. 
 
In FY 2024–25, 1,97,394 warrants were exercised and converted into equity shares upon receipt of the balance 75% of the issue 
price (Rs 101.325 per share). The balance 4,02,606 warrants remain outstanding and are valid for conversion until 5th August, 
2025.

 Notes No. 11 :- Borrowings 

 Particulars  Non-Current portion  Current portion 
 31.03.2025  31.03.2024  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 

 Term  Loans from Banks  48,113,694  -    1,315,678  -   
 Vehicle Loans from Banks  4,138,709  -    544,895  -   
 Loan From Director & Relatives  633,862  9,691,314  25,171,391  -   
   52,886,265  9,691,314  27,031,964  -   
 The Above Includes  
 Secured Loans  52,252,403  -    1,860,573  -   
 Unsecured Loans  633,862  9,691,314  25,171,391  -   

 52,886,265  9,691,314  27,031,964  -   
 Less Current Portion Disclosed Under 
"Current Borrowings"  -    -    27,031,964  -   

 52,886,265  9,691,314  -    -   

Details of Securities & Other Terms
1. Term Loan from Banks - Secured by mortgage against immovable property of its Rabale plant and repayable in 180 equal 
monthly installments.					   

2. Term Loan from Vehicles - Secured by charge on vehicle purchased and repayable in 84 equal monthly install-
ments.	

Notes 12 :- Deferred Tax Liabilities (net)

 Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
 Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets) 
 Net Book Value Of Fixed Assets As Per Books And Tax Laws  7,971,513  5,318,404 
 Disallowances under Income Tax Act  -    -   
 Value Of Closing Stock Between Books And Income Tax Act.  (308,263)  (1,783,575)

 7,663,250  3,534,830 
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Notes 14 :- Trade Payables

Notes No. 15 :- Current Liabilities

Notes 13 :- Borrowings

 Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
 i. Due to Micro, Small And Medium Enterprises   8,550,549  7,152,450 
 ii. Due to Others  143,990,091  50,257,839 

 152,540,640  57,410,289 

 Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
 Secured Loans 
 Current maturities of non-current borrowings  1,860,573  -   
 Unsecured Loans 
 Current maturities of non-current borrowings  25,171,391  -   
 Inter-Corporate Deposits  1,500,000 
   28,531,964  -   
 The Above Includes  
 Secured Loans  1,860,573  -   
 Unsecured Loans  26,671,391  -   

 28,531,964  -   

 Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
 Other Financial liabilities 
 Security Deposits  -    700,000 

 -    700,000 
 Other current liabilities 
 Advance From Customers  62,775,908  50,211,996 
 Sundry Creditors for Expenses  55,738,991  14,600,877 
 Duties & Taxes Payable  2,945,419  4,714,149 

 121,460,318  69,527,022 
 121,460,319  70,227,022 

Notes No. 16 :- Provisions
  
Particulars  Non - Current  Current 
   31.03.2025  31.03.2024  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
 Provision For Tax  -    -    15,388,678  10,165,299 
 Provision for Gratuity  4,785,356  4,036,911  -    -   

 4,785,356  4,036,911  15,388,678  10,165,299 
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Notes No. 17 :- Revenue From Operations 		
		
 Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
 Sale of Products - Domestic  110,285,031  76,807,833 
 Sale of Products - Exports  525,309,334  400,607,832 
 Domestic Services - Contract Manufacturing  59,775,411  57,963,772 
 Domestic Services - Others  251,500  1,491,946 
 Export Incentives  5,364,849  7,234,360 

 700,986,125  544,105,743 
		
Reconciliation of gross revenue with the revenue from Contracts with Customers :		
 
Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
Gross Revenue  726,991,915  545,302,105 
Less: Discounts and incentives  26,005,790  1,196,362 
Net Revenue recognised from Contracts with Customers  700,986,125  544,105,743 

		
Notes No. 18 :- Other Income 		
  		
 Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
 Interest Received  3,328,637  324,248 
 Miscellaneous Income   1,046,528  263,835 
 Dividend From Shares  60,000  -   
 Discount  (3,839)  124,312 
 Exchange Rate Fluctuation  7,718,652  4,175,973 
 Sundry Balances Written Back  -    283,696 

 12,149,978  5,172,062 
		
Notes No. 19 :- Cost Of Material Consumed 
	 	
Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
Opening Stock   18,298,809  33,330,779 
Add : Purchase  (Net)  412,610,831  328,703,233 

 430,909,640  362,034,011 
Less : Closing Stock  95,279,952  18,298,809 

 335,629,688  343,735,202 
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Notes No. 20 :- Increase/Decrease In Stock Of Finished Goods

Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
 Closing Stock 
 Finished Goods  9,824,879  79,031,976 
 Semi Finished Goods  -    -   
   9,824,879  79,031,976 
 Less : Opening Stock 
 Finished Goods  79,031,976  20,139,032 
 Semi Finished Goods  -    -   

 79,031,976  20,139,032 
 (69,207,096)  58,892,943 

Notes No. 21 :- Employee Benefits Expenses 

Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
 Salaries, wages and bonus  45,727,174  34,647,447 
 Contribution to Provident and Other Funds  686,659  607,169 
 Retirement benefit expenses  1,330,157  425,627 
 Staff welfare expenses  2,187,794  1,690,967 
 Directors Remuneration  15,000,000  3,600,000 

 64,931,784  40,971,210 

Notes No. 22 :- Finance Cost

Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
 Interest Expense - Bank Borrowings  4,112,344  -   
 Interest Expense - Others  2,973  1,239,879 
 Bank Charges  755,542  1,295,393 
 Other Borrowing Costs  1,056,492  -   

 5,927,351  2,535,272 

Notes No. 23 :- Other Expenses

 Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
 Manufacturing Expenses  
 Consumption of stores and spare parts  143,058  621,567 
 Power and Fuel  4,306,395  3,297,509 
 Water Charges  347,309  328,251 
 Import Expenses  1,523,624  1,190,853 
 Production Expenses  6,757,764  9,711,691 
 Electricity Expenses  9,056,816  7,753,389 
 Analytical Charges  2,080,592  1,831,556 
 Processing Charges  6,497,941  15,909,261 
 Repairs & Maintenance 
     - Building  491,740  114,629 
     - Machinery  7,330,402  2,016,321 
 Security Charges  605,696  376,413 
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 39,141,338  43,151,439 

 Selling & Administrative Expenses  
  
 Advertisement & Publicity Expenses  1,572,663  981,391 
 Printing & Stationery   1,022,075  933,383 
 Rent, Rates & Taxes   4,301,362  5,210,184 
 Conveyance   1,352,871  720,556 
 Product Designing  &  Art Work Charges  5,000  831,250 
 Freight  2,608,557  3,839,322 
 Export Freight & Other Charges  15,783,267  19,587,772 
 Repairs & Maintenance - Others  1,264,324  634,522 
 Product Registration Expenses  154,730  2,322,035 
 Vehicle Expenses  803,512  558,098 
 Legal & Professional Fees  2,204,855  7,594,068 
 Legal Fees  363,828  1,063,908 
 Company Secretarial charges  882,628  147,750 
 Customs Agency Charges  1,139,496  4,041,235 
 Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses  1,816,280  -   
 Postage & Courier Charges  401,300  490,052 
 Impairment Provision/(Reversal) on trade receivables  (711,223)  (2,256,962)
 Bad debts written off  734,422  1,473,397 
 Communication Expenses  295,038  360,296 
 Commission on sales  25,986,923  19,366,834 
 Research and Development Expenses  5,735,499  646,248 
 Selling & Business Promotion Expenses  6,536,378  5,826,546 
 Insurance  586,697  774,170 
 Payment To Auditors 
       For Audit Fees   125,000  100,000 
 Travelling Expenses  9,819,426  14,198,843 
 Donation  711,362  883,000 
 Office & Miscellaneous Expenses  2,063,324  1,107,066 
 Indirect Tax expenses  160,300  1,295,399 
 Seminar and Conference Expenses  845,565  -   

 88,565,457  92,730,363 
 127,706,795  135,881,802 
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Notes No. 24 :- Tax Expenses 

 Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
 Income tax expenses 
 a) Current Tax 
 In respect of the current year  18,380,000  13,477,000 
 In respect of the earlier year  72,467  106,390 
 b) Deferred Tax  4,128,420  480,994 

 22,580,888  14,064,384 

(c) A reconciliation between the Statutory income tax rate applicable to the Company and the effective income tax 
rate is as follows		

 Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
Net profit before tax  103,524,316  75,715,860 
Effective tax rate applicable to the Company 27.82% 27.82%
Tax amount at the enacted income tax rate  28,800,465  21,064,152 
Add: Expenses not deductible in determining taxable profits  11,332,100  21,047,715 
Less: Allowances/Deductibles  (17,004,560)  (8,800,469)
Add: Tax related to earlier years  72,467  106,390 
Less: brought forward losses / MAT provisions  (4,748,004)  (19,834,398)
Incremental Deferred Tax liability/(Asset) on account of other tem-
porary differences

 4,128,420  480,994 

Tax expense as per the Statement of Profit and Loss  22,580,888  14,064,384 

Note No. 25:-  Contingent liabilities (To the Extent not provided for)

 Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts - -
Guarantees given by the Company’s bankers and counter guaran-
teed by the Company

- -

Note No. 26:-  Related Party Disclosures
	 			 
A) Relationships							    
							     
i) Key Management Personnel		  Ashwani Khemka			  Managing Director			 
					     Srivardhan Ashwani Khemka	 Director				  
					     Mrunmai Mahendra Sarvankar	 Independent Director			 
					     Monika Amit Singhania		  Independent Director			 
					     Shrenik Solanki			   Independent Director			 
	
							     
ii) Companies in which Directors and/or        Genesen Labs Limited	
their relatives have significant influence				  
							     
iii) Subsidiary                                                 SPL Infusion Private Limited
					      		
B) Details Of Related Parties With Whom Transactions Have Taken Place During The Year				  
	
i) Ashwani Khemka			   -	 Managing Director			 
ii) Naina Khemka				    -	 Relative of Managing Director
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C) Details Of Transactions With The Related Parties During The Year		

Name Of The Parties Nature Of Transaction  31.03.2024  31.03.2023 
1) Ashwani Khemka Remuneration  15,000,000  3,600,000 
2) Srivardhan Ashwani Khemka Remuneration  4,800,000  -   
3) Naina A. Khemka Rent for premises  600,000  600,000 

			 
Note No. 27:-  Auditors Remuneration (exclusive of tax)

Particulars  31.03.2024  31.03.2023 
Statutory Audit Fees  125,000  100,000 

Note No. 28:-  Earnings per share

Particulars  31.03.2024  31.03.2023 
Profit/(loss) after tax used in calculating basic and diluted earnings per 
share

 80,943,428  61,651,476 

Weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of:
 - Basic earnings per share				    11,752,990  11,684,300 
 - Diluted earnings per share				     12,155,596  11,684,300 
Nominal value per equity share (in Rs)	 10 10
Earnings per share attributable to Equity Shareholders (in Rs)
 - Basic earnings per share				    6.89  5.28 
 - Diluted earnings per share				     6.66  5.28 

Note No. 29. Capital Management	
Capital includes equity shares and other reserves attributable to the equity shareholders. The primary objective of the Group’s 
capital management is to ensure that it maintains a healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise 
shareholder value. The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions 
or its business requirements.							     
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the year ended March 31, 2025. 
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. Net debt is calculated 
as loans and borrowings, trade payables, interest accrued on borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.	

Note No 30. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings and trade and other payables. The main purpose 
of these financial liabilities is to finance the Group’s operations. The Group’s principal financial assets has loan and other 
receivables, trade and other receivables, and cash and short-term deposits that arrive directly from its operations.

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s senior management oversees the management 
of these risks. The Group’s senior management is responsible to ensure that Group’s financial risk activities are governed 
by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with 
the Groups policies and risk objectives. The Group’s senior management oversees the appropriate financial risk governance 
framework for the Group. It is the Group’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken. 
The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.		
	
a) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market prices. Market risk comprises of interest rate risk and currency risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk 
include: loans and borrowings and deposits, trade receivables and trade payables.
- Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 
in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the 
Company’s long-term debt and lease obligations with fixed interest rates.”					   
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b) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contact, leading 
to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily for trade receivables) and 
its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions and other financial instruments. Management 
has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.  The Company uses a practical 
expedient in computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on ageing of the days the receivables 
are due.							    

Ageing of the gross receivables

31.03.2025 31.03.2024
0-180 days  166,668,657  39,371,177 
181-365 days  1,558,820  9,039,567 
>365 days  6,070,772  3,385,438 
Total  174,298,249  51,796,182 

Movement in expected credit allowance

31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Opening balance  1,953,995  4,210,957 
Movement in expected credit loss allowance  (711,223)  (2,256,962)
Balance as at the end of the year  1,242,772  1,953,995 
Total  174,298,249  51,796,182 

c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without 
incurring unacceptable losses. The Company’s objective is to at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash 
and collateral requirements. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management 
system.	

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted 
payments.							     

March 31, 2025		

Particulars 0-1 year 1 year - 3 years > 3 years Total
Trade payables  151,442,144  724,347  374,149  152,540,640 
Loans  7,019,137  40,959,938  33,439,154  81,418,229 

March 31, 2024	

Particulars 0-1 year 1 year - 3 years > 3 years Total
Trade payables  48,413,747  160,333  8,836,209  57,410,289 
Loans  -    9,691,314  -    9,691,314 
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Note No 31. a) Trade Receivables Ageing schedule as at March 31, 2025 :		

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Not Due Less than 6 
months

6 months 
- 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 

3 years Total

(i) Undisputed - 
Considered Good  2,274,519  

164,369,798  960,972  4,472,884  4,378  972,926  
173,055,477 

(ii) Undisputed - Significant 
increase in Credit Risk  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(iii) Undisputed - Credit 
Impaired  -    544,249  77,941  605,090  1,877  13,615  1,242,772 

(iv) Disputed - Considered 
Good  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(v) Disputed - Significant 
increase in Credit Risk  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(vi) Disputed - Credit 
Impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total  2,274,519  64,914,047  1,038,913  5,077,974  6,255  986,541 174,298,249 
Less : Provision for 
Impairment  1,242,772 

Total 173,055,477 
	

Note No 31. b) Trade Receivables Ageing schedule as at March 31, 2025 :			 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Not Due Less than 6 
months

6 months 
- 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 

3 years Total

(i) Undisputed - 
Considered Good  3,195,855  35,191,051  8,587,589  1,298,198  1,569,495  -    49,842,188 

(ii) Undisputed - Significant 
increase in Credit Risk  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(iii) Undisputed - Credit 
Impaired  -    984,271  451,978  252,347  255,672  9,726  1,953,994 

(iv) Disputed - Considered 
Good  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(v) Disputed - Significant 
increase in Credit Risk  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(vi) Disputed - Credit 
Impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total  3,195,855  36,175,322  9,039,567  1,550,545  1,825,167  9,726  51,796,182 
Less : Provision for 
Impairment 

 1,953,994 

Total  49,842,188 
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Note No 32. a) Trade Payables Ageing schedule as at March 31, 2025 :					   

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Not Due Less than 6 
months

6 months - 
1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 

3 years Total

Micro Enterprises & Small 
Enterprises  6,843,052  5,454,847  -    12,297,899 

Others  53,202,159 85,942,086  -    724,347  374,149 140,242,741 
Disputed Dues - Micro 
Enterprises & Small 
Enterprises

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

Disputed Dues - Others  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Total  60,045,211 91,396,933  -    724,347  374,149 152,540,640 

Note No 32. b) Trade Payables Ageing schedule as at March 31, 2025 :

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Not Due Less than 6 
months

6 months - 
1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 

3 years Total

Micro Enterprises & Small 
Enterprises  4,705,679  2,446,771  -    -    -    7,152,450 

Others  33,503,391  7,757,906  -    160,333  8,836,209  50,257,839 
Disputed Dues - Micro 
Enterprises & Small 
Enterprises

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

Disputed Dues - Others  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Total  38,209,070 10,204,677  -    160,333  8,836,209  57,410,289 

Note No 33. According to the information available with the management, on the basis of intimation received from its suppliers 
regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, the Company has amounts due 
to micro and small enterprises under the said Act as at March 31, 2025 as follows :				  

Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Principal amount due  8,550,549  7,152,450 
Interest due on above - -
Amount of interest paid in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006

- -

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay - -
Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at year end - -
Amount of further remaining due and payable in the succeeding year - -

Note No 34. Capital work-in-progress (CWIP)

The movement in CWIP is as under :

Particulars Amount
Opening balance as on April 1, 2024			    -   
Add: Additions during the year			    191,060,344 
Less: Capitalised during the year  -   
Closing balance as on March 31, 2025			    191,060,344 
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Capital work-in-progress includes pre-operative expenses of Rs Nil (Previous year : Rs Nil) during the year.		
	
CWIP ageing schedule as at March 31, 2025	

Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
Less than 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years

 -   

A. Projects in Progress
Identified Projects  91,060,344  -    -    -    191,060,344 
Total (A)  91,060,344  -    -    -    191,060,344 

B. Projects temporarily suspended
On Hold  -    -    -    -    -   
Total (B)  -    -    -    -    -   

Total (A+B)  91,060,344  -    -    -    191,060,344 

There are no projects whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan.		
	
Note No 35. Additional Regulatory Requirement required under Schedule III					  

a) The Group has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or any Intangible Assets.				 
b) The Group has not given Loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties, 
that are repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.				  
c) The Group does not have intangible assets under development, hence disclosure as required under Schedule III is not 
applicable.							     
d) The Group has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or other lender.	
e)The Group has no relationship and transactions with struck off companies.					   
f) There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies.
g) The Group does not have any subsidiaries and thus compliance with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of 
Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the companies (Restriction on number of layer) Rules, 2017 is not applicable.
h) The Group has not entered in any scheme of arrangement under section 230  to 237 of Companies Act 2013.

i) The management represents  and confirms that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the 
notes to the accounts, No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium 
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities  
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

j) The management represents  and confirms that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes 
to the accounts, No funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities  
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or 
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

k) As on March 31, 2025, the Group does not have any charge or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar 
of Companies beyond the statutory period.

l) The quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Group with banks or financial institutions are in agreement 
with the books of accounts.				  
m) The Group has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.
n) The Group does not have any transaction with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the 
year ended March 31, 2025 and for the year ended March 31, 2024. 
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Note No 36. Interests in other entities							     
Subsidiaries :							     
The Company’s subsidiaries as at March 31, 2025 are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have Share Capital 
consisting solely of equity shares, the proportion of ownership interests held equals the voting rights held by the Company. 
The country of incorporation or registration is also their principal place of business.	 				  
		

Name of entity Country of 
incorporation

Ownership 
interest held by 

the Group

Ownership 
interest held by 
non-controlling 

interests

Principal  
Activities

31.03.2025 31.03.2024 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

SPL Infusion Private 
Limited

India 60.87% - 39.13% - Pharmaceutical 
Manufacturing

Non-controlling interests (NCI) :
Set out below is summarised financial information for each subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that are material to the 
Group. The amounts disclosed for each subsidiary are before inter-company eliminations.					   
		

Particulars SPL Infusion Private Limited
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Summarised Balance Sheet :

Current assets  45,181,062 -

Current liabilities  189,051,406 -

Net current assets                                                                                                      (a)  (143,870,344) -

Non-current assets  191,795,344 -

Non-current liabilities
Net non-current assets                                                                                                  (b)  191,795,344 -

Net assets                                                                                                               (a + b)  47,925,000 -

Accumulated NCI  18,753,053 -

Summarised Statement of Profit and Loss SPL Infusion Private Limited

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Revenue  15,000  -   

Profit/(Loss) for the year  (75,000)  -   

Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) - -
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss)  (75,000)  -   

Profit/(Loss) allocated to NCI  (29,347)  -   

Summarised cash fows SPL Infusion Private Limited

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Cash flow from operating activities  50,660,486  -   

Cash flow from investing activities (191,060,344)  -   

Cash flow from financing activities  148,919,463 -
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  8,519,605  -   
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Note No 37. Additional Information required by Schedule III
March 31, 2025 :

Name of the entity in the 
Group

Net assets  
(total assets minus total 

liabilities)
Share in profit or (loss) Share in Total Comprehensive 

Income

% of 
consolidated 
net assets

Amount
 % of 

consolidated 
profit or loss

Amount

 % of 
consolidated Total  
Comprehensive 

Income

Amount

Parent 87.98%  350,788,344 100.09%  81,018,428 100.09%  81,018,428 
Subsidiaries (Group’s share)

SPL Infusion Private Limited 7.32%  29,171,948 -0.06%  (45,653) -0.06%  (45,653)
Non-controlling  
interests in all  
subsidiaries

 18,753,053  (29,347)  (29,347)

4.70% -0.04% -0.04%
Total 100%  398,713,344 100%  80,943,428 100%  80,943,428 

March 31, 2024:

Name of the entity in the 
Group

Net assets  
(total assets minus total 

liabilities)

Share in profit or (loss) Share in Total Comprehensive 
Income

% of 
consolidated 
net assets

Amount
 % of 

consolidated 
profit or loss

Amount

 % of 
consolidated Total  
Comprehensive 

Income

Amount

Parent 100.00%  278,987,517 100.00%  61,651,476 100.00%  61,651,476 
Subsidiaries (Group’s share)

SPL Infusion Private Limited 0.00%  -   0.00%  -   0.00%  -   
Non-controlling  
interests in all  
subsidiaries

- - -

0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Total 100%  278,987,517 100%   61,651,476  100%  61,651,476  

38. Figures for the previous year have been regrouped / reclassified / reinstated, wherever considered necessary.	
						    
	 					   
As Per Our Report Of Even Date            	 For & On Behalf Of Board Of Directors 				  
	
For M/s R.B. Gohil & Co. 							    
Chartered Accountants 							     
FRN :- 119360W 							    
  							     
  							     
  							     
(Raghubha B Gohil) 		   	 Ashwani Khemka        	 Srivardhan Khemka	 Pritesh Jain	  
Partner 		  			   Chairman & 		  Director			  Chief Financial Officer	
					     Managing Director
Membership No.104997 				     					   
UDIN : 25104997BMGESS5661 		  DIN : 00337118 	  	  DIN : 08942106 
				  
Place  :  Mumbai  				  
 Dated  : 27th May 2025 
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NOTICE OF THE 31ST ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE THIRTY FIRST ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF SANJIVANI PARANTERAL LIMITED WILL 
BE HELD THROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCING (“VC”) OR OTHER AUDIO-
VISUAL MEANS (“OAVM”) ON FRIDAY, SEPTEMBER 26, 2025 AT 11:00 
A.M. TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2025 together with the reports of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon:

To consider and pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 together 
with the Reports of the Board and Independent Auditors thereon and other Annexures and attachment therewith, as circulated 
to the members be and are hereby received, considered, approved and adopted.”

2.Declaration of dividend for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025:

To consider and pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT a dividend of ₹ 0.50 (fifty paise) per equity share of ₹ 10/- each (i.e. 5% of the paid-up equity share capital 
of the Company), as recommended by the Board of Directors of the Company, be and is hereby declared for the financial year 
ended on March 31, 2025 and that such dividend be paid to those equity shareholders whose names appear in the Register 
of Members as on record date i.e. Friday, September 19, 2025.”

3.To appoint Mr. Srivardhan Ashwani Khemka (DIN: 08942106), who retires by rotation at this annual general meeting 
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment:

To consider and pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013, Mr. Srivardhan Ashwani Khemka (Din: 08942106) who retires by rotation and, be and is hereby re-appointed as Director 
of the Company liable to retire by rotation.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4.Approval for appointment of HD & Associates as Secretarial Auditor of the Company:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Require-
ments) Regulations, 2015, Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and SEBI FAQ issued on April 23 2025, and upon recommendation of 
the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, the appointment of HD & Associates, a Peer Reviewed Firm of Company 
Secretaries in Practice, having Registration No. S2018MH634200, as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company, for a period of 
five years i.e. to hold office from the conclusion of 31st Annual General Meeting of the Company till the conclusion of  36th 
Annual General Meeting of the Company, be and is hereby approved to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company for a 
period of five consecutive financial years (i.e. from FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30), in compliance with applicable laws.”.

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to fix the remuneration and other terms and 
conditions for the Secretarial Auditor, as may be mutually agreed upon between the Company and M/s of HD & Associates, 
and to do all such acts, deeds, and things as may be necessary or incidental to the appointment of M/s of HD & Associates as 
Secretarial Auditor for the term of five years.”
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board f Directors of the Company (including its Committee thereof) be and is hereby au-
thorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, expedient and desirable for the purpose of giving 
effect to this resolution.”

5.To re-appoint Mr. Ashwani A. Khemka (DIN: 0337118) as Managing Director:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196 and 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, and subject to such oth-
er approvals as may be required, the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the appointment of Mr. Ashwani 
Khemka (DIN: 00337118) as the Managing Director of the Company for a period of five (5) years with effect from August 1, 
2025, on the same remuneration, perquisites, benefits, and other terms and conditions as approved by the shareholders vide 
resolution passed through postal ballot on June 20, 2024.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Director, any committee thereof, be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, 
deeds, matters and things including revising the remuneration, perquisites and other terms as may be necessary, within the 
limit prescribed under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for giving effect to this resolution.”

BY THE ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FOR SANJIVANI PARANTERAL LIMITED

Date: 12th August, 2025 
Place: Mumbai

SD/-
ASHWANI KHEMKA

CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR 
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NOTES
1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) inter-alia vide its General Circular Nos. 14/ 2020 dated April 8, 2020 and 17/2020 
dated April 13, 2020, followed by General Circular Nos. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, and subsequent circulars issued in this 
regard, the latest being 10/2022 dated December 28, 2022 (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) has permitted the hold-
ing of the annual general meeting through Video Conferencing (“VC”) or through other audio-visual means (“OAVM”), without 
the physical presence of the Members at a common venue. 

In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Require-
ments) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) and MCA Circulars, the 31st Annual General Meeting (“Meeting” or “AGM”) 
of the Company is being held through VC / OAVM on Friday, September 26th, 2025 At 11:00 A.M.(IST). The proceedings of 
the AGM deemed to be conducted at the Registered Office of the Company. 

2. Normally- pursuant to the provisions of the act, a member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a 
proxy to attend and vote instead of himself and the proxy need not be a member of the company. since this AGM is being held 
pursuant to MCA circulars and SEBI circular through VC / OAVM, physical attendance of members has been dispensed with. 
accordingly, the facility for the appointment of proxies by the members will not be available for the AGM and hence the proxy 
form, attendance slip and route map are not annexed to the notice. 

3. In accordance with the Secretarial Standard - 2 on General Meetings issued by the ICSI read with Clarification / Guidance 
on applicability of Secretarial Standards - 1 and 2 issued by the ICSI, the proceedings of the AGM through VC / OAVM shall 
be deemed to be conducted at the Registered Office of the Company at 205 P-N Kothari Indl Estatel B S Marg Bhandup (W), 
Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400078. 

4. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA circulars and SEBI circular Notice of the AGM along with Annual Report 2024-25 is 
being sent only through electronic mode to those members whose email addresses are registered with the Company / Depos-
itories. Members may note that the Notice and the Annual Report 2024-25 will also be available on the Company’s website ie. 
www.sanjivani.co.in  /, websites of the stock exchanges ie. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com  and on the website of MUFG 
India Private Limited. i.e https://instavote.linkintime.co.in/.

Additionally, in accordance with Regulation 36 (1) (b) of the Listing Regulations, the Company is also sending a letter to mem-
bers whose e-mail address is not registered with Company/ Depository Participant providing the exact web-link of Company’s 
website from where the Annual Report for financial year 2024-25 can be accessed.

5. Members are requested to send all their documents and communications pertaining to shares to MUFG Intime India Pvt. Ltd 
(‘MUFGIPL’), Share Transfer Agent of the Company at their address at C-101, 247 Park, L B S Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai 
- 400 083 (Maharashtra) Telephone No. 022 - 4918 6000, Fax No. 022 - 4918 6060 for both physical and demat segments of 
Equity Shares. Please quote on all such correspondence: “Unit – Sanjivani Paranteral Limited .” For Shareholders queries: 
Telephone No.: 022 – 4918 6270 Email ID: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in.
 
6. The Register of Members and Transfer Books of the Company in respect of the Equity Shares of the Company will remain 
closed from Friday, 19th September, 2025 to Friday, 26th September, 2025 both days inclusive. 

7 .The Notice of Annual General Meeting will be sent to the members; whose name appears in the Register of members / 
depositories as at closing hours of business on Friday, 11th July 2025.

8. Final Dividend for FY 2024-25:
The Board of Directors, at its meeting held on 27th May, 2025, has recommended a Final Dividend of Rs. 0.5/- per equity share 
of Rs. 10/- each. The record date for the purpose of payment of final dividend is Friday, 19th September, 2025. The Dividend if 
approved by the Members at this AGM will be directly credited to the bank accounts of the shareholders whose names appear, 
as at the Record Date, in the register of members or the beneficiary position data furnished by the Depositories. 

SEBI vide its Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/POD-1/P/CIR/2024/37 dated 7th May, 2024, has mandated that with effect 
from 1st April, 2024, dividend to security holders who are holding securities in physical form, shall be paid only through elec-
tronic mode. Such payment shall be made only after the shareholders furnish their PAN, contact details (postal address with 
PIN and mobile number), bank account details and specimen signature (“KYC”) and choice of Nomination. Further, relevant 
FAQs published by SEBI on its website can be viewed at the following link: https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebi_data/faqfiles/sep-
2024/1727418250017.
TDS on dividend: Pursuant to the Income Tax Act, 1961 /Finance Act, 2020, dividend income is taxable in the hands of Mem-
bers and the Company is required to deduct tax at source from dividend paid to Members at the prescribed rates. For the pre-
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scribed rates for various categories, please refer to Income Tax Act, 1961 and the Finance Act, 2020, and /or of the respective 
year. The Members are requested to update their PAN with the Depository Participants (DPs) (if shares held in dematerialized 
form) and. For further details please refer to website of the Company https://www.sanjivani.co.in/investorzone 

9. Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 124 and 125 of the Act, the dividends for the financial year ended 31st March, 2016 
and thereafter, which remain unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years will be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund (‘IEPF’) constituted by the Central Government. Members, who have not encashed their dividend warrant(s) 
for the financial year ended 31st March, 2016 or any subsequent financial year(s) are requested to claim such amount from 
the Secretarial Department of the Company or from Share Transfer Agent. The unclaimed dividend amount for the financial 
year ended 31st March, 2016 to IEPF of the Central Government transferred.

10. Pursuant to SEBI Circular no. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSDPoD-1/P/CIR/2023/37 dated 16th March, 2023, issued in su-
persession of earlier circulars issued by SEBI bearing nos. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/655 and SEBI/
HO/MIRSD/ MIRSDRTAMB/P/CIR/2021/687 dated 03rd November, 2021 and 14th December, 2021, respectively, SEBI has 
mandated all listed companies to record PAN, Nomination, Contact details, Bank Account details and specimen Signature for 
their corresponding folio numbers of holders of physical securities. The folios wherein any one of the cited documents/details 
is not available on or after 01st October, 2023, shall be frozen by the RTA. The security holder(s) whose folio(s) frozen shall 
be eligible: 

i. To lodge any grievance or avail of any service request from RTA, only after furnishing the complete documents/ details 
as mentioned above;
ii.To receive any payment including dividend, interest or redemption amount (which would be only through electronic mode 
w.e.f. 01st April, 2024) only after compliance with the above stated requirements. 

The forms for updation of PAN, KYC, bank details and Nomination viz., Forms ISR-1, ISR-2, ISR-3, SH-13 and the said 
SEBI circular are available on Company’s website i.e. www.sanjivani.co.in.  In view of the above, we urge Members holding 
shares in physical form to submit the required forms along with the supporting documents at the earliest. The Company has 
dispatched a letter to the Members holding shares in physical form in relation to the above referred SEBI Circular vide letter 
dated 29th May, 2023. Members who hold shares in Dematerialised form and wish to update their PAN, KYC, Bank details 
and Nomination, are requested to contact their respective DPs. 

In case a holder of physical securities fails to furnish these details or link their PAN with Aadhaar before the due date, our 
registrars are obligated to freeze such folios. The securities in the frozen folios shall be eligible to receive payments (including 
dividend) and lodge grievances only after furnishing the complete documents. If the securities continue to remain frozen as on 
31st December, 2025, the Share Transfer Agent / the Company shall refer such securities to the administering authority under 
the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988, and / or the Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002. 

11. To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the Company of any change 
in address as soon as possible. SEBI has made it mandatory for all companies to use the bank account details furnished by 
the Shareholders / Depositories for depositing of dividends. 

12. Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 
103 of the Act. 

13. To support the ‘Green Initiative’, Members who have not yet registered their email addresses are requested to register the 
same with their Depository Participants (‘DP’) in case the shares are held by them in electronic form and with LIIPL in case 
the shares are held by them in physical form. 

14. As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, any requests for transfer, transmission or transposition of 
securities of the Companies shall be effected only in dematerialized form. To eliminate all risks associated with physical shares 
and for ease of portfolio management, members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their 
holdings to dematerialized form. Members can contact the Company or Share Transfer Agent for assistance in this regard. 

15. Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, e-mail address, telephone / 
mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, nominations, power of attorney, bank details such as name 
of the bank and branch details, bank account number, MICR code, IFSC code etc., to their DPs in case the shares are held 
by them in electronic form and to LIIPL in case the shares are held by them in physical form. 

16. In case of joint holders, the member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names as per the Register of 
Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the AGM. 
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17. Members seeking any information about the financial statements or any matter to be placed at the AGM are requested to 
write to the Company on or before Friday, 26th September, 2025, through e-mail on corporate@sanjivani.co.in.  The same 
will be replied by the Company suitably.

GENERAL INFORMATION AND INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:
As per the SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020, individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode can register di-
rectly with the depository or will have the option of accessing various ESP portals directly from their demat accounts.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL: METHOD 1 - If registered with NSDL IDeAS facility

Users who have registered for NSDL IDeAS facility:

a) Visit URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com and click on “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login”.
b) Enter user id and password. Post successful authentication, click on “Access to e-voting”.
c) Click on “MUFG Intime”” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you will be redirected to Link Intime 
InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period.

OR

User not registered for IDeAS facility:

a) To register, visit URL:https://eservices.nsdl.com  and select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click on https://eser-
vices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp” 
b) Proceed with updating the required fields.
c) Post registration, user will be provided with Login ID and password.\
d) After successful login, click on “Access to e-voting”.
e) Click on “MUFG Intime”” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you will be redirected to Link Intime 
InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period.

METHOD 2 - By directly visiting the e-voting website of NSDL:

a) Visit URL:https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
b) Click on the “Login” tab available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.
c) Enter User ID (i.e., your sixteen-digit demat account number held with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code 
as shown on the screen.
d) Post successful authentication, you will be re-directed to NSDL depository website wherein you can see “Access to 
e-voting”.
e) Click on “MUFG Intime”or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you will be redirected to Link Intime 
InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period.

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with CDSL:

METHOD 1 – From Easi/Easiest

Users who have registered/ opted for Easi/Easiest
a) Visit URL:https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Home/Login or    www.cdslindia.com.
b) Click on New System Myeasi
c) Login with user id and password
d) After successful login, user will be able to see e-voting menu. The menu will have links of e- voting service providers i.e., 
MUFG Intime”, for voting during the remote e-voting period.
e) Click on “MUFG Intime”” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you will be redirected to Link Intime 
InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period

OR
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Users not registered for Easi/Easiest

a) To register, visit URL: https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiRegistration / https://web.cdslindia.com/
myeasitoken/Registration/EasiestRegistration
b) Proceed with updating the required fields.
c) Post registration, user will be provided Login ID and password.
d) After successful login, user able to see e-voting menu.
e) Click on “MUFG Intime” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you will be redirected to Link Intime 
InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period.

METHOD 2 - By directly visiting the e-voting website of CDSL.

a) Visit URL: https://www.cdslindia.com/
b) Go to e-voting tab.
c) Enter Demat Account Number (BO ID) and PAN No. and click on “Submit”.
d) System will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile and Email as recorded in Demat Account
e) After successful authentication, click on “MUFG Intime” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you 
will be redirected to Link Intime InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period.

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with Depository Participant:

Individual shareholders can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your depository participant 
registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-voting facility.

a) Login to DP website
b) After Successful login, members shall navigate through “e-voting” tab under Stocks option.
c) Click on e-voting option, members will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, 
wherein you can see e-voting menu.
d) After successful authentication, click on “MUFG Intime” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you 
will be redirected to Link Intime InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in physical form/ Non-Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode is given below:

Individual Shareholders of the company, holding shares in physical form / Non-Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode as on the cut-off date for e-voting may register for e-Voting facility of Link Intime as under:

a) Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in
b) Click on “Sign Up” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and register with your following details: -

a) User ID:

Shareholders holding shares in physical form shall provide Event No + Folio Number registered with the Company. Sharehold-
ers holding shares in NSDL demat account shall provide 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID; Shareholders holding 
shares in CDSL demat account shall provide 16 Digit Beneficiary ID.

b) PAN: 

Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Depository 
Participant (DP)/ Company shall use the sequence number provided to you, if applicable.

c) DOB/DOI:

Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation (DOI) (As recorded with your DP / Company - in DD/MM/YYYY format

d) Bank Account Number: 

Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), as recorded with your DP/Company.

*Shareholders holding shares in physical form but have not recorded ‘C’ and ‘D’, shall provide their Folio number in ‘D’ above
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*Shareholders holding shares in NSDL form, shall provide ‘D’ above

> Set the password of your choice (The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special Character 
(@!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter).
 > Click “confirm” (Your password is now generated).

3. Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab.
4. Enter your User ID, Password and Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and click on ‘Submit’.

Cast your vote electronically:
1. After successful login, you will be able to see the notification for e-voting. Select ‘View’ icon.
2. E-voting page will appear.
3. Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired                 option ‘Favour / Against’
(If you wish to view the entire Resolution details, click on the ‘View Resolution’ file link).
4. After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on ‘Submit’. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to 
confirm your vote, click on ‘Yes’, else to change your vote, click on ‘No’ and accordingly modify your vote.

Guidelines for Institutional shareholders (“Corporate Body/ Custodian/Mutual Fund”):

STEP 1 – Registration

a) Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in
b) Click on Sign up under “Corporate Body/ Custodian/Mutual Fund”
c) Fill up your entity details and submit the form.
d) A declaration form and organization ID is generated and sent to the Primary contact person email ID (which is filled at 
the time of sign up). The said form is to be signed by the Authorised Signatory, Director, Company Secretary of the entity 
& stamped and sent to insta.vote@linkintime.co.in 
e) Thereafter, Login credentials (User ID; Organisation ID; Password) will be sent to Primary
contact person’s email ID.
f) While first login, entity will be directed to change the password and login process is completed.

STEP 2 –Investor Mapping
a) Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in  and login with credentials as received in Step 1 above.
b) Click on “Investor Mapping” tab under the Menu Section
c) Map the Investor with the following details:
a. ‘Investor ID’ -
• Members holding shares in NSDL demat account shall provide 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID i.e., 
IN00000012345678
• Members holding shares in CDSL demat account shall provide 16 Digit Beneficiary ID.
b. ‘Investor’s Name - Enter full name of the entity.
c. ‘Investor PAN’ - Enter your 10-digit PAN issued by Income Tax Department.
d. ‘Power of Attorney’ - Attach Board resolution or Power of Attorney. File Name for the Board resolution/Power of Attorney 
shall be – DP ID and Client ID. Further, Custodians and Mutual Funds shall also upload specimen signature card.
d) Click on Submit button and investor will be mapped now.
e) The same can be viewed under the “Report Section”.

STEP 3 – Voting through remote e-voting

The corporate shareholder can vote by two methods, once remote e-voting is activated:

METHOD 1 - VOTES ENTRY

a) Visit URL: and login with credentials as received in Step 1 above.
b) Click on ‘Votes Entry’ tab under the Menu section.
c) Enter Event No. for which you want to cast vote. Event No. will be available on the home page of Instavote before the 
start of remote evoting.
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d) Enter ‘16-digit Demat Account No.’ for which you want to cast vote.
e) Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option ‘Favour / Against’ (If you wish to 
view the entire Resolution details, click on the ‘View Resolution’ file link).After selecting the desired option i.e., Favour / 
Against, click on ‘Submit’.
f) A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on ‘Yes’, else to change your vote, click on 
‘No’ and accordingly modify your vote. (Once you cast your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or 
change it subsequently).

OR

VOTES UPLOAD:

a) Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and login with credentials as received in Step 1 above.
b) You will be able to see the notification for e-voting in inbox.
c) Select ‘View’ icon for ‘Company’s Name / Event number ‘. E-voting page will appear.
d) Download sample vote file from ‘Download Sample Vote File’ option.
e) Cast your vote by selecting your desired option ‘Favour / Against’ in excel and upload the same under ‘Upload Vote 
File’ option.
f) Click on ‘Submit’. ‘Data uploaded successfully’ message will be displayed. (Once you cast your vote on the resolution, 
you will not be allowed to modify or change it subsequently).

Helpdesk:

Helpdesk for Individual shareholders holding securities in physical form/ Non-Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode:

Shareholders facing any technical issue in login may contact Link Intime INSTAVOTE helpdesk by sending a request at eno-
tices@linkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022 – 4918 6000.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode:

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode may contact the respective helpdesk for any technical issues relat-
ed to login through Depository i.e., NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in
demat mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by 
sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at : 022 - 4886 7000 and 022- 
2499 7000

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by 
sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 
1800 22 55 33

Forgot Password:

Individual shareholders holding securities in physical form has forgotten the password:

If an Individual shareholders holding securities in physical form has forgotten the USER ID [Login ID] or Password or both 
then the shareholder can use the “Forgot Password” option available on the e-Voting website of Link Intime:  https://instavote.
linkintime.co.in

o Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and further Click ‘forgot password?’
o Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCHA). Click on “SUBMIT”.

In case shareholders is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail address. Shareholders 
can set the password of his/her choice by providing the information about the particulars of the Security Question and Answer, 
PAN, DOB/DOI, Bank Account Number (last four digits) etc. as mentioned above. The password should contain a minimum 
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of 8 characters, at least one special character (@!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital 
letter.
User ID for Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form (i.e. Share Certificate): Your User ID is Event No + Folio Number 
registered with the Company
User ID for Shareholders holding shares in NSDL demat account is 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID
User ID for Shareholders holding shares in CDSL demat account is 16 Digit Beneficiary ID.

Institutional shareholders (“Corporate Body/ Custodian/Mutual Fund”) has forgotten the password:
If a Non-Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode has forgotten the USER ID [Login ID] or Password or 
both then the shareholder can use the “Forgot Password” option available on the e-Voting website of Link Intime:      https://
instavote.linkintime.co.in

Click on ‘Login’ under ‘Corporate Body/ Custodian/Mutual Fund’ tab and further Click
‘forgot password?’

Enter User ID, Organization ID and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCHA). Click on “SUBMIT”.

In case shareholders is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail address. Shareholders 
can set the password of his/her choice by providing the information about the particulars of the Security Question and Answer, 
PAN, DOB/DOI, Bank Account Number (last four digits) etc. as mentioned above. The password should contain a minimum 
of 8 characters, at least one special character (@!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital 
letter.

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL/ CDSL has forgotten the password:
Shareholders who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option 
available at abovementioned depository/ depository participants website.

> It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your pass-
word confidential.
> For shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for voting on the resolutions 
contained in this Notice.
> During the voting period, shareholders/ members can login any number of time till they have voted on the resolution(s) 
for a particular “Event”.

Contact Details:

Company Sanjivani Paranteral Limited 
Registered Office: 205 P-N Kothari Indl Estate B S Marg Bhandup (W), Mumbai, 
Maharashtra, India, 400078 

Registrar And Share Transfer Agent Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd, C 101,247 Park, L.B.S. Marg,  Vikhroli (West), 
Mumbai, Maharashtra,400083.
Tel:  +91 +022 - 28515644 Fax:  +91 (022 – 28512885)
Email id: mumbai@linkintime.co.in
Website: https://linkintime.co.in/

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with CDSL Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd

Individual Shareholders holding rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

BY THE ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FOR SANJIVANI PARANTERAL LIMITED

Date: 12th August, 2025 
Place: Mumbai

SD/-
ASHWANI KHEMKA

CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR 



Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements

133Annual Report 2024-25

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND SECURITIES AND 
EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

Item No. 4. Approval for appointment of HD & Associates as Secretarial Auditor of the Company

Background & Rationale for Appointment:

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, every listed company is required to annex a Secretarial Audit Report issued by a qualified Peer Reviewed Company 
Secretary in Practice to its Annual Report. In light of the amendments notified by SEBI effective from April 1, 2025, regarding 
the eligibility, tenure, and disqualifications of Secretarial Auditors, it is imperative for the Company to comply with the revised 
regulatory framework.

On the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors proposes the appointment of M/s. HD and Associates, 
a Practicing Company Secretaries firm, as Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a term of five consecutive financial years, 
i.e. from FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30, to hold office from the conclusion of the 31st Annual General Meeting till the conclusion 
of the 36th Annual General Meeting of the Company.

2. Eligibility & Qualifications of the Secretarial Auditor

I. Peer Reviewed Firm
M/s. HD and Associates is a Peer Reviewed Firm, holding a valid Peer Review Certificate issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India (ICSI) and is compliant with regulatory and governance standards.

II. Qualified & Experienced Professionals
The firm consists of a team of experienced professionals with domain expertise in corporate laws, governance matters, and 
SEBI Regulations, and has a robust track record in conducting Secretarial Audits for listed entities.

III. No Disqualifications
The proposed firm meets all the criteria laid out under Regulation 24A(1A) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and Annexure-2 of 
SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/CFD-POD-2/CIR/P/2024/185 dated December 31, 2024, specifically:

• Independent of Sanjivani Paranteral Limited, its promoters, directors, and KMPs.
•Neither the firm nor its partners hold securities in, have financial indebtedness with, or offer guarantees to the Company 
or its group entities beyond the permitted thresholds.
•No disqualified business relationships exist other than permitted professional engagements.
•No relative of the firm’s partners is a Director or KMP in Sanjivani Paranteral Limited.
•The firm and its partners comply with the 15 audit engagements per partner limit.
•No past convictions for fraud, nor involvement in rendering prohibited services.

3. Tenure & SEBI Compliance
In line with Regulation 24A(1)(b), the firm may be appointed for two terms of five years each. The proposed appointment rep-
resents the first term of five years and is fully compliant with tenure limits prescribed under SEBI regulations.

4. Independence & Prohibited Services
As per Regulation 24A(1B) and Annexure-3 of the above SEBI Circular, the Secretarial Auditor is prohibited from rendering 
services such as internal audit, compliance systems design, investment advisory, investment banking, outsourced compli-
ance, management services, or any other services that may impair independence.
M/s. HD and Associates has provided a written confirmation that none of the prohibited services are being rendered to the 
Company or its group entities.

5. Audit Committee & Board Recommendation
The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors have evaluated the qualifications, experience, regulatory standing, and 
independence of M/s. HD and Associates and recommend their appointment as Secretarial Auditor for a term of five years.

6. Financial Implications & Shareholders’ Approval

• The remuneration payable will be mutually agreed upon between the Audit Committee/Board and the firm, within the 
limits approved by the Members.
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• The Board recommends passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out in Item No. 4 of the Notice.
• None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, or their relatives are in any way concerned or interested in the reso-
lution.

No Director and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company nor their respective relatives are concerned or interested, finan-
cially or otherwise, in this resolution.
The Board recommends the resolution set out at Item no. 4 for the approval by the shareholders of the Company

Item No. 5. To re-appoint Mr. Ashwani A. Khemka (DIN: 0337118) as Managing Director  

Mr. Ashwani A. Khemka (DIN 00337118) is proposed to be re-appointed as a Managing Director of the Company for a period 
of five years with effect from August 01, 2025 to July 31, 2030. The Board of Directors at their Meeting held on 12 August, 
2025 re-appointed him as Managing Director, based on the recommendation of Remuneration Committee, for a period of five 
years effective from August 01, 2025 on the terms and conditions including the terms of his remuneration as set out in the 
Resolution. Unprecedented growth of the Company during last 5 years more than justifies his reappointment. 

Mr. Ashwani A. Khemka shall not be entitled to receive sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board of Directors or any 
committee thereof. 

Save and except Mr. Ashwani A. Khemka and his relatives, to the extent of their shareholding interest, if any, in the Company, 
none of the other Directors/Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are in any way, concerned or interested, financially 
or otherwise, in the Resolution(s) set out at Item No. 5. 

The Board of Directors recommend passing of the Ordinary Resolution at item No. 5 of the Notice.
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Annexure to Notice

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT IN THE FORTHCOMING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

[Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 
Secretarial Standard-2 on General Meetings] 

A brief profile of Directors proposed to be appointed / re – appointed

Name of the Director Srivardhan Ashwani Khemka Ashwani Anamisharan Khemka

DIN 08942106 00337118
Age 29 54
Date of Birth 22-01-1996 31-01-1971
Qualifications Bachelor’s Degree BA
Experience in Specific Functional Areas 5+ Years 30+ Years
Date of first appointment on the Board 24-03-2022 05-10-1994
Shareholding in the Company - 32,23,045
Relationship with other Directors or with 
KMP

Mr. Srivardhan Ashwani Khemka is 
Son of Mr. Ashwani Anamisharan 
Khemka, Managing Director of the 

Company.

Mr. Ashwani Anamisharan Khemka 
is Father of Mr. Srivardhan Ashwani 
Khemka, Executive Director of the 

Company.
Number of meetings attended during 
2024-25 07 07

Terms and Conditions for appointment The terms and condition of Approval 
of remuneration, perquisites, benefits, 

and other terms and conditions as 
approved by the shareholders vide 

resolution passed through postal ballot 
on June 20, 2024.

The terms and condition of Approval 
of remuneration, perquisites, benefits, and 
other terms and conditions as approved by 

the shareholders vide resolution passed 
through postal ballot on June 20, 2024.

Remuneration proposed to be paid Rs. 4,00,000 per Month Rs. 12,50,000 per Month

Last drawn remuneration Rs. 4,00,000 per Month Rs. 12,50,000 per Month

Other Directorships (Excluding foreign 
companies) NA

1. SPL infusion private limited
2. Aagrah properties private limited

3. Genesen labs limited
4. Alfa sales private limited

Membership / Chairmanship of 
Committees of other Boards of other 
companies

NA NA
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